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inothstlv to 14a million or 147
per

diluted shaie

in 201 from $12 million or $502 diluted

share in 201 111313 achirsed
very stiong opeiatiug

iesults on solid resenue increase llowner operating

results at both oal and Kitchen Collection were

disappointing NACoa1s iesults suffered from reduced

solume and tempoiaiily higher costs at the Reed

Minerals operation Kitc hen Collections results were

hurt by fewer customer visits reduced
margins

and

charges totaling 1.0 million or 51 million after tax

of 50 million for the impairment of ui tairi fixed

assets employee severance in connection with future

closings of unprofitable stoics and writ dosvn of

certain irivemory to fair marker aluc

In 2013 strong returns on capital employed

R03 on net debt basis were reiliied at both

NACoa1 II percent and 111313 34.9 percent

however Kitchen Collection genciated loss

be Company generated negative consolidated

cash flow before financing activities off million

in 211 as strong positive cash flow before financing

activities at ClIP of $38.5 million uas offset b3 negative

ish flow before financing activities of $26 million

at NACoal and $1 1.2 millionat Kitchen Collection

NA oals negative cash flow before financing activities

was primarily the result of equipment and coal reserve

acquisitions as part of NACoals plan to improve

mining efficiencies increase volumes and reduce costs

at Reed while Kitchen Collections negative cash flow

was pi unanily because of the significant 20 operating

loss he Conipan had consolidated cash on hand

of $93.4 million as of lecemher 31 2013 compared

with 5139.9 million as of 1ecembei 31 2012 1eht as

of lecember 31 013 was 183 nullion coiitpaied

with $177 million as of leminber 31 2012 NAC3
expects strong cash flow before tinancu activities

from ffroal and HBB in 201 aiid improved cash

flow before financing actis ities at Kitchen Collection

In November 2011 the Companys Boaid of

Iircctois approved the Iepnncliase of up to million

ol the Companys outstanding Class common stock

the 2011 Stock Repurchase Program In November

2013 the Companys Boaid of Iirectois terminated

the 2011 Stock Repuichase Program and approved

new stock repuichasc program the 2013 Stock

Repurchase Prograni providing for the purchase

of up to $60 million of the Companys outstanding

lass Common Stock thiough lecembei 312015
Neither of the share repuichase progi ams required

the Company to acquire any specific numbei of shares

ln total under the 2011 Stock Repurchase Program

NACCO repurchased approvirnately 624000 shares

of Class common stock foi an aggregate purchase

price of $35.6 million including $30.4 million of stock

purchased duiing 2013 As of Ieceniber 31 2013

the Company had repurchased approximately 16101

shares of lass common stock for $0 million under

the 2013 Stock Repurchase Program total of $31.3

millionof Class commoii stock was purchased in

2013 under both plans

Sepage2OJor tile cl ilaiw ci letIlin on caplia/ ciiploye

le gourmet chef
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oser the Ihllowing the years from 2012 leves due

to benefits from anticipated continued operational

iniprosernents at Ml MGs customers power plant

and from the companys execution of its long term

plan at the Reed Minerals operations Ihe company

views its acquisition of Reed as met allurgkal

coal strategic initiative which includes si gmficantly

increased vohune and profitability for the company

over thc long term

NACoa1 Ixpects to continue its recoid of

operational excellence in safety environmental

stewardship and production at each of its mining

operations and over time to dehxei piofitability

that exceeds its financial objectives

NACoal expects to continue to be low cost

tinner of coal at its existing mines and its mines in

development in support of customer power plants

which are among the lower cost producers of electricity

on thcir respective grids The company hopes that

any new PA regulations will not significantly disturb

the cliii ent low wst and u-liable power generation

structure in favor of high cost/low Co producers

Because the cui rent regulatory environment is very

fficult for deseloping new traditional coal fired power

plants NA oal is taking very disciplrncd view of

wherc likely domestic growth opportunities exist

Given curient political and regul story harriers

to coal fired power neration in the nited States

NACoal has put in place four additional strategic

initiatives which have the potential to provide future

growth of the company

lirst leveraging its skills as expert miners

NA ml entered narrow segment of the nietallurgical

coal and powei market in Alabama with the Reed

Minerals acquisition in 2012 he company considers

its acquisition of Reed as the first step in metallurgical

coal strategic initiative which includes significantly

increased volume and profitability for the
conipany

in the Slabania market and in the future coal exports

NAt oals full iritegratuon of Reed as siell as the

improvements tirade to the mining operation in 2013

and cuirently under way in 01 are cxpected to

increase capacity and lower costs providi ig enhanced

opportunities to increase both domestic and
export

Second strategic growth may come from projects

developed out of new technologies that utiliae coal

such as integrated gasification combined cycle power

generation and production of alternative fuels made

from coal as well as other clean coal technologies and

noiutraditional products derived from coaL NACoaI is

working with
range

of technical experts and potential

partners who could help develop projects based on

these advarwcd technologies howe er any significant

growth in domestic opportunities is largely dependent

on the United States adopting balanced
energy policy

in which co il continues to play key role including

through new coal technologies

third the company is also pursuing opportunities

to expand by servmg international ruining operations

including new opportunities to provide value added

mining services outside the Urnted States similar to

its current activities ni India

ourth the company is investigating number

of non coal mining opportunities both domestically

and inrer nationally which include providing selected

value added mining services for companies in tIre

aggregates business

NACoa1 believes that large majority of con

sumers in the United States want domestic
energy

policy which balances affordability cnergy needs and

environmental responsibility he company believes

that coal mtist remani an integral part of the nations

total
energy mix for the Umted States to Lontinue

to he competitive in global economy NACoal

will continue to nionitor pending regulations and

legislation and will take leadership role to help

ensure that reasonable actions are undertaken by

the government Importantly NACoal expects to

effectively address currently anticipated changes to

domestic ens ironrnental regulatory requirements

by working collaborairvely with its customers

Overall NACoa1 an ticipites good prospects

for growth over the next few years as the companys

new mine currently in des Iopment reach frill

production and its five year tat gets fur its consolidated

and unconsolidated mines are attained his financial

perf orinance oser the next few
years

should provide

solid base for NACoaI to attain further growth in

later
years through its sti ategic initiativessales especially as the steel industry inrproves









IIBB continues to monitor both currency effects and

commodity costs closely and intends to adjust pioduct

pi ices and product placements as appiopi iate if

these costs increase more than anticipated IBB

expects cash flow before financing aetis toes in 20

to be substantial hut down significantly from 201 ls

sery strong results

Longer-Term Perspective

IJBBs muon is to be the leading designer

mat keter and distributor of small electric household

and commercial appliances sold worlds ide under

strong brand names and to achieve profitable gtowth

horn innovative solutions that improve everyday living

As part of this vision IBB is focused on delivering

growth ahose historic rates to reach sales of approci

mately $750 million As the company moves toward

this target sales level expects to take advantage

of increasing econoniies of scale to improve return on

sales by lo
using on its five key strategk initiatives

first HBB is focused on enhancing placements

in the North American ionsurner hu mess through

consumir driven innovatixe products md strong

sales arid marketing support The companys product

and placement track record is strong due to innovation

processes
centered on undei standing and meeting

end riser in eds and focusing on quality and best

mnclass customer service In the North American

consumer market HBB believes it has stronger and

deeper port tolio of new pioducts than its competitors

HBB cxpcLts it5 produt pipeline in 0l4 and beyond

to be at or above 2013 levels with stiong brands and

best-in class products

second area of growth opportunity is through

the enhancr inent of online sales In the past few

years onlme sales of small kitchen appliances have

grown ignificantly luring 2013 15 pci cent of small

kitchen appliances were purchased online Retailers

are looking for partners that can provide not only

products but also the capabilities and support for

promotion marketing and clisi rib ution progranis

appropriate foi that channel \s consumers shopprng

habits evolve to rely niore on the lntei net 111313 is

focused on providing best-in-class rctailer support

increasing engagement with end users including

devices and enhancing its programs designed to make

the prefericd souice for small appliances

Fhiid the only the best high-end small kitchen

appliance market segment is strong growth area

in which HBI3 has not previously participated lhrs

segment accounts for approximately 38 perec Iii of

the small kitchen appliance market and its target

eonsuniei is tinancially strong 111313 is concentrating its

efforts on participating in the only the best market

with strong ht audi and bi oad product line 111311 is

planning to enter the only the best high-end small

kitchen appliance market selectively company is

currently working with the Janiha Juice Company to

create product line focused on blending and juicing

111113 is also working with other partners to create

additional lines that can he distributed in high end

specialty stoics and on the Inteinet

Fourth FIBB is focused on expanding its retail

presence internationally in the emerging growth

markets of Asia arid atm America by increasing

product offerings designed specifically for those

marl et needs and by expanding disti ibution channels

and sales and marketing capabilities 111311s historical

strength has been in the domestic consumer goods

market with only 22 percent of total sales occurring

outsidc the United States in 2013 he companys

objective is to increase international sales to 33 to 45

percent of total sales by concentrating on key markets

111313s efforts will focus on continuing to expand in

Mexico Canada Central America and South America

as well as entering the cmergimi markets of hnld
India and Brazil lb achieve this growth the company

is working to understand local consumers needs

increasing resources allocated to these markets and

deseloping pioducts to meet those needs especially

in the mid to high end segments
of these markets

In addition 111313 expects tim work with local partmnrs

ui certain targeted countries HBB hcgan selling

retail product in China in early 2013 arid in Ilrazil

in late 2013 ftc company expects to increase sales

in these areas in 2014 and enter the Indian rnxrket

during mid 2014

Fifth while 111313 has solid position in the

Commercial market it continues to focus on achieving

further penetration of the global Commercial niatket

maintaining website that is appropriate for mobile through commitment to aim enhanced global product









sohd core store portfolio it will focus on comparable as iesult of the ovpected deciease in NACoaIs net

store sales growth Kitchen Collection
expects to accom

pUsh this by enhancing sales volume and profitability

through continued refinement of its formats and on

going ieview of spcciflc product offerings merchandise

mix store displays and appearance while improving

ins entory efficiency and store inventory controls

particular focus will be on increasing sales of higher

inargm products hr company will also continue

to esaluate and as lease contracts permit close or

restructure leases for underperforrning and loss

generating stores In the near term Kitchen Collection

expects to add stores cautiously and fbcus its growth

on its core Kitchen ollection stores with new stores

expected to be located in sound positions in strong

outlet malls Kitchen Collection also cxpects to focus

on growth opportunities in commerce with newly

revamped website

Conclusion and NACCO Outlook

NACCO is strong multhindustr company

with leading businesses in the rnming and small

appliances industries and is svell positioned to support

its individual businesses in thc ycars ahead The

Company continues to beliese growth opportunities

are particularly significant at the NACoal and HBB

businesses although both will lie prudc mit in pursuing

any such opportunities NACCO is confident that

NM oal and HBB have the right strategic initiatives in

place to move them closer to achieving their long term

growth and financial objectives Kitchen ollectrons

prospects at this iime are uncertain but Kitchen

Collection is concentrating on ways to improve results

by thoughtfully identifying what is working and what

is riot and making appropriate changes including

realigning the entire organization not Just making

changes at the store level Each subsidiary is benefitting

from programs previously put in place which when

combined with the initiatives being implemented

should improve results at each business over the next

few ears

In 2014 overall consolidated net income is

expected to decrease compared with 201 primarily

income Ike housewares market is expected to remain

challenging for Kitchen Collection but Kitchen

Collection is hopeful that consumer confidence and its

customeis financial position will
unprose over time

in way which will increase the number of customer

visits per store the number of transactions
pci store

and sales
per

transaction at the malls where it retains

stores While 2014 is expected to continue to be difficult

for Kitchen Collection store closures and ieduced

operating expenses from the business reahgnnmerit are

expected to bring the operations closer to breakeven

omparable 20 14 results arc expected at l-1BB as higher

expenses associated with implementing its strategic

initiatives are expected to offset the
gross margin effect

of anticipated top line growth finally at NACoal

while steady performance at the unconsolidated coal

mines and improsements at Reed are expected lower

royalty revenues arid the Planned outages at MLMCs

customers power plant are expected to result in

significant dccreasc in net income NA expects

significant increase in cash flow before financing

activities in 2014 compared with 201

In closing we would like to thank all of our

subsidiaries customers retailers arid suppliers and all

of NACCOs stockholders for their continued support

Most importantly we would also like to thank all

employees of NACCO and its subsidiary coinpailies

for their continued hard work and comnurrnent to

achieving the successes and meeting the challenges

of 7013 We continue to have great confidence in the

management teams leading each of our subsidiaries

arid the parent company Our many expemienced and

highly motivated professionals worked successtully

to overcome challenges in tire metallurgical coal and

housewares markets arid deliver the Companys solid

financial results in 201 We are confident thc1 can

successfully implement their respective strategic

initiatives to move the Company forward over the

next few years

Aifred MRankinJr
Chairman Presidentandc heel Lxecutive Officer

NSCW Industries Inc

4J
Robert Benson
President arid Chief Executivc Officer

rhe North American coa/ corporaiion

Gregory HTrepp
President rend Chief Executive Offeccr

Haeeeeltan Beach Brands Inc

Chief txecumeve Officer The Kitchen alleriion ftC
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FART
Item BUSINESS

General

NACCO Industries Inc NACCO or the Company is holding company with the following principal businesses mining

small appliances and specialty retail

North American Coal The Companys wholly owned subsidiary The North American Coal Corporation and its

affiliated companies collectively NAC0a1 mine and market steam and metallurgical coal for use in power generation

and steel production and provide selected value-added mining services for other natural resources companies

Hamilton Beach Brands The Companys wholly owned subsidiary Hamilton Beach Brands Inc HBB is

leading designer marketer and distributor of small electric household appliances as well as commercial products for

restaurants bars and hotels

Kitchen Collection The Companys wholly owned subsidiary The Kitchen Collection LLC KC is national

specialty retailer of kitchenware and gourmet foods operating under the Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet Chef store

names in outlet and traditional malls throughout the United States

Additional information relating to financial and operating data on segment basis including NACCO and Other and by

geographic region is set forth under the heading Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations contained in Part II of this Form 10-K and in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this

Form 10-K

NACCO was incorporated as Delaware corporation in 1986 in connection with the formation of holding company structure

for predecessor corporation organized in 1913 As of December 31 2013 the Company and its subsidiaries had

approximately 4100 employees including approximately 1300 employees at the Companys unconsolidated mines

The Company makes its annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and any
amendments to those reports available free of charge through its website www.nacco.com as soon as reasonably practicable

after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC
Significant Events

In 2013 NACoa1 concluded during its annual assessment for impairment of goodwill that the goodwill within the Reed

Minerals reporting unit was fully impaired and as result recorded $4.0 million non-cash goodwill impairment charge

during the fourth quarter

During 2013 the Company amended the Combined Defined Benefit Plan for NACCO Industries Inc and its subsidiaries the

Combined Plan to freeze pension benefits for all employees including those for certain unconsolidated mines employees

and cost of living adjustments COLAs for other employees effective as of the close of business on December 31 2013 As

result of this amendment the Company remeasured the Combined Plan and recorded $1.7 million pre-tax curtailment gain

during the third quarter of 2013

In 2012 NACoa1 entered into an agreement to develop lignite mine in Mercer County North Dakota and deliver as an

exclusive supplier the annual fuel requirements of the Coyote Station plant expected to be approximately 2.5 million tons

annually starting in 2016

On September 28 2012 the Company spun-off Hyster-Yale Materials Handling Inc Hyster-Yale former subsidiary To

complete the spin-off the Company distributed one share of Hyster-Yale Class common stock and one share of Hyster-Yale

Class common stock to NACCO stockholders for each share of NACCO Class common stock or Class common stock

owned In accordance with the applicable authoritative accounting guidance the Company accounted for the spin-off based on

the carrying value of Hyster-Yale

On August 31 2012 NACoal acquired through wholly owned subsidiary four related companies Reed Minerals Inc Reed

Hauling Inc CH Mining Company Inc and Reed Management LLC from membrs of and entities controlled by the Reed

family These companies known as Reed Minerals are based in Jasper Alabama and are involved in the mining of steam and

metallurgical coal The results of Reed Minerals operations have been included in the Companys consolidated financial

statements since August 31 2012

During 2012 NACoal recognized gain of $3.5 million from the sale of land and $3.3 million gain for the sale of dragline



On November 2011 the Company announced that the Companys Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to $50

million of the Companys outstanding Class common stock the 2011 Stock Repurchase Program The original

authorization for the 2011 Stock Repurchase Program expired on December 31 2012 however in November 2012 the

Companys Board of Directors approved an extension of the 2011 Stock Repurchase Program through December 31 2013 In

total the Company repurchased $35.6 million of Class common stock under the 2011 Stock Repurchase Program

On November 12 2013 the Companys Board of Directors terminated the 2011 Stock Repurchase Program and approved

new stock repurchase program the 2013 Stock Repurchase Program providing for the purchase of up to $60 million of the

Companys outstanding Class Common Stock through December 31 2015 As of December 31 2013 the Company

repurchased $0.9 million of Class common stock under the 2013 Stock Repurchase Program

In 2006 the Company initiated litigation in the Delaware Chancery Court against Applica Incorporated Applica and

individuals and entities affiliated with Applicas shareholder Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund Ltd The litigation

alleged number of contract and tort claims against the defendants related to the Companys failed transaction with Applica

which had been previously announced On February 14 2011 the parties to this litigation entered into settlement agreement

The settlement agreement provided for among other things the payment of $60 million to the Company and dismissal of the

lawsuit with prejudice The payment was received in February 2011 Litigation costs related to this matter were $2.8 million in

2011

North American Coal

General

NACoaI mines and markets steam and metallurgical coal for use in power generation and steel production and provides

selected value-added mining services for other natural resources companies Coal is surface mined from NACoals developed

mines in North Dakota Texas Mississippi Louisiana and Alabama Total coal reserves approximate 2.2 billion tons including

the unconsolidated mining operations with approximately 1.1 billion tons committed to customers pursuant to long-term

contracts NACoaI has two consolidated mining operations Mississippi Lignite Mining Company MLMC and Reed

Minerals Inc Reed Minerals NACoal has ten unconsolidated subsidiaries The Coteau Properties Company Coteau
The Falkirk Mining Company Falkirk The Sabine Mining Company Sabine Demery Resources Company LLC

Demery Caddo Creek Resources Company LLC Caddo Creek Coyote Creek Mining Company LLC Coyote

Creek Camino Real Fuels LLC Camino Real Liberty Fuels Company LLC Liberty NoDak Energy Services LLC

NoDak and North American Coal Corporation India Private Limited NACC India Caddo Creek Coyote Creek and

Camino Real are in the development stage and do not currently mine or deliver coal NACoal also provides dragline mining

services for independently owned limerock quarries in Florida

The contracts with the customers of the ten unconsolidated subsidiaries provide for reimbursement to the Company at price

based on actual costs plus an agreed pre-tax profit per ton of coal sold or actual costs plus management fee

At December 31 2013 NACoa1s operating mines consisted both of mines where the reserves were acquired whether in fee or

through leases and developed by NACoaI as well as mines where reserves are owned or leased by the customers of the mines

and developed by NACoa1 It is currently contemplated that the reported reserves will be mined within the term of the majority

of the leases for each of the mines In the future if any of the leases are projected to expire before mining operations can

commence it is currently expected that each such lease would be amended to extend the term or new leases would be

negotiated NACoal expects coal mined pursuant to these leases will be available to meet production requirements

The majority of NACoals revenue is generated from its consolidated mining operations and dragline mining services MLMCs

customer Choctaw Generation Limited Partnership until February 28 2013 and KMRC RH LLC subsequent to February 28

2013 accounted for approximately 42% 56% and 77% of NACoals revenues for the
years

ended December 31 2013 2012

and 2011 respectively Reed Minerals largest customer Alabama Coal Cooperative accounted for approximately 27% and

5% of NACoa1s revenues for the years ended December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively The results of Reed Minerals

operations have been included in the Companys consolidated financial statements since August 31 2012
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Government Regulation

NACoaIs coal mining operations and dragline mining services are subject to various federal state and local laws and

regulations on matters such as employee health and safety and certain environmental laws relating to among others the

reclamation and restoration of properties after mining operations air pollution water pollution the disposal of wastes and

effects on groundwater In addition the electric utility industry is subject to extensive regulation regarding the environmental

impact of its power generation activities that could affect demand for coal from NACoa1s coal mining operations

Numerous governmental permits and approvals are required for coal mining operations NACoa1 or one of its subsidiaries holds

or will hold the necessary permits at all of NACoa1s coal mining operations except Demery Caddo Creek and Camino Real

where NACoaIs customers hold or will hold the permits and Reed Minerals where coal reserve owner and contract miner

hold certain permits The Company believes based upon present information provided to it by these third party mine permit

holders that these third parties have or will have all permits necessary for NACoal to operate Reed Minerals Demery and

Camino Real however the Company cannot be certain that these third parties will be able to obtain andlor maintain all such

permits in the future

At the coal mining operations where NACoal holds the permits NACoa1 is required to prepare and present to federal state or

local governmental authorities data pertaining to the effect or impact that any proposed exploration for or production of coal

may have upon the environment and public and employee health and safety

The limerock quarries where NACoa1 provides dragline mining services are owned and operated by NACoaIs customers

Some laws as discussed below place many requirements on NACoals coal mining operations and the limerock quarries where

NACoal provides dragline mining services Federal and state regulations require regular monitoring of NACoa1s operations to

ensure compliance

Mine Health and Safety Laws

The Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977 imposes safety and health standards on all coal mining operations

Regulations are comprehensive and affect numerous aspects of mining operations including training of mine personnel mining

procedures blasting the equipment used in mining operations and other matters The Federal Mine Safety and Health

Administration enforces compliance with these federal laws and regulations

Environmental Laws

NACoals coal mining operations are subject to various federal environmental laws as amended including

the Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 SMCRA
the Clean Air Act including amendments to that act in 1990 CAA
the Clean Water Act of 1972 the Clean Water Act
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and

the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act

In addition to these federal environmental laws various states have enacted environmental laws that provide for higher levels

of environmental compliance than similar federal laws These state environmental laws require reporting permitting andlor

approval of many aspects of coal mining operations Both federal and state inspectors regularly visit mines to enforce

compliance NACoal has ongoing training compliance and permitting programs to ensure compliance with such environmental

laws

Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act

SMCRA establishes mining environmental protection and reclamation standards for all aspects of surface coal mining

operations Where state regulatory agencies have adopted federal mining programs under SMCRA the state becomes the

primary regulatory authority All of the states where NACoal has active coal mining operations have achieved primary control

of enforcement through federal authorization under SMCRA

Coal mine operators must obtain SMCRA permits and permit renewals for coal mining operations from the applicable

regulatory agency These SMCRA permit provisions include requirements for coal prospecting mine plan development topsoil

removal storage and replacement selective handling of overburden materials mine pit backfilling and grading protection of

the hydrologic balance surface drainage control mine drainage and mine discharge control and treatment and revegetation

11



Although NACoaIs permits have stated expiration dates SMCRA provides for right of successive renewal The cost of

obtaining surface mining permits can vary widely depending on the quantity and type of information that must be provided to

obtain the permits however the cost of obtaining permit is usually between $1000000 and $5000000 and the cost of

obtaining permit renewal is usually between $15000 and $100000

The Abandoned Mine Land Fund which is part of SMCRA imposes fee on certain coal mining operations The proceeds are

used principally to reclaim mine lands closed prior to 1977 In addition the Abandoned Mine Land Fund also makes transfers

annually to the United Mine Workers of America Combined Benefit Fund the Fund which provides health care benefits to

retired coal miners who are beneficiaries of the Fund The fee was $0.09 per ton on lignite coal produced and $0.3 15 per ton on

other surface-mined coal from prior to 2011 through September 30 2012 As of October 2012 the fee is currently $0.08 per

ton on lignite coal produced and $0.28 per ton on other surface-mined coal

SMCRA establishes operational reclamation and closure standards for surface coal mines The Company accrues for the costs

of current mine disturbance and final mine closure including the cost of treating mine water discharges where necessary

These obligations are unfunded with the exception of the final mine closure costs for the Coyote Creek Mine which will be

funded throughout the production stage

SMCRA stipulates compliance with many other major environmental programs These programs include the CAA Clean Water

Act Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act and

Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act The U.S Army Corps of Engineers regulates activities affecting

navigable waters and the U.S Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco and Firearms regulates the use of explosives for blasting In

addition the U.S Environmental Protection Agency the EPA the U.S Army Corps of Engineers and the Federal Office of

Surface Mining are engaged in series of rulemakings and other administrative actions under the Clean Water Act and other

statutes that are directed at reducing the impact of coal mining operations on water bodies Currently these initiatives are

primarily with respect to mining operations in the Appalachian region especially on mountaintops

The Company does not believe there is any significant risk to NACoals ability to maintain its existing mining permits or its

ability to acquire future mining permits for its mines

Clean Air Act

The process of burning coal can cause many compounds and impurities in the coal to be released into the air including sulfur

dioxide nitrogen oxides mercury particulates and other matter The CAA and the corresponding state laws that extensively

regulate the emissions of materials into the air affect coal mining operations both directly and indirectly Direct impacts on coal

mining operations occur through CAA permitting requirements andlor emission control requirements relating to air

contaminants especially particulate matter Indirect impacts on coal mining operations occur through regulation of the air

emissions of sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxides mercury particulate matter and other compounds emitted by coal-fired power

plants The EPA has promulgated or proposed regulations that impose tighter emission restrictions in number of areas some

of which are currently subject to litigation The general effect of tighter restrictions could be to reduce demand for coal Any

reduction in coals share of the capacity for power generation could have material adverse effect on the Companys business

financial condition and results of operations

States are required to submit to the EPA revisions to their state implementation plans SIPs that demonstrate the manner in

which the states will attain national ambient air quality standards NAAQS every time NAAQS is issued or revised by the

EPA The EPA has adopted NAAQS for several pollutants which it continues to periodically review for revisions When the

EPA adopts new more stringent NAAQS for pollutant some states have to change their existing SIPs If state fails to revise

its SIP and obtain EPA approval the EPA may adopt regulations to effect the revision Coal mining operations and coal-fired

power plants that emit particulate matter or other specified material are therefore affected by changes in the SIPs Through this

process over the last few years the EPA has reduced the NAAQS for particulate matter ozone and nitrogen oxides NACoa1s

coal mining operations and utility customers may be directly affected when the revisions to the SIPs are made and incorporate

new NAAQS for sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxides ozone and particulate matter In response to court remand of earlier rules to

control the regional transport of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxides from coal-fired power plants and their impacts of downwind

NAAQS areas in mid-2011 the EPA finalized the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule CSAPR to address interstate transport of

pollutants This affects states in the eastern half of the United States and Texas This rule imposes additional emission

restrictions on coal-fired power plants to attain ozone and fine particulate NAAQS On August 21 2012 the U.S Court of

Appeals stuck down the CSAPR rule effectively eliminating the new additional emission restrictions The EPA subsequently

appealed to the U.S Supreme Court Oral arguments were heard December 10 2013 and ruling is pending

The CAA Acid Rain Control Provisions were promulgated as part of the CAA Amendments of 1990 in Title IV of the CAA

Acid Rain Program The Acid Rain Program required reductions of sulfur dioxide emissions from coal-fired power plants

The Acid Rain Program is now mature program and the Company believes that any market impacts of the required controls

have likely been factored into the coal market
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The EPA promulgated regional haze program designed to protect and to improve visibility at and around Class Areas which

are generally National Parks National Wilderness Areas and International Parks This program may restrict the construction of

new coal-fired power plants whose operation may impair visibility at and around the Class Areas Additionally the program

requires certain existing coal-fired power plants to install additional control measures designed to limit haze-causing emissions

such as sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxide and particulate matter States were required to submit Regional Haze SIPs to the EPA by
December 2007 however many states did not meet that deadline

Under the CAA new and modified sources of air pollution must meet certain new source standards the New Source Review

Program In the late 990s the EPA filed lawsuits against many coal-fired power plants in the eastern United States alleging

that the owners performed non-routine maintenance causing increased emissions that should have triggered the application of

these new source standards Some of these lawsuits have been settled with the owners agreeing to install additional emission

control devices in their coal-fired power plants The remaining litigation and the uncertainty around the New Source Review

Program rules could adversely impact demand for coal Regardless of the outcome of litigation on either rule stricter controls

on emissions of sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxide and mercury are likely Any such controls may have an adverse impact on the

demand for coal which may have an adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition or results of operations

Under the CAA the EPA also adopts national emission standards for hazardous air pollutants In December 2011 the EPA

adopted final rule called the Mercury and Air Toxics Standard MATS which applies to new and existing coal-fired and

oil-fired units This rule requires mercury emission reductions but also requires reductions in emissions of acid gases during

fuel combustion and additional reductions in fine particulates which are being regulated as surrogate for certain metals

NACoa1s utility customers must incur substantial costs to control emissions to meet all of the CAA requirements including the

new requirements under MATS and the EPAs regional haze program These costs could raise the price of coal-generated

electricity making coal-fired power less competitive with other sources of electricity thereby reducing demand for coal In

addition NACoa1s utility customers may choose to close coal-fired generation units or to postpone or cancel plans to add new
capacity in light of not only these costs but also of the adequacy of the time mandated for compliance with the new

requirements and the prospects of the imposition of additional future requirements on emissions from coal-fired units If

NACoals customers cannot offset the cost to control mercury acid gas and fine particulate emissions by lowering the costs of

delivery of its coal on an energy equivalent basis or if NACoaIs customers elect to close coal-fired units the Companys
business financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected

Global climate change continues to attract considerable public and scientific attention and considerable amount of legislative

and regulatory attention in the United States The United States Congress has considered climate change legislation that would

reduce greenhouse gas GHGemissions particularly from coal combustion by power plants The EPA is promulgating

regulations to control GHG under the CAA without new legislation Enactment of laws and passage of regulations regarding

GHG emissions by the United States or some of its states or other actions to limit carbon dioxide emissions such as opposition

by environmental groups to expansion or modification of coal-fired power plants could result in electric generators switching

from coal to other fuel sources

The United States Congress continues to consider variety of proposals to reduce GHG emissions from the combustion of coal

and other fuels These proposals include emission taxes emission reductions including cap-and-trade programs and

mandates or incentives to generate electricity by using renewable resources such as wind or solar power Some states have

established programs to reduce GHG emissions

The EPA has begun to establish GHG regulation program under the CAA by issuing finding that the emission of six GHGs
including carbon dioxide and methane may reasonably be anticipated to endanger public health and welfare On June 26 2012

the U.S Court of Appeals upheld this finding Based on this finding in 2012 the EPA published New Source Performance

Standard for greenhouse gases emitted from future new power plants This was withdrawn and subsequently reissued in

January 2014 The EPA plans to establish greenhouse gas
limits for existing power plants This could impact coal-fired power

plants and reduce the demand for coal

The United States has not implemented the 1992 Framework Convention on Global Climate Change Kyoto Protocol which

became effective for many countries on February 16 2005 The Kyoto Protocol was intended to limit or reduce emissions of

GHGs such as carbon dioxide The United States has not ratified the emission targets of the Kyoto Protocol or any other GHG
agreement Because the first Protocol commitment period ended in 2012 an amendment to extend the Kyoto Protocol was

adopted in Doha Qatar on December 2012 The United States is not signatory to the amendment Even though the United

States has not accepted these international GHG limiting treaties nor has it enacted domestic legislation to control GHG
numerous lawsuits and regulatory actions have been undertaken by states and environmental

groups to try to force controls on

the emission of carbon dioxide or to prevent the construction of new coal-fired power plants The implementation by the

United States of an international agreement the regulations promulgated to date by the EPA with
respect to GHG emissions or
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the adoption of legislation to control GHG emissions could have materially adverse effect on the Companys business

financial condition and results of operations

NACoal has obtained all necessary permits under the CAA at all of its coal mining operations where it is responsible for

permitting

Clean Water Act

The Clean Water Act affects coal mining operations by establishing in-stream water quality standards and treatment standards

for waste water discharge Permits requiring regular monitoring reporting and performance standards govern the discharge of

pollutants into water

Federal and state regulations establish standards for water quality These regulations prohibit the diminution of water quality

Waters discharged from coal mines will be required to meet these standards These federal and state requirements could require

more costly water treatment and could materially adversely affect the Companys business financial condition and results of

operations

The Company believes NACoaI has obtained all permits required under the Clean Water Act and corresponding state laws and

is in compliance with such permits In many instances mining operations require securing Clean Water Act authorization or

permit from the U.S Army Corps of Engineers for operations in waters of the United States The Army Corps of Engineers is

currently in litigation regarding the validity of certain Clean Water Act permits used by Reed Minerals in Alabama The Army

Corps of Engineers is arguing that the permits it issued are valid and Reed Minerals and several other operators have

intervened in the litigation to protect their permits Invalidation of these Clean Water Act permits in Alabama could require

adjustment of Reed Minerals mine plans increasing costs for mining coal in Alabama and could materially adversely affect

the Companys business financial position and results of operations

Bellaire Corporation wholly owned non-operating subsidiary of the Company Bellaire is treating mine water drainage

from coal refuse piles associated with two former underground coal mines in Ohio and one former underground coal mine in

Pennsylvania and is treating mine water from former underground coal mine in Pennsylvania Bellaire anticipates that it will

need to continue these activities indefinitely and has accrued liability of $16.9 million as of December 31 2013 related to

these treatment operations

In connection with Bellaires normal permit renewal with the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection DEP
Bellaire was notified during 2004 that in order to obtain renewal of the permit Bellaire would be required to establish mine

water treatment trust the Trust On October 2010 Bellaire executed Post-Mining Treatment Trust Consent Order and

Agreement Consent with the DEP which established the Trust to provide financial assurance mechanism in order to assure

the long-term treatment of post-mining discharges

Bellaire agreed to initially fund the Trust with approximately $5.0 million Bellaire funded $2.5 million upon execution of the

Consent and the remaining amount was funded in 2011

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act

The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act RCRA affects coal mining operations by establishing requirements for the

treatment storage and disposal of wastes including hazardous wastes Coal mine wastes such as overburden and coal cleaning

wastes currently are exempted from hazardous waste management EPA has proposed rule that may designate coal

combustion residuals or coal ash CCRs as hazardous waste However the EPA proposed rule exempts CCRs disposed of at

mine sites in favor of deferring any regulation to the Federal Office of Surface Mining OSM for these materials Currently

the Office of Surface Mining is developing rules to address the use of CCRs on coal mine sites The outcome of these

rulemakings and any subsequent actions by EPA and OSM could impact those NACoal operations that use CCRs for haul

roads and other beneficial uses If NACoal were unable to use CCRs for this purpose its revenues for disposing of CCRs from

its customers may decrease and its costs may increase due to the purchase of alternative materials for haul roads

Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act

The Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act and similar state laws create liabilities for the

investigation and remediation of releases of hazardous substances into the environment and for damages to natural resources

The Company must also comply with reporting requirements under the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know

Act and the Toxic Substances Control Act

From time to time the Company has been the subject of administrative proceedings litigation and investigations relating to

environmental matters
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The extent of the liability and the cost of complying with environmental laws cannot be predicted with certainty due to many
factors including the lack of specific information available with respect to many sites the potential for new or changed laws

and regulations the development of new remediation technologies and the uncertainty regarding the timing of work with

respect to particular sites As result the Company may incur material liabilities or costs related to environmental matters in

the future and such environmental liabilities or costs could materially and adversely affect the Companys results of operations

and financial condition In addition there can be no assurance that changes in laws or regulations would not affect the manner

in which NACoa1 is required to conduct its operations

Competition

The coal industry competes with other sources of energy particularly oil gas hydro-electric power and nuclear power In

addition it competes with subsidized green energy projects such as biofuels wind and solar projects Among the factors that

affect competition are the price and availability of oil and natural gas environmental considerations the time and expenditures

required to develop new energy sources the cost of transportation the cost of compliance with governmental regulations the

impact of federal and state energy policies and the current trend toward deregulation of energy markets The ability of NACoal
to market and develop its reserves will depend upon the interaction of these factors

Based on industry information NACoa1 believes it was one of the ten largest coal producers in the United States in 2013 based

on total coal tons produced

Employees

As of December 31 2013 NACoa1 had approximately 1800 employees including approximately 1300 employees at the

unconsolidated mines None of NACoa1s employees are unionized NACoa1 believes its current labor relations with employees
are satisfactory

Hamilton Beach Brands

General

HBB is leading designer marketer and distributor of small electric household appliances as well as commercial products for

restaurants bars and hotels HBBs products are marketed primarily to retail merchants and wholesale distributors

Sales and Marketing

HBB designs markets and distributes wide
range of small electric household appliances including but not limited to

blenders can openers coffeemakers food processors indoor electric grills irons mixers slow cookers toasters and toaster

ovens HBB also markets line of air purifiers and odor eliminators In addition HBB designs markets and distributes

commercial products for restaurants bars and hotels HBB generally markets its better and best products under the

Hamilton Beach brand and uses the Proctor Silex brand for the good and opening price point products HBB markets

premium stand mixers under the Hamilton Beach eclectrics brand In addition HBB supplies Kohls with certain Food

Network-branded kitchen appliances HBB has licensed the Melitta brand from Melitta North America Inc for unique line

of coffee and hot beverage appliances HBB has also licensed the Jamba brand from Jamba Juice Company HBB supplies

additional private label products on limited basis throughout North America

HBB markets its retail products primarily in North America but also sells products in Latin America Asia and other selected

markets HBB commercial products are sold worldwide Retail sales in North America are generated predominantly by
network of inside sales employees to mass merchandisers national department stores variety store chains drug store chains

specialty home retailers distributors and other retail outlets Wal-Mart accounted for approximately 31% 31% and 30% of

HBBs revenues in 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively HBBs five largest customers accounted for approximately 55% 53%
and 50% of HBBs revenues for the years ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively The loss of or significant

reduction in sales to any key customer could result in significant decreases in HBBs revenue and profitability and its ability to

sustain or grow its business

Sales promotion activities are primarily focused on cooperative advertising In addition HBB promotes certain of its innovative

products through the use of television web and print advertising HBB also licenses certain of its trademarks to various

licensees for use with microwaves compact refrigerators cookware kitchen tools and gadgets and full-size household

vacuums

Because of the seasonal nature of the markets for small electric appliances HBBs management believes backlog is not

meaningful indicator of performance and is not significant indicator of annual sales Backlog represents customer orders

which may be cancelled at any time prior to shipment Backlog for HBB was approximately $12.5 million and $14.9 million at

December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively
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HBBs warranty program to the consumer consists generally of limited warranty lasting for varying periods of up to ten years

for electric appliances with the majority of products having warranty of one year Under its warranty program HBB may

repair or replace at its option those products returned under warranty

The market for small electric household appliances is highly seasonal in nature Revenues and operating profit for HBB are

traditionally greater in the second half of the
year as sales of small electric appliances to retailers and consumers increase

significantly with the fall holiday-selling season Because of the seasonality of purchases of its products HBB generally uses

substantial amount of cash or short-term debt to finance inventories and accounts receivable in anticipation of the fall holiday-

selling season

Patents Trademarks Copyrights and Licenses

HBB holds patents and trademarks registered in the United States and foreign countries for various products HBB believes its

business is not dependent upon any individual patent copyright or license but that the Hamilton Beach and Proctor Silex

trademarks are material to its business

Product Design and Development

HBB spent $8.1 million $7.5 million and $7.4 million in 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively on product design and

development activities

Key Suppliers and Raw Material

HBBs products are supplied to its specifications by third-party suppliers located primarily in China HBB does not maintain

long-term purchase contracts with suppliers and operates mainly on purchase order basis HBB generally negotiates purchase

orders with its foreign suppliers in U.S dollars The weakening of the U.S dollar against local currencies could result in certain

non-U.S manufacturers increasing the U.S dollar prices for future product purchases

During 2013 HBB purchased 99.7% of its finished products from suppliers in China HBB believes the loss of any one

supplier would not have long-term material adverse effect on its business because there are adequate supplier choices

available that can meet HBBs production and quality requirements However the loss of supplier could in the short term

adversely affect HBBs business until alternative supply arrangements are secured

The principal raw materials used by HBBs third-party suppliers to manufacture its products are plastic glass steel copper

aluminum and packaging materials HBB believes adequate quantities of raw materials are available from various suppliers

Competition

The small electric household appliance industry does not have onerous entry barriers As result HBB competes with many

small manufacturers and distributors of housewares products Based on publicly available information about the industry HBB

believes it is one of the largest full-line distributors and marketers of small electric household appliances in North America

based on key product categories

Besides North America HBB also competes to lesser degree in Europe through its commercial product lines and in South

America and China The competition in these geographic markets is more fragmented than in North America and HBB is not

yet significant participant in these markets

As retailers generally purchase limited selection of small electric appliances HBB competes with other suppliers for retail

shelf space HBB conducts consumer advertising for the Hamilton Beach brand HBB believes the principal areas of

competition with respect to its products are product design and innovation quality price product features supply chain

excellence merchandising promotion and warranty

Government Regulation

HBB is subject to numerous federal and state health safety and environmental regulations HBBs management believes the

impact of expenditures to comply with such laws will not have material adverse effect on HBB

As marketer and distributor of consumer products HBB is subject to the Consumer Products Safety Act and the Federal

Hazardous Substances Act which empower the U.S Consumer Product Safety Commission CPSC to seek to exclude

products that are found to be unsafe or hazardous from the market Under certain circumstances the CPSC could require HBB

to repair replace or refund the purchase price of one or more of HBBs products or HBB may voluntarily do so

Throughout the world electrical appliances are subject to various mandatory and voluntary standards including requirements

in some jurisdictions that products be listed by Underwriters Laboratories Inc UL or other similar recognized laboratories

HBB also uses Intertek Testing Services for certification and testing of compliance with UL standards as well as other nation
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and industry-specific standards HBB endeavors to have its products designed to meet the certification requirements of and to

be certified in each of the jurisdictions in which they are sold

The Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC adopted conflict mineral rules under Section 1502 of the Dodd-Frank

Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act Dodd-Frank on August 22 2012 The rules require public companies to

conduct certain investigations and in some cases to disclose information about their use of specific minerals that may have

originated from the Democratic Republic of the Congo or adjoining countries DRC The rules do not ban the use of

minerals from conflict sources but require public disclosure beginning with calendar year 2013 with initial disclosures

required no later than May 31 2014 and subsequent disclosures required no later than May 31 of each following year HBB is

subject to the rules and is evaluating its supply chain and will continue to develop processes to assess the impacts and comply

with the regulation

Employees

As of December 31 2013 HBBs work force consisted of approximately 500 employees most of whom are not represented by

unions In Canada as of December 31 2013 16 hourly employees at HBBs Picton Ontario distribution facility were

unionized These employees are represented by an employee association which performs consultative role on employment

matters None of HBBs U.S employees are unionized HBB believes its current labor relations with both union and non-union

employees are satisfactory

Kitchen Collection

General

KC is national specialty retailer of kitchenware and gourmet foods operating under the Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet

Chef store names in outlet and traditional malls throughout the United States

Sales and Marketing

KC operated 304 retail stores as of December 31 2013 Kitchen Collection stores are located primarily in outlet and

traditional malls and feature merchandise of highly recognizable name-brand manufacturers including Hamilton Beach and

Proctor Silex Le Gourmet Chef stores are located primarily in outlet and traditional malls throughout the United States and

feature gourmet foods and home entertainment products as well as brand name electric and non-electric kitchen items

including Hamilton Beach

Seasonality

Revenues and operating profit for KC are traditionally greater in the second half of the year as sales to consumers increase

significantly with the fall holiday-selling season Because of the seasonality of purchases of its products KC incurs substantial

short-term debt to finance inventories in anticipation of the fall holiday-selling season

Product Design and Development

KC retailer has no expenditures for product design and development activities

Product Sourcing and Distribution

KC purchases all inventory centrally which allows KC to take advantage of volume purchase discounts and monitor controls

over inventory and product mix KC purchases its inventory from approximately 250 suppliers one of which represented

approximately 12% of purchases during the year ended December 31 2013 No other suppliers represent more than 10% of

purchases KC believes that the loss of any one supplier would not have long-term material adverse effect on its business

because there are adequate supplier choices available that can meet KC requirements However the loss of supplier could

in the short term adversely affect KCs business until alternative supply arrangements are secured

KC currently maintains its inventory for distribution to its stores at distribution center located near its corporate headquarters

in Chillicothe Ohio

In the near term KC will focus on its program to re-align its business by closing unprofitable stores reducing expenses through

number of cost reduction programs at its headquarters distribution center and remaining core stores terminating its medical

benefit plan and driving consumer interest back toward higher-margin products Longer term KC plans to focus on

comparable store sales growth around solid core store portfolio KC expects to accomplish this by enhancing sales volume

and profitability through continued refinement of its formats and ongoing review of specific product offerings merchandise

mix store displays and appearance while improving inventory efficiency and store inventory controls The company will also

continue to evaluate and as lease contracts permit close or restructure leases for underperforming and loss-generating stores
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Longer term KC expects to add stores cautiously and focus its growth on its core Kitchen Collection stores with new stores

expected to be located in sound positions in strong outlet malls KC also expects to focus on growth opportunities in

commerce

Competition

KC competes against diverse group of retailers including specialty stores department stores discount stores and internet and

catalog retailers The retail environment continues to be extremely competitive Widespread Chinese sourcing of products

allows many retailers to offer value-priced kitchen products

KC believes there is growth potential in kitchenware retailing but only through offering unique high-quality products at prices

affordable to most consumers While number of very low-end and very high-end kitchenware retailers participate in the

marketplace KC believes there is still an opportunity for stores offering mid-priced high-quality kitchenware

Patents Trademarks Copyrights and Licenses

KC holds trademarks registered in the United States for the Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet Chef store names KC

believes that the Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet Chef store name trademarks are material to its business

Employees

As of December 31 2013 KCs work force consisted of approximately 1800 employees None of KCs employees are

unionized KC believes its current labor relations with employees are satisfactory

Item 1A RISK FACTORS

North American Coal

Termination of or default under long-term mining contracts could materially reduce the Companys profitability

Substantially all of NACoa1s profits are derived from long-term mining contracts The contracts for certain of NACoals

unconsolidated mines permit the customer under some conditions of default to acquire the assets or stock of the subsidiary for

an amount roughly equal to book value In one case the customer may elect to acquire the stock of the subsidiary upon

specified period of prior notice for any reason in exchange for payments to NACoaI on coal mined at that facility in the future

If any of NACoa1s long-term mining contracts were terminated or if any of its customers were to default under the contracts

profitability could be materially reduced to the extent that NACoa1 is unable to find alternative customers at the same level of

profitability

NACoals unconsolidated mines are subject to risks created by changes in customer demand inflationary adjustments

and tax rates

The contracts with the unconsolidated mines customers allow each mine to sell coal at price based on actual cost plus an

agreed pre-tax profit per ton or cost plus management fee during the production stage During the development stage the

contracts with the unconsolidated mines customers other than the Coyote Creek customer provide for reimbursement of

actual costs incurred plus monthly management fee Coyote Creeks customer does not reimburse developments costs until

the production stage when deferred development costs are reimbursed over 52-month period During the production stage

the unconsolidated mines customers pay the Company its per-ton profit or management fee only for the coal they consume and

use As result reduced coal usage by customers for any reason including but not limited to fluctuations in demand due to

unanticipated weather conditions scheduled and unscheduled power plant outages economic conditions or governmental

regulations could have material adverse effect on the Companys results of operations Because of the contractual price

formulas for the sale of coal and mining services by these unconsolidated mines the profitability of these operations is also

subject to fluctuations in inflationary adjustments or lack thereof that can impact the per ton profit or management fee paid

for the coal and taxes applicable to NACoa1s income on that coal In addition any changes in tax laws that eliminate benefits

for percentage depletion would have material adverse effect on the Company These factors could materially reduce NACoals

profitability

NACoaIs consolidated mining operations are subject to risks created by its capital investment in the mines the costs of

mining the coal and the dragline mining equipment costs in addition to risks created by changes in customer demand

inflationary adjustments and tax rates

The consolidated mining operations are comprised of MLMC Reed Minerals dragline mining services royalties from mineral

leases to other mining and oil and
gas companies and other activities The profitability of these consolidated mining operations

is subject to the risk of loss of investment in these mining operations changes in demand from customers as well as increases
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in the cost of mining the coal At MLMC and Reed Minerals the costs of mining operations are not reimbursed by customers

As such increased costs at MLMC and Reed Minerals could materially reduce NACoals profitability NACoa1s operations are

subject to changes in customer demand for any reason including but not limited to fluctuations in demand due to

unanticipated weather conditions the emergence of unidentified adverse mining conditions availability of alternative fuels

such as natural gas at reduced prices making coal-fueled generation less competitive with natural gas-fueled generation

planned and unplanned power plant outages economic conditions including economic conditions that adversely affect the

demand for steel governmental regulations inflationary adjustments and tax risks In addition any changes in tax laws that

eliminate benefits for percentage depletion or eliminate the expensing of exploration and development costs would have

material adverse effect on the Company These factors could materially reduce NACoa1s profitability

Mining operations are vulnerable to weather and other conditions that are beyond NACoaIs control

Many conditions beyond NACoa1s control can decrease the delivery and therefore the use of coal to NACoa1s customers

These conditions include weather the emergence of unidentified adverse mining conditions availability of alternative fuels

such as natural gas at reduced prices making coal-fueled generation less competitive with natural gas-fueled generation

unexpected maintenance problems and shortages of replacement parts which could significantly reduce the Companys

profitability

Government regulations could impose costly requirements on NACoa1

The coal mining industry is subject to extensive regulation by federal state and local authorities on matters concerning the

health and safety of employees land use permit and licensing requirements air and water quality standards plant and wildlife

protection reclamation and restoration of mining properties after mining the discharge of materials into the environment

surface subsidence from underground mining and the effects that mining has on groundwater quality and availability

Legislation mandating certain benefits for current and retired coal miners also affects the industry Mining operations require

numerous governmental permits and approvals NACoa1 is required to prepare and present to federal state or local authorities

data pertaining to the impact the production of coal may have upon the environment The public including non-governmental

organizations opposition groups and individuals have statutory rights to comment upon and submit objections to requested

permits and approvals Compliance with these requirements may be costly and time-consuming and may delay commencement

or continuation of development or production

New legislation and/or regulations and orders may materially adversely affect NACoa1s mining operations or its cost structure

New legislation including proposals related to environmental protection that would further regulate and tax the coal industry

may also require NACoa1 or its customers to change operations significantly or incur increased costs Possible mandates that

limit carbon emissions and require specific mix of fuel sources for energy generation methods may reduce potential coal

demand All of these factors could significantly reduce the Companys profitability

NACoaI is subject to federal and state mining regulations which place burden on it

Federal and state statutes require NACoa1 to restore mine property in accordance with specified standards and an approved

reclamation plan and require that NACoa1 obtain and periodically renew permits for mining operations Regulations require

NACoa1 to incur the cost of reclaiming current mine disturbance Although the Company believes that appropriate accruals

have been recorded for all expected reclamation and other costs associated with closed mines future profitability would be

adversely affected if accruals for these costs are later determined to be insufficient or if changed conditions including adverse

judicial proceedings or revised assumptions require change in these reserves

NACoaIs operations are impacted by the Clean Air Act requirements affecting coal consumption

The process of burning coal can cause many compounds and impurities in the coal to be released into the air including sulfur

dioxide nitrogen oxides mercury particulates and other matter The CAA and the corresponding state laws that extensively

regulate the emissions of materials into the air affect coal mining operations both directly and indirectly Direct impacts on coal

mining operations occur through CAA permitting requirements and/or emission control requirements relating to air

contaminants especially particulate matter Indirect impacts on coal mining operations occur through regulation of the air

emissions of sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxides mercury particulate matter and other compounds emitted by coal-fired power

plants The EPA has promulgated or proposed regulations that impose tighter emission restrictions in number of areas some

of which are currently subject to litigation The general effect of tighter restrictions could be to reduce demand for coal Any

reduction in coals share of the capacity for power generation could have material adverse effect on the Companys business

financial condition and results of operations

States are required to submit to the EPA revisions to their SIPs that demonstrate the manner in which the states will attain

NAAQS every time NAAQS is issued or revised by the EPA The EPA has adopted NAAQS for several pollutants which it

19



continues to periodically review for revisions When the EPA adopts new more stringent NAAQS for pollutant some states

have to change their existing SIPs If state fails to revise its SIP and obtain EPA approval the EPA may adopt regulations to

effect the revision Coal mining operations and coal-fired power plants that emit particulate matter or other specified material

are therefore affected by changes in the SIPs Through this process over the last few years the EPA has reduced the NAAQS
for particulate matter ozone and nitrogen oxides NACoaIs coal mining operations and utility customers may be directly

affected when the revisions to the SIPs are made and incorporate new NAAQS for sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxides ozone and

particulate matter In response to court remand of earlier rules to control the regional transport of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen

oxides from coal-fired power plants and their impacts of downwind NAAQS areas in mid-2011 the EPA finalized CSAPR to

address interstate transport of pollutants This affects states in the west including Texas whose emissions may travel to states

in the eastern half of the United States This rule imposes additional emission restrictions on coal-fired power plants to attain

ozone and fine particulate NAAQS On August 21 2012 the U.S Court of Appeals stuck down the CSAPR rule effectively

eliminating the new additional emission restrictions The EPA subsequently appealed to the U.S Supreme Court Oral

arguments were heard December 10 2013 and ruling is pending

The CAAAcid Rain Control Provisions were promulgated as part of the CAAAmendments of 1990 in Title IV of the CAA
The Acid Rain Program required reductions of sulfur dioxide emissions from coal-fired power plants The Acid Rain Program

is now mature program and the Company believes that any market impacts of the required controls have likely been factored

into the coal market

The EPA promulgated regional haze program designed to protect and to improve visibility at and around Class Areas which

are generally National Parks National Wilderness Areas and International Parks This program may restrict the construction of

new coal-fired power plants whose operation may impair visibility at and around the Class Areas Additionally the program

requires certain existing coal-fired power plants to install additional control measures designed to limit haze-causing emissions

such as sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxide and particulate matter States were required to submit Regional Haze SIPs to the EPA by

December 2007 however many states did not meet that deadline

Under the CAA new and modified sources of air pollution must meet certain new source standards In the late 1990s the EPA

filed lawsuits against many coal-fired power plants in the eastern United States alleging that the owners performed non-routine

maintenance causing increased emissions that should have triggered the application of these new source standards Some of

these lawsuits have been settled with the owners agreeing to install additional emission control devices in their coal-fired power

plants The remaining litigation and the uncertainty around the New Source Review Program rules could adversely impact

demand for coal Regardless of the outcome of litigation on either rule stricter controls on emissions of sulfur dioxide nitrogen

oxide and mercury are likely Any such controls may have an adverse impact on the demand for coal which may have

material adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition or results of operations

Under the CAA the EPA also adopts national emission standards for hazardous air pollutants In December 2011 the EPA

adopted final rule called MATS which applies to new and existing coal-fired and oil-fired units This rule requires mercury

emission reductions but also requires reductions in emissions of acid gases during fuel combustion and additional reductions

in fine particulates which are being regulated as surrogate for certain metals

NACoa1s utility customers must incur substantial costs to control emissions to meet all of the CAA requirements including the

new requirements under CSAPR and the EPAs regional haze program These costs could raise the price of coal-generated

electricity making coal-fired power less competitive with other sources of electricity thereby reducing demand for coal In

addition NACoals utility customers may choose to close coal-fired generation units or to postpone or cancel plans to add new

capacity in light of not only these costs but also of the adequacy of the time mandated for compliance with the new

requirements and the prospects of the imposition of additional future requirements on emissions from coal-fired units If

NACoals customers cannot offset the cost to control mercury acid gas and fine particulate emissions by lowering the costs of

delivery of its coal on an energy equivalent basis or if NACoaIs customers elect to close coal-fired units the Companys

business financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected

Global climate change continues to attract considerable public and scientific attention and considerable amount of legislative

and regulatory attention in the United States Congress has considered climate change legislation that would reduce GHG
emissions particularly from coal combustion by power plants The EPA is promulgating regulations to control GHGs under the

CAA without new legislation Enactment of laws and
passage

of regulations regarding GHG emissions by the United States or

some of its states or other actions to limit carbon dioxide emissions such as opposition by environmental groups to expansion

or modification of coal-fired power plants could result in electric generators switching from coal to other fuel sources

Congress continues to consider variety of proposals to reduce GHG emissions from the combustion of coal and other fuels

These proposals include emission taxes emission reductions including cap-and-trade programs and mandates or incentives

to generate electricity by using renewable resources such as wind or solar power Some states have established programs to

reduce GHG emissions
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The EPA has begun to establish GHG regulation program under the CAA by issuing finding that the emission of six GHG
including carbon dioxide and methane may reasonably be anticipated to endanger public health and welfare On June 26 2012

the U.S Court of Appeals upheld this finding Based on this finding in 2012 the EPA published New Source Performance

Standard for greenhouse gases emitted from future new power plants This was withdrawn and subsequently reissued in

January 2014 The EPA plans to establish greenhouse gas limits for existing power plants This could impact coal-fired power

plants and reduce the demand for coal

The United States has not implemented the Kyoto Protocol which became effective for many countries on February 16 2005

The Kyoto Protocol was intended to limit or reduce emissions of GHGs such as carbon dioxide The United States has not

ratified the emission targets of the Kyoto Protocol or any other GHG agreement Because the first Protocol commitment period

ended in 2012 an amendment to extend the Kyoto Protocol was adopted in Doha Qatar on December 2012 The United

States is not signatory to the amendment Even though the United States has not accepted these international GHG limiting

treaties nor has it enacted domestic legislation to control GHGs numerous lawsuits and regulatory actions have been

undertaken by states and environmental groups to try to force controls on the emission of carbon dioxide or to prevent the

construction of new coal-fired power plants The implementation by the United States of an international agreement the

regulations promulgated to date by the EPA with respect to GHG emissions or the adoption of legislation to control GHG

emissions could have materially adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition and results of operations

NACoa1 is subject to the high costs and risks involved in the development of new coal and dragline mining projects

From time to time NACoal seeks to develop new coal and dragline mining projects The costs and risks associated with such

projects can be substantial In addition any changes in tax laws that eliminate the expensing of exploration and development

costs will increase the after-tax cost of building mine and make the cost of coal less competitive with other power-generation

fuels

Hamilton Beach Brands

HBBs business is sensitive to the strength of the North American retail markets and weakness in these markets could

adversely affect its business

The strength of the retail economy in the United States and to lesser degree in Canada and Mexico has significant impact

on HBWs performance Weakness in consumer confidence and poor financial performance by mass merchandisers warehouse

clubs department stores or any of HBBs other customers would result in lost revenues general slowdown in the retail sector

would result in additional pricing and marketing support pressures on HBB

The market for HBBs products is highly seasonal and dependent on consumer spending which could result in

significant variations in the Companys revenues and profitability

Sales of HBBs products are related to consumer spending Any downturn in the general economy or shift in consumer

spending away from small electric household appliances would adversely affect its business In addition the market for small

electric household appliances is highly seasonal in nature HBB often recognizes substantial portion of its sales in the last half

of the year as sales of small electric appliances to retailers and consumers increase significantly with the fall holiday-selling

season Accordingly quarter-to-quarter comparisons of past operating results of HBB are meaningful only when comparing

equivalent time periods if at all Any economic downturn decrease in consumer spending or shift in consumer spending away

from small electric household appliances may significantly reduce revenues and profitability

HBB is dependent on key customers and the loss of or significant decline in business from one or more of its key

customers could materially reduce its revenues and profitability and its ability to sustain or grow its business

HBB relies on several key customers Its five largest customers accounted for approximately 55% 53% and 50% of revenues

for the years ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively Wal-Mart accounted for approximately 31% 31% and

30% of HBBs revenues in 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively Although HBB has long-established relationships with many

customers it does not have any long-term supply contracts with these customers and purchases are generally made using

individual purchase orders loss of any key customer could result in significant decreases in HBBs revenues and profitability

and an inability to sustain or grow its business

HBB must receive continuous flow of new orders from its large high-volume retail customers however it may be unable to

continually meet the needs of those customers In addition failure to obtain anticipated orders or delays or cancellations of

orders or significant pressure to reduce prices from key customers could impair its ability to sustain or grow its business

As result of dependence on its key customers HBB could experience material adverse effect on its revenues and

profitability if any of the following were to occur
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the insolvency or bankruptcy of any key customer

declining market in which customers materially reduce orders or demand lower prices or

strike or work stoppage at key customer facility which could affect both its suppliers and customers

If HBB were to lose or experience significant decline in business from any major retail customer or if any major retail

customers were to go bankrupt HBB might be unable to find alternate distribution outlets

HBB depends on third-party suppliers for the manufacturing of all of its products which subjects the Company to

risks including unanticipated increases in expenses decreases in revenues and disruptions in the supply chain

HBB is dependent on third-party suppliers for the manufacturing of all of its products HBBs ability to select reliable suppliers

who provide timely deliveries of quality products will impact its success in meeting customer demand Any inability of HBBs

suppliers to timely deliver products that meet HBBs specifications or any unanticipated changes in suppliers could be

disruptive and costly to the Company Any significant failure by HBB to obtain quality products on timely basis at an

affordable cost or any significant delays or interruptions of supply would have material adverse effect on the Companys

profitability

Because HBBs suppliers are primarily based in China international operations subject the Company to additional risks

including among others

currency fluctuations

labor unrest

potential political economic and social instability

lack of developed infrastructure

restrictions on transfers of funds

import and export duties and quotas

changes in domestic and international customs and tariffs

uncertainties involving the costs to transport products

long distance shipping routes dependent upon small group of shipping and rail carriers

unexpected changes in regulatory environments

regulatory issues involved in dealing with foreign suppliers and in exporting and importing products

protection of intellectual property

difficulty in complying with variety of foreign laws

difficulty in obtaining distribution and support and

potentially adverse tax consequences

The foregoing factors could have material adverse effect on HBBs ability to maintain or increase the supply of products

which may result in material increases in expenses and decreases in revenues

Increases in costs of products may materially reduce the Companys profitability

Factors that are largely beyond the Companys control such as movements in commodity prices for the raw materials needed

by suppliers of HBBs products may affect the cost of products and HBB may not be able to pass those costs on to its

customers As an example HBBs products require substantial amount of plastic Because the primary resource used in plastic

is petroleum the cost and availability of plastic varies to great extent with the price of petroleum In recent years the prices

of petroleum as well as steel aluminum and copper have increased significantly These price increases may materially reduce

the Companys profitability
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The increasing concentration of HBBs small electric household appliance sales among few retailers and the trend

toward private label brands could materially reduce revenues and profitability

With the growing trend towards the concentration of HBBs small electric household appliance sales among few retailers

HBB is increasingly dependent upon fewer customers whose bargaining strength is growing as result of this concentration

HBB sells substantial quantity of products to mass merchandisers ecommerce retailers national department stores variety
store chains drug store chains specialty home retailers and other retail outlets These retailers generally purchase limited

selection of small electric household appliances As result HBB competes for retail shelf space with its competitors In

addition certain of HBBs larger customers use their own private label brands on household appliances that compete directly

with some of HBBs products As the retailers in the small electric household appliance industry become more concentrated

competition for sales to these retailers may increase which could materially reduce the Companys revenues and profitability

The small electric household and commercial appliance industry is consolidating which could reduce HBBs ability to

successfully secure product placements at key customers and limit its ability to sustain cost competitive position in the

industry

Over the past several years the small electric household and commercial appliance industry has undergone substantial

consolidation and further consolidation is likely As result of this consolidation the small electric household and commercial

appliance industry primarily consists of limited number of large distributors To the extent that HBB does not continue to be

major participant in the small electric household and commercial appliance industry its ability to compete effectively with

these larger distributors could be negatively impacted As result this condition could reduce HBBs ability to successfully

secure product placements at key customers and limit the ability to sustain cost competitive position in the industry

HBBs inability to compete effectively with competitors in its industry including large established companies with

greater resources could result in lost market share and decreased revenues

The small electric household and commercial appliance industry does not have substantial entry barriers As result HBB
competes with many small manufacturers and distributors of housewares products Additional competitors may also enter this

market and cause competition to intensify For example some of HBBs customers have expressed interest in sourcing or

expanding the extent of sourcing small electric household and commercial appliances directly from manufacturers in Asia The

Company believes competition is based upon several factors including product design and innovation quality price product

features merchandising promotion and warranty If HBB fails to compete effectively with these manufacturers and

distributors it could lose market share and experience decrease in revenues which would adversely affect the Companys
results of operations

HBB also competes with established companies number of which have substantially greater facilities personnel financial

and other resources In addition HBB competes with retail customers who use their own private label brands and importers
and foreign manufacturers of unbranded products Some competitors may be willing to reduce prices and accept lower profit

margins to compete As result of this competition HBB could lose market share and revenues

Government regulations could impose costly requirements on HBB

The SEC adopted conflict mineral rules under Section 1502 of Dodd-Frank on August 22 2012 The rules require disclosure of
the use of certain mineralsknown as conflict minerals which are mined from the DRC and adjoining countries HBB has

been engaged in due diligence efforts during the 2013 calendar year Initial disclosures are required no later than May 31 2014
and subsequent disclosures are required no later than May 31 of each following year HBB expects that it will incur additional

costs and expenses which may be significant in order to comply with these rules including due diligence to verify the

sources of such conflict minerals and ii any changes that HBB may make to its products processes or sources of supply as

result of such diligence and verification activities Since HBBs supply chain is complex ultimately it may not be able to

designate all products as DRC conflict free which may adversely affect its reputation with certain customers In such event
HBB may also face difficulties in satisfying customers who require products purchased from HBB to be DRC conflict free If

HBB is not able to meet such requirements customers may choose not to purchase HBB products which could adversely affect

sales and the value of portions of HBBs inventory Further there may be only limited number of suppliers offering products

containing only DRC conflict free parts components and subassemblies and as result HBB cannot be sure that it will be able

to satisfy its purchase requirements from such suppliers in sufficient quantities or at competitive prices Any one or

combination of these various factors could harm HBBs business and materially and adversely affect HBBs results of

operations
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Kitchen Collection

The market for KCs products is highly seasonal and dependent on consumer spending which could result in significant

variations in the Companys revenues and profitability

Sales of products sold at KC stores are subject to number of factors related to consumer spending including general

economic conditions affecting disposable consumer income such as unemployment rates business conditions interest rates

levels of consumer confidence energy prices mortgage rates the level of consumer debt and taxation weak economic

environment worsening of the general economy or shift in consumer spending will adversely affect KCs business In

addition KC often recognizes substantial portion of its revenues and operating profit in the last half of the year as sales to

consumers increase significantly with the fall holiday-selling season Accordingly any economic downturn decrease in

consumer spending or shift in consumer spending away from KCs products could significantly reduce or cause significant

variations in KCs revenues and profitability

KC faces an extremely competitive specialty retail market and such competition could result in reduction of KCs

prices and loss of market share

The retail market is highly competitive KC competes against diverse group of retailers including specialty stores

department stores discount stores and internet and catalog retailers Widespread sourcing of products allows many retailers to

offer value-priced kitchen products Many of KCs competitors are larger and have significantly greater financial marketing

and other resources This competition could result in the reduction of KC product prices and loss of market share

KC may not be able to forecast customer preferences accurately in its merchandise selections

KCs success depends in part on its ability to anticipate the tastes of its customers and to provide merchandise that appeals to

their preferences KCs strategy requires merchandising staff to introduce products that meet current customer preferences and

that are affordable and distinctive in quality and design KCs failure to anticipate identify or react appropriately to changes in

consumer trends could cause excess inventories and higher mark-downs or shortage of products and could harm KCs

business and operating results

KC depends on third-party suppliers for all of its products which subjects KC to risks including unanticipated

increases in expenses decreases in revenues and disruptions in the supply chain

KC is dependent on third-party suppliers for all of its products KCs inability to select reliable suppliers who provide timely

deliveries of quality products could reduce its success in meeting customer demand Any inability of KCs suppliers to timely

deliver products or any unanticipated changes in suppliers could be disruptive and costly to KC The loss of supplier could in

the short term adversely affect KCs business until alternative supply arrangements are secured In addition KC may not be

able to acquire desired merchandise in sufficient quantities on acceptable terms in the future KCs business could also be

adversely affected by delays in product shipments due to freight difficulties strikes or other difficulties at its principal transport

providers Any significant failure by KC to obtain products on timely basis at an affordable cost or any significant delays or

interruptions of supply would have material adverse effect on KCs profitability

NACCO

The Company may be subject to risk relating to increasing cash requirements of certain employee benefits plans which

may affect its financial position

Although the Companys defined benefit pension plans are frozen as of January 2014 and no longer provide for the accrual of

future benefits the expenses
recorded for and cash contributions required to be made to its defined benefit pension plans are

dependent on changes in market interest rates and the value of plan assets which are dependent on actual investment returns

Significant changes in market interest rates decreases in the value of plan assets or investment losses on plan assets may

require the Company to increase the cash contributed to defined benefit plans which may affect its financial position

The Company may become subject to claims under foreign laws and regulations which may be expensive time

consuming and distracting

Because the Company has employees property and business operations outside of the United States the Company is subject to

the laws and the court systems of many jurisdictions The Company may become subject to claims outside the United States for

violations or alleged violations of laws with respect to the foreign operations of NACoa1 and HBB In addition these laws may

be changed or new laws may be enacted in the future International litigation is often expensive time consuming and

distracting As result any of these risks could significantly reduce the Companys profitability and its ability to operate its

businesses effectively
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The Company is dependent on key personnel and the loss of these key personnel could significantly reduce its

profitability

The Company is highly dependent on the skills experience and services of its key personnel and the loss of key personnel

could have material adverse effect on its business operating results and financial condition Employment and retention of

qualified personnel is important to the successful conduct of the Companys business Therefore the Companys success also

depends upon its ability to recruit hire train and retain additional skilled and experienced management personnel The

Companys inability to hire and retain personnel with the requisite skills could impair its ability to manage and operate its

business effectively and could significantly reduce its profitability

The amount and frequency of dividend payments made on NACCOs common stock could change

The Board of Directors has the power to determine the amount and frequency of the payment of dividends Decisions regarding

whether or not to pay dividends and the amount of any dividends are based on earnings capital and future
expense

requirements financial conditions contractual limitations and other factors the Board of Directors may consider Accordingly
holders of NACCOs common stock should not rely on past payments of dividends in particular amount as an indication of

the amount of dividends that will be paid in the future

Item lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

Item PROPERTIES

NACCO

NACCO leases office
space

in Mayfield Heights Ohio suburb of Cleveland Ohio which serves as its corporate

headquarters

NACoa1

NACoal leases its corporate headquarters office space in Plano Texas NACoals proven and probable coal reserves and

deposits owned in fee or held under leases which generally remain in effect until exhaustion of the reserves if mining is in

progress are estimated at approximately 2.2 billion tons including the unconsolidated mining operations all of which are

lignite coal deposits except for approximately 81.3 million tons of bituminous coal Reserves are estimates of quantities of

coal made by NACoa1s geological and engineering stafl which are considered mineable in the future using existing operating

methods Developed reserves are those which have been allocated to mines which are in operation all other reserves are

classified as undeveloped Information concerning mine type reserve data and coal quality characteristics for NACoa1s

properties are set forth on the table on pages and under Item Business North American Coal Sales Marketing
and Operations

Hamilton Beach Brands

The following table presents the principal distribution and office facilities owned or leased by HBB

Owned

Facility Location Leased Functions

Glen Allen Virginia Leased Corporate headquarters

Geel Belgium Distribution center

Shanghai Peoples Republic of China Distribution center

Mexico City Mexico Leased Mexico sales and administrative headquarters

Tlalnepantla de Baz Mexico Distribution center

Olive Branch Mississippi Leased Distribution center

Picton Ontario Canada Leased Distribution center

Southern Pines North Carolina Owned Service center for customer returns catalog distribution center

parts distribution center

Shenzhen China Leased Administrative office

Markham Ontario Canada Leased Canada sales and administration headquarters

City of Sao Paulo Sao Paulo Brazil Leased Brazil sales and administrative headquarters

Jundiai Sao Paulo Brazil Distribution center
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This facility is not owned or leased by HBB This facility is managed by third-party distribution provider

Sales offices are also leased in several cities in the United States Canada China and Mexico

The Kitchen Collection

KC leases its corporate headquarters building and the KC warehouse/distribution facility in Chillicothe Ohio KC leases its

retail stores typical Kitchen Collection store is approximately 3000 square feet and typical Le Gourmet Chef store is

approximately 4300 square feet At December 31 2013 there were 272 Kitchen Collection stores and 32 Le Gourmet Chef

stores The Kitchen Collection store count at December 31 2013 does not include stores that were only open for the

holiday-selling season

Item LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is party to any material legal proceeding other than ordinary routine litigation

incidental to its respective business

Item MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503a of the Dodd-Frank Wall

Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and Item 104 of Regulation S-K is included in Exhibit 95 filed with this Form 10-
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Item 4A EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information under this Item is furnished pursuant to Instruction to Item 401b of Regulation S-K

There exists no arrangement or understanding between any executive officer and any other
person pursuant to which such

executive officer was elected Each executive officer serves until his or her successor is elected and qualified

The following tables set forth the name age current position and principal occupation and employment during the past five

years of the Companys executive officers Certain executive officers of the Company listed below are also executive officers

for certain of NACCOs subsidiaries

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Name Age Current Position Other Positions

Alfred Rankin Jr

J.C Butler Jr

72 Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer of

NACCO from prior to 2009 Chairman of HBB from
January 2010 Chairman of KC from January 2010
Chairman of NACoaI from February 2010

53 Senior Vice President Finance Treasurer and Chief

Administrative Officer of NACCO from September

2012 Senior Vice President Project Development and

Administration of NACoaI from January 2010
Assistant Secretary of HBB and KC from November

2012

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer of

Hyster-Yale from September 2012 From October

2008 to present Chairman of NACCO Materials

Handling Group Inc

From pnor to 2009 to September 2012 Vice President

Corporate Development and Treasurer of NACCO From

September 2011 to September 2012 Treasurer of

NACCO Materials Handling Group Inc From

May 2008 to January 2010 Senior Vice President

Project Development of NACoa1

Mark Barrus 52 Vice President and Controller from February 2013 From
prior to 2009 Partner KPMG LLP an

international accounting firm

John Neumann 38 Vice President General Counsel and Secretary of

NACCO from September 2012 Vice President

General Counsel and Secretary of NACoa1 from
January 2011 Assistant Secretary of HBB and KC
from November 2012

From March 2009 to December 2010 Assistant General

Counsel and Assistant Secretary of NACoal From prior

to 2009 to February 2009 Associate Jones Day law
firm

Miles Haberer 47 Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

from October 2012 Associate General Counsel
Assistant Secretary of NACoaI from October 2012 and

Director-Land of NACoa1 from October 2013

From prior to 2009 to October 2012 Partner Hunton
Williams law firm

Mary Maloney

Jesse Adkins

51 Associate General Counsel Assistant Secretary and

Senior Director Benefits Human Resources from

January 2014 Associate General Counsel Assistant

Secretary and Senior Dirctor Benefits and

Compensation of NACoa1 from January 2014

31 Associate Counsel September 2012 and Assistant

Secretary from November 2013 Associate Counsel

August 2012 and Assistant Secretary from May 2013
of NACoaI

From September 2012 Associate General Counsel and

Assistant Secretary of Hyster-Yale From September

2012 Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

of NMHG From May 2012 to September 2012
Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of

Hyster-Yale From prior to 2009 to September 2012
Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of

NACCO From August 2011 to September 2012
Assistant Secretary of NMHG

From prior to 2009 to December 2010 Managing
Principal Studio Properties LLC commercial property

redevelopment firm From January 2011 to August

2012 Law Clerk NACoaI

27



PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE COMPANYS SUBSIDIARIES

NACOAL

Name Age Current Position Other Positions

Robert Benson 66 President and Chief Executive Officer of NACoaI from

prior to 2009

Michael Gregory 66 Vice President Marketing and Special Projects from From prior to 2009 to August 2010 Vice President

October 2013 Engineering Human Resources and International

Operations of NACoaI From August 2010 to September

2013 Vice President International Operations and

Special Projects of NACoal

Donald Grischow 66 Treasurer of NACoaI from prior to 2009

John Pokorny 58 Controller of NACoal from October 2009 From prior to 2009 to October 2009 Director of

Accounting and Financial Planning of NACoal

Patrick Sullivan Jr 55 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from May From prior to 2009 to May 2013 Controller Luminant

2013 Generation Mining Construction and Development of

Energy-Future Holdings Corporation

Harry Tipton Ill 56 Vice President Engineering and Alabama Louisiana From prior to 2009 to September 2010 General

and Mississippi Operations of NACoaI from October Manager of Mississippi Lignite Mining Company From

2013 September 2010 Vice President Engineering and

Louisiana and Mississippi Operations of NACoaI
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On is mher 13 tIle tinpany Board of Directoi ternii tated the 2111 Stock Rep unchase Pi ian and

tpp oscrl ii est strmk repurchase pioun ii the 01 Stork prnr hase rogiam pro idirig fbi the utch is ot up to

S60 mdli rn if tim om my utstandno Cla Cr rnnion Stoel rlii ugh Dr cLniher 11 15 tinuint air an ouni

of ant icpmr ha es undr the 2011 Stock Repurehasr Pi
ograin aic Ate rrninr at the discretion of the ompuuy

nuanagenur it ha on number of factois niclud
ng

the act uhilits of capital otB eapit ii allocation ahernatises and

iii ket co ud iti for time
inipanys liss common stock 01 Stor Repui asr Pi ogi do not rcqui the

ompan to ar qti it pr cii ic imb sit nes It mat he todil ied su pendc extended rim tet nanated hx tI

top ins at aims tint is hout
pi ioi noli and nay exer tiled thiough open uaiket purchases pi ately etoti Oed

tmansaetio otl ens ise SI or pait of ie repure tases under thr 111 Sto pureliasc Pi ogram liii nnplerutentcd

under Ru Oh ti adnig plan ti lneh is or id all iss repro cha under pre set terms it times is lien lie om upan mm lit

othem rise he prr uted hoin donip i\s of ecenuber II 211 the Company epuicliased 59 million of las

ommrn sir ek rind to 11 xti keptirchase Pm
igi

urn

\lonih

Not cinhen Ito 10 013
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In lu Ic empk ecs Red \I in ii tartin in 01 cad the uncoil olidate ma

cmplos em oil Is ster yule and Red br all years presents

Dr ng tli ompany spun ci stci Yale foi mc ub .idiai

br all ears pre nt aeli des

01 cash haR cnd webs one tune special cash di dend ci 3.50 share at his idend iii

fourth quai icr ob the lii reoulai qu irtei 15 dia id nd lol ng the oil ob Is ste Yale

nd ci Dccc nicr

211 coiti

inc md
p1 ccc cii

SOS Cit 49 .4

1354 745 139.8 148.4

8L3 41 396

143.0

421

1234

Balance Sheet Data at December 31

tal Isss ts 810.0

ong term debtt21 152.4

Star khc ldcm equity 297

Cast Ion Iats

Piovided by operating activities 53.1

Pro ided by used IOn iiis est1iim cetis ita 60.7

Used for financing activities 36.8

Other Data

Per sh ii dati

ash dividends 1.000 378 2.120 2.085 068

Math anIse at le mher 31 62.19 60 hi 892 108.3 4980

Stoekho1ders equity at December 31 17.83 33 68 68.81 53 69 47 82

Actual shares outstanding at December 31 872 353 374 .333 8.294

Basi wsighted average shares outstandin4 105 84 83 328 90

Diluted wethhted average shares outstanding 8.124 8.414 408 344 8.296

Is tat empi yees at Dccc mb 31 100 300 000 900 100

1552

42

41.9

631

38
43.31

15/.0

64

las ids hol continua op oil on in di ontiaac peritn
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1km %1 tN %C1 %Ifl DISC USSIOk AND t1%ALYSIS OF FriWI O%DInON AND RFSU1 IS 01
OPI RtIIOS
\AC I\Dt SI RIPS IN .AND SL BSIDI tRIFS
Ia/rn/i mu tints in Ihousands rccpt is tot dated Pr S/ an and Pr icc nit ita

produc ieturns and although th ttc cur no assurtnc.ces the ompani is not ware of an cireumst1 rices th it siould be

ibli ik Is inateriaih chin it din atc.s in thc future

Rtthemc.nt breflt pints The mpan nut tins i.arious dc.lrnc.cl hcenc.tit pin ion pItt that pros ide bcenefitc basd on suits

of entice and aser ceor ipnb flion durrnce ruin periods Ps.nsioi bandits art lb on In ill .mploc.es other than ruin

al un onsolrdatd ml ices empi vu During 013 thce Cc nipany amenJed thc Cc nit ned Pm to frcoe
pension

be icef its for all cmployccs intiuding those Ic tam unconsolrdatcd nuns employec.s and st of Iii inadjus in nts fc

oth emplc ycees feune of thce celos of usincess on Dcc.einbcr 31 2013 UI othc.r c.lrgibie einploccs cliii
ornpani

inc.Iudr employe whose
pension

binofit no tiorcen rce oiic rc.tue uent benefits under dcfin c.ontributi retirenrn

plan ic ompar 4icy to perrodrcils make ceontnbitions to fund the dcl med bce tef tp nsion pitt sithin the rant
allowed by appi cibit 1giik tons lie defin Pcnc.fit pension pin is as ceo 511 piimirily publicly tr idcd steel and

gosennrcntandcorpoirtc.bond Iheicersnc tuarartccethoac.tualroturnoatlc plan isrt will equalthecexp tedi not urn

lie of return on plan iset or that the p1 ins will not man insestrnc.nt loss

tic xp.c.tcd ion turin rate of return on deli bentflt pitt tsscts ic lects inanaoemcents cpcc.tations ci ions tint itts of

return in funds rnsestt prc side for bcncef its mcfudc..d in th piojc tc4 benefit oblipttiorr cstabfmshrn the
expic

tc.d lona

tc.rrn rate of itturn issumption fbi plan asets th ornpany consii ftc hrstoi ic.ai inks of turn oser pc.ric of trmnc that is

c.tnsrstcent wit the long tin natur of the in city nt obhoatrons of ft usc plans is wcIl is forward looking it of return

bce hrstoricii md forw mid lool irap rites of it urn for tacit of the ass classic to dc.tommirrc the ompans cstmrnate Irate

rc.turn umption were ced UP iri thc rat ot return c.ainc.d it ixcd to bce earned its insc.strnents in thc equnakn
bc.nt.hrnirkrn ii tmndi1 slireai.htftliers tc.la. es

cpctced rctum for ision plans ate biscd in c.alc.uIatced maik rc.lated salue fort .5 pension plan as cets rider this

methodoloc w.cet gains nd losses sultins from actual rc.turns that diflc.r from the ornpany ecpectc.d tu ns are

recnuced ii th mmrkc.t rirtc.d vnlu of ass ts ntabls osir thmeesears xpc.c.tc4 icturn for penion ins arc br.cd or fur

nnrket saluc for \on pc.nsion plan nsscts

Ihi Conipaiy al rnarnti ns htaith ciii plan which pros ida ben fits to clrgiblc itt red emplovcec tllhcalth en ceplans of

tic onip ins ca on the ompanys dine of the costs htscepl ins hue no issc.ts ide the oiupans current pc lie

pint benefits ire fundd it he lime flies are dirt to participants

Ihe bas for the scls.ction tat the drsc.o ant iM fort mcli plan is diti nuned by nmctching lit nmngi thc payment 01 thi

cpe ib igati ii uncle the dc.fmnc.d bcncefrt hits md lit ilth .are plans ijainst th correspondiiag ytceid of high qualits

nate bond c.qurs rlcnt in ituritris

hinges to mitt c.tiniatc if any of these facto c.oul rcsult in in itomial c.hano to the omp mys pci sro obli itron causing
rclatcd inc.rcr 01 dcc.r ase in rc.porttd net op rating rest Its in the pimiod of chaiagc in thc estimue cart cthe 2013

issut iptions arc u.sed to ceaica.Iatc 201 pin it
cxpcnsc mounts once pc.rc.ontage point chuiga inthc axpced Ic to in

rio of rc.twn on pitt ascts would result in chanac mm pinsi inc pcense for 2011 of approxirnatels 06 umlIron for ftc plan
onc ptrccentagc point c.I ansc in the discount ito would to tilt in oh trig in pension eipen.e for 014 by tpproxinntc.Iy

sO million inc pce cntagc Mitt rncreasc in the discount rite sic md Iran loss cered ftc plans proj ceted bc.nelrt obligation

as of he nd of is approsmnrately 91 million whrlc one perccntagc point dt.creisi in tin di count tart would hasc

rursc.d th plans projc.ctd boncefit ohiuvation of the aid of 201 bs approxim itt fr 64 nullion

cc \otr lb to tlts on ilidated financial St turnouts in this form 10 for furthc.r discussr incA ft ompans rctmrernn

buwit pin

Self Insuranca hIablhtrc.s flit mmpany mc rrerally cell insured for product lmth lity ensironmentil Ii ibilrty medical clar us

cer tar ss uLcers coinpeirsation claims and certain closced mince hat ifitrc.s for pr duct iiability catastrophi insura .e co rlgc

rot uncd for potcentially significant idraidu il claims estimated pros rsron for claims it ported nd fo claini incurred but

not yet rq oitd und the self msinanuc progmar is is ret nkd and rsmsed periodically biscd on industry treua Is historic ii

expc.rcn md mit uiagcmc..ntjudgmc.nt In addition industry trcnd are consideri.d as rthin managencnts udsment for alurng

cli ins hnngos ii assumptions fo such in dtcis as Legal judgments md settlc.mc.nts ir flation ratio medical costs an trial

cxpcrien ouldc.iu.e tstrmnatc to chango it ac ncirtc.rm huic in any of thea factors could nntc.irlIs change the

Compa cesium itc.s for thea self-insurance ci lroatio is causing mrc.lita inc ease or decrea in rt.portcd to cratrng
results ru the ad changc in thc ostirnat
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Iten SI \AGFMF rs DISCLSSIO\ tNI 4NAII SIS 01 1\ tN 141 CO\D1 lION 4N1 Rb SUU 501
ON RAI 1OiS

N4 1NDt SIRIb IM tM St IISIDI tRil

Ia las Dna.. ins Thou aids 1r cgas oftdandPcr S/a ailntenlagela14

Se oW 10 to fbi on ilidatcd inantial Stsenu.nts in this lam lO foi lurth disc.usii in cithe nnprny long fried

tsM.t intpairint.nt

Incomt taxes 1x lass requires ceitam items to be included in the tax return at diffcicnt tunis thin the nuns arc icilected in

the financial statemci Sinc if thcsc diflercnce ac pumancnt such act pcnses tInt ir not dcductitle trw purposes

and ned flown es arc mpoiary set ii or tint such as depreciation npense Ihcse tmporaiy diflcrcnc.e treat

dcl cric.d tix issets and liabililic.s he objccti is of icc.ounting for incomc taxes is to iecogniiethc imount of taxes paabk or

fun hblc for thc cur cit yeii iS def.iicd tm ii ibititi sand ascc.ts for thc futur lix conscque icc of nnt thit han en

iecognied in the financial slatcrnents oi In turns

lit Comp ins ix sscts liabilities and pcnsc art .uj poitcd by historical ea nings and low and fbi or ipany bcst

cstinutcs ant assumptions of futuic earninos When the Compan determincs ned on all nail tIe esidence that it is mom
Ill cl% than not hat dcfcricd fix as tc will not be alizcd valuition allossanc.e ices allished

Si ice sq.nificantjudgincnt required to assi flu futwe hx co isequi.nces of csu ts that ban bccn recognued in thi

Compinys tin ritual statc non sor ta returns th ultnnat to olution cf these csent could result in idjustinent to the

unpanys fi ianc al statuntnt and such adju tincnts could bc mitiral flu ompany bclicns the current issumptions

judonients md other considentions usiA to estimite thc current ycir ciued and detcrrcd tax po ittons arc ippropinic If the

actual out onto if futurt fix cortcquenccs di hi from the tnnat iS as umptic ns dirt to than es or futwc vcnts the

resulting changi to the piosision for inc.omc xis cc uld han in ster al impact on flu ompan results oiopeiaton. smid

iinonci ii position

Saluatlon of acquIsitions allocition ot he put has pricc tIn tangible asscts and liabilitics and identi iabl intar sill

tsscts icquircd rcquuc.c management to mt sicnili tnt estimate in tcrminrng the fai values of a.st tcquiicd and

habihi suinc.d cspecnlly si ith cspc.ct to ontingent consickiati in in thc Recd Minerals ac ursition hcse timatcs tie

Ii sect on information ott timed for utatapt ii cnt of tIn acquired ccmpani futuie cc al parc and future olumc fort ci ts

lh seestunttcscan ncludc butarcnotlmuwtto.thccashflow tha theacquismtioniscxpctedtogenciatt mthcfutircand

thc appropnate sscighrcd asciagc cost of ipitil Ibis estnnatts tic inhcrcntly uncertain and unprcdictable and if dificrent

cctimate sscit usiA the puhi piiu toi thc icquisition mas his becn allocated to the acquired asscts md habilitics

asumcd ffeic.ntls from thc currcnt allocatio lthough th Coinj anj bclieses thc
issumptions pudgmcnts md estbnatcs

elate nc nat It intl appropriat dificrent nsuinptic ns pudiments and cstiniatc cc uld mat rail alfbct the salu act iibcd

it an acquir las ct md potcntials thc onto in rcsults of operati in and iii mciii posiiio iii changts it ihc cnniinsvnt

conside thon in requucd to be ret iidcd
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Itt rn \IA\ GI MF CS DISCE SSION ND 4NAL YSIS OF INAN LAL CONI1 LION 4ND RI SL iS 01

ON RA IONS

CCO INDIS ROsS INC ANI SCBS1DI tRIES

iii in I/ions ands at p1 as y0u /Ai 5/ air an tic nlagr Iala/

1HF NORH MFRIC\ OtL ORPORIION

mine and intrket steam nid metallurgical coil foi usc in po mi eneration and str ci pi odu lion and pros idcs

elcet value added nnmng eivicns br other natural resources nompanies oal is surlace ruined horn Coal ds fioped

mines in Noith Dakota lexas Mississippi isiana and Alabama lotal coal ieseim cm approximate billion tons mm itli

appi oximatels hill ton Lominitted ustomer pursr ant to long Nim contracts

AC oil mm tu consolidated mini ig operations Mississippi ignite Mining ompans Ml MC and Ret inc isis Inc

Rced Minerals oal also pros ides dragline minnie sets ices tot independr nllv 055 ned limcrock
quari ies in lot ida

oal ha ten mm holly own unconsolidated suhsidiarie that cach meet the definition of satiable inter st entity and at

accounted lot usine the quits method

lh oh or lb opei ie Comp my ote or

lie alkirk Mining ompany tall nk
lie Sahine Mining Company Sal mc

lemer Remm we omp soy LL Dcrncmy

addo rek Pesor ices Conipany Caddo reek

OSOta re Mirnog onipany yole rrei

Cam mo Re rI to Is sinin ii

iherty uels ompany Lih uty

Dak nergy Scrvices ik
sortli Smerican Coal orporation Ii dia Pm is are \e Inda

oteau alkrrk nid Sahine mm crc des elop tween 19 and 1981 and operate ligrnte coal nInies under long term mtracts

is ith sai ious utility eust utuers oteau haIku and Sahinc are apitr liied primarily mm iths debt financing smhich the utility

ristomuci ha in anpt and guaranteL Dc ii addo reek 0501 eeh Cami no Re mmd ibei ty collectively smith

ore ru alkirk and Sahme the nconsolidaied Mines mm crc nined to deselop eon truer and operate surlace mine ndei

loin icr in conti acts Deruc ry eo unit need delis Li
irig

coal to its customer in 201 and is exp et to reach trill production

1cm ci ni late 201 liter
ty

commenced prodLiction in 013 an is expected to incieas production mm Is
gr idually irom

nile tow ii 0l Ito thu pro Itietion appioxmiah ly
millioi tot annually ni 19 addo reek Coy ote reek

and amiiio Re ai still dr lopment and aic not xpc cted to he us lull pr duc tionm fin scm erel cars NoDak mm torured to

iC at ao ma tam al
pm

oc siia fal 1nd l5i ma prom id te limnal ad isor erm to di Lnd

patty mm rs ol coal nine in India

he contrat with tire usC mci ob the unconsolidated mines prom ide foi reimnhursemn mit at price based on setual costs plus

ui red pie tax it pe ton ol coal old or actrial costs Iris management ice
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Item MAAGFML VUS DIS SSION ND AA1 YSIS OF INAN CONII IKJ\ AM RUSE Ii 01

OPt RAI IONS

NAC PD1 SI RIPS 1r N1 St BSIDIARIFS

tabular 4rnounts in lhousa ids pt as inted and Pr Share and Perer ntag Lata

Operati ig Results

hr results of pet itions for oal ss re is folloss for th year end Dccc mher 31

Revenue consolidated mines

Royalty and other

Revenues

of sales consolid star mines

Cost of sales royalty and other

01 ii cost of sales

Gross profit

armngs unconsolidated mines

8clling general and administrative expenses

Goodss ill

impairment charge

Amortization of intangibles

lain on sale of assets

Income tax provision

Net income

2013 012 2011

172532 118066 73129

21119 14.301 863

193651 132361 81166

102274 64255

1540 2145 2251

168421 101369 66506

25230 27998 15260

ltectis incomc tax rate fl

See tc for risu sion of the Compaay nneonsohdated ubsidiaries including summarized financial inlbmniation

oal tective income tax rate is aft ctcd the benefit of perce itage depletion he tfeetivc income lix rate in

17 is higl er thin the effŁctis income tax rate in 13 and 2011 primarily due to sIn 11 in mix of taxable income toss ards

ni it Cs ts ith higher cOccI mm ie tax tate and dec re ste in taxable income at entities eligible for percentage depletion

2011 ompared with 2012

he lolIc sting table identif the components of change in ret canes for 2013 compart sx oh 2012

Ret flues

2012 8132361
In rease in 2013 Ibm

42451

12 014

________
6819

193651

Ret enu increased 46 36 in 2013 to 193 sillion from 132.4 Ihon in due to th Reed Mnierals acquisition in

Augu 2312 higher ret enucs at the othei con olidated
mining operations and in increase iovalty and othrr ri oinc The

incica at the oth cons didated mining opeiations sx primarily the result of an increase ii ton dclix er at Ml MC due to

166881

Operating profit

interest expense

46429 45 244

27118

3973

33999

561 6198

37461 43239

Income from continuing operations before income tax pros is ion

24478

2063

1018

35250

3462 9037 4443

31926 32710 29419

21 600

Reed Minerals

0th consolidated mining operations

Roynlty and other income

2013

II
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lien MA CEMt 1HSC1SSlir ANAl YSIS 01 tIN IAI ONDITRIN AND RFSL LI OF
OPFRA IoNS

CO INDUS1RIES LN AN St BSIIRRIES
tat ii Jinc or is or thousands ara as Soa ar 111 Shari and Pcrrc niayc Iata

2012 ompared tsith 2011

he lIoing table id nt Os th components of change in res eons lot 01 cc nip ned with 2011

ts

2011 81766

Increase in 01 front

Reed Mmerals 29212

thcI consolidated mining operations 13

Royalty and other ineorne 5535

201 132 467

Revenues iiicr ased 619% in 2012 to 8132 million horn 881.8 million in 2011 due to th Re Minerals aequisiuon higher

es enues at the consolic ated innig op ration and an increas in royalty and otis income Its increase it the eon olidate

mining opeiations was prima ily the result of an increase in tons delis eied at Ml MC due to improvements it customer

pint and ntcrc wed eustomei requirc ments it the hmeroek dragline mining ops ration in 01 omp ired with 011

lie f7illownig table identifies the components of change in opel ating prof it fom 2012 compa red ills 20 II

Opelat an

2011

Increase decrease in 012 from

Royalty and other income 5114

sOn on sale of sets

Other consolidated mining operations 4794

Reed Minerals

Other selling general and administrative expenses 9561
arnings of unconsolidated mines 241

2012 $4R239

Opeiating proft icreased to 843 million 012 front 833 million in 2011 pmimarily as result of higher ro alt\ and

thei nicomn ins the sale of draghnes and land record in 2012 art increase in consolidated mnnng oper sting ie ults

nd operatin profit conti ibuted by the newly quired Reed Mineials INc ins tease in opcratrrt piolit at th nher

consolidate mining operations attributable to in eased delis erie resulting frc in rmnpros ements at cci tons is pc sscr plant

ni 01 compai ed ss ith 11 and higher niierock dragline ruining operatine profit clue to met med customer requirements

he inememc crc partially oftsct by lughc other selling ge neral and dntinistratixe xpensc primai ily
fi oni an inereci

in mplos rc lat expenses arid 82 million of qsnsitiomrelated costs inc ludine protes mis fees mploy related

costs icieased primai ily due to iii entives tied to the srgnifiemnr expansion of oals business through the ness osote
reck lignite sales agiec ment and the Reed Minerals acquisition

income increased to nirllion in 201 from %94 nsmllion in 011 primarily duc to the factors affdeting openstine

profit nti
lily

oftsct by an niciease mneoi te ax expense du to shift in the mix ltaxahlc mnconic no entities ss oh highem

elf cern mncoisie tax rate
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Item VI4N \GFMFNPS IIS USSJON N1 NAL YS1S 01 FINAN IAI ONDIHON AND St fS OF
OPt RU IONS

NAC INDL FRIES INC AND St BSIDIRIES
Ia/ia in ants in ihea rands

fit as etsd and Per Shar and Pr is rn/ag Data

Financnig ei1vltrs

Net additions to long term debt and revo1vin credit agreements 3620 47 II

Cash dividends paid to NACCO 25624

in in my ties ps id 1192
Other

Net cash provided bs tmancmg actixitres 22428 9110 13318

he mci ease in net cash provided by finans ins activities during 2013 compared with 2012 was primar us due to the absence of

cash dividends paid to CO pciiicillv ofktt h\ reduction in borrowings Borrowings were higher in 2012 to fund th

ac luisrtron of Reed Mrnerils

Financing etiv riles

oal Ii an uneeurcd revolving line of credit of up to 52 million the oal acilit that expires in Nov ember

018 Borrow in ss ost tanding unds the NA oal Facility were 8140 million at December 31 13 At December 31 13

the exses as ail ib lit1 under the NACoil acrlrty was 88 million which is fleets rsduetron for outstanding letteis of credit

rllion

lie oal 1acilrty ha rformancehascd
pricing which set interet rates ha ed up NA oal achieving various levels of

debt to 11311 atios is defined the ACoil acihty Borrowings bear inter st at 1k ating rate plus margin based on

the Icr el of debt to Il31 ratio achieved he applicable mary ins eReetis Os cember 31 2013 for base rate and 1.1 BOR
loins rv crc Utt ansi 50 respectively he Ak oa 11 acil

ity
has commitment Re wInch is based upon ach icr ing various

ItS els of ht to 11 DA ratios he cornmrtr cnt fee was 0.3S on the unused commitment at Detember 31 2013 he

floating ste of interest applicable to the ill acrlriy at Desember 31 013 was 16 including the floating rate margin

reds cc the expo mc to changes in the mark rate of inters st ACoal has entered into an interest rat swap agreement Dr

non fith oslI eilitv icrms of tIre ii terest rate swap agreement spin NCoal to ccciv variable interest rats

rod sas fixed rotc est rate oa1 has interest rate swaps with notional values totaling $100 million at December 31
13 at an as ci ige fixed inter st rate of 1.4 he weighted as erage eflectis ir terest rite including the interest rate swap

sgrcemnc it applic ibIs to the ed is ilriv it Decensber 31 201 00 See Nets arid Ns te tithe onsolidated

rnancral Statements in this Ferns It for turther discussion of NACoal interest rate swap agreement

NA oal acility ontarn restrictive covs nants which require amen other things NA oal to maintain niaxniuin debt

to BIll stio Sf to 00 and an rntcmc coverac ratio of not less than 400 to 100 he NACo ill acilrty provides the

ability to make loan di rd rids and ads anees ACCO wrth une restrictions based on maintaininy maximum debt to

El DA rtio ot 00 to 00 in cs njuncmi Sri vs th nsarritarning unused availability thiesholds of horrowirm capacity as fine

in lie N\CoaI acility of 515 million St cerisber 31 2013 \Ceal was in onsplranee with all coy enants irs the NA oal

Diii ii 2001 and O0S \ACoal issusd urisecs red noses totaling $45 million in private placement the oal Notes

wInch require anns al principal payments of approxumately $6 rssillion which beg in in Octobei 008 and will mature on

Or loIs 014 hr nsr UI ccl nets hr ci rnierest at wi ighied aver flxcJ ctc o5 08 pay able ni annually or

Api il iisd October he NA cal Notes are cdeernable at any tinsc at the option of 54 ed in whole or in part at an

amount eqsral to par plus accrued and unpaid mtcrest pIns 11 ike whole prensium if applicable Uoal had St nirllion

of tlss rvaic placs mens rsoses outstanding at es ensbsr 31 11 Ihs NACoal Notes cont sin certain covs narsts and

restrictions that require irisorry
other things 54 oal to maintain certain net ws rth Icr rye arid interest coy emage ratios and

limit drvrslcnds to 54 based upon maintaining ma mnstrm debt to BI IDA ratio of 2S to 100 At Decenshsr 31 211

eal was cc mpliarsce wmih ill covenants in tIre NACoaI Notes

ml has dci saud note tay able to Coteau which heirs niterest based on the applicable quartem ly lcdcral sbsont term

nstsrs st rate is aisnourscs fmom tune to tiruse by this internal Revenue Service At 1ecemher 31 2013 the bat uses of the note

was Irs mllion rod the mmsteisst rate was
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hem \1AA FM \1 DIS SS1O tND AA1 YSIS OF FIANC1 OSDI 1O AD Ri SF OF
OPER lOsS

\A IS Si RILS lS AISI St BSIIIARH

ii ulw in iits in Jhoiisand it \oI do id 11 at 16 iecntat hi/a

Off Babnce Shret kirangements

hI ii has not cut ed into di hal inee hr ci inancin aI moei nt othei th in 01 elation ei is ho Ii are di closed in

the mU actual rhl atio is tahl ah

apit tiE xpnnditurrs

olloss in table is ii Sun ma es actual irid inc capital penditui in mill mis

Actu

211 011 2012

NAt oal 594 52.1 37.1

harti ed expenditures 14 ni lude mine equipnient and des clopIneitt at existing mines liec expend tuies are rtper ted

to he thnd from ink rna generitLd finds id bank horross ings The inerea in planned and ietual capit il expen litures in

01 md Ol 11 xn 201 Ins Is is due to di i2line ureha es dia2line efurhishment coal rrseis sequisitions and other

ipit ml xpendituie iela to tb et ti olidated mints

ipital Struciurt

SAt oil eapit strueti is pi sented helois

tkL cuib

ii at

ash and cash equivalents 27 459 4232
Other net taiigihle ast 242486 166 ôs 6221

and coal supply agreements nt 59685 69 752 10067

aset 302198 210 26 61

lots debt 163843 138021 25 822

IotiIequit I3815 l02S 36100

Debt to total eapitaiiiatton 54% 57% 3o

in ase in oth tangible assets dunn 013 is pr imat
ly

due to in inerea in piope is plant md equipine ni

ins cut and otliei lonn rum as ets stid der in nsion liabilities The incie ise in piopeits plant md quipruent iii

primai ily
due die pureh sc ol diagline iniri rights md arid equipnir nt mncrrase in othei lorif term asset ivas

in minly attribut ible to indemnification assets elated to tht Reed Mmeuals aequisitioi md munounts plated in eseio\ lot

lutur ins estnient lie ineiease in iris rot ry prnnai ilv atti ihutable to an increase in supplie and coal mientors at

MI nd Kr ed Mu ci Os he dcci in ns in liabilities is as drie tithe ft mp ui amending its pension plan during

011 c/c pro iou heneiuts dIe Use as of die rlt se business on leeemhc 31 113 antI is rahle ietui on assets

lotal tlebt incieasetl nmillion pminiai fund tIme rease ni prop rtv plant umd equipment tlianges ii uiLue mnipari

taxt arid act ounts eeeisable frt iii the uneon olidated iine and million p1 iced in es iris lou futruc estment

owl uf ii cit as el im iii due to net in me if 531 million and 54 million crc mse in ac unirilat rI othei

eomr reliensus loss ri 13

11 00K
At oil expe im roved opeu aunt pci iou ni mnee euall at it LO ml mmin opeiations in 14 St the uneonsolidatrd mming

itio steam er alto is delis errd in 011 expected to increast over 1913 prr sided et toolers aebu it cuni ntIs

planr ed pois er p1 tIit oprr ituif In el 1emer coirunenced delivering coil to its eustomei in and full odnetion levr Is

ur ex1m ct to Ic re mehed ii lat 2015 ib ty al ommeri oduri ion lie nitr oab in 2113 ion Mussis it pu ois er

om nnss ntis mpei ounf Fnerg ulity noduction be cbs at hents aie eted to mcrease grarlualls Iron

imi Iliou to milliou tHis iii 201 Ito full
bitt

Iurtiou olappioximatrl millioi toim ol lignite roal nnualls in .911
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lIrm NACF \IE IS IIS SSION ND NALYS1S 011 NCI OSDl f10 Nl RI SU1fS 01
OPI R\1l0\S

\A I\IL$1 1405 AM St BSI1I RH
rho or dma is ii 1110 nods as Voted id Share and Pr nm Ba

FISAS IAI RF%IF\%

Uperatuig th suits

esults of au for II RB ere buoy for th us ended December 41

20 011

547790 521567 493047

40960 4SIS 348
Interest expense 1279 2635 523l

461

Net income 21200 l8363

11cr ti im mr tax ate 36 04

201 mpr red siath 2012

fhr lollo in table identifies the rompon mts of change in ri criu for 013 compared ss ith 012

Re\c11

521561

er asc decrease in 201 from

Unit volume nd product mix

Foreign currency 809
2013 547791

Res enu nereaed 00 to Ss million in If from 21 million in pi
in iril due to an increase in sales of ne

pi
duct ith higher pu ount mun1y in tlr onsuniei market and improsed Ic of omunri cial products artiills

offset bs decreases iii the internabional Lonsurn nì irketo hr inric in res enues ss al pai tially offset by lo er aserage

elliri pr es produ to tail usloi iei due to in ur Ise in pioir otions md unfisorabk loieign euireney nioseine it in

If eonip red ss tb as the Canadian doll ikeued at ainst the dollar pm ti illy offset by strengthennur of the

Mexican
teso

he lloss
ing fable identil th component change oper itin profit for 01 compar ss ith

Opo dii

2012 35815

lnciea dec iease from

Gross profit

us iroirrientil
experie Soutliarn inc and Sit \jr

Other selling general and administrative expenses 7352
nviror mental expen Pi tori 43

Foreign currency 135

2014 40960

IBB oper dine profit iea ed bo 841 million in 14 fr null ion in 01 pi unarily re ult of Ii gher gi

profit and millior dcereas in 1115ff ci su mninenital expense related to ihi arfx oilinuitmc lit shire in

ens no merit il Ii ibilitie it HUB Southern md Mt Airy loran lhe me ms in gr ss profit ss prun rnly

attrit utabk to an mci eas al ness prodi cts ss itli In her pric points in conip ired ss Oh 241 partially o1f set by

iower pm as on ouiparaoie pm
ducts 10 Ui ire ea in 0111 selling Icn ml an idministratise

cxp ns niainl du to
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Item \1 tGFMI DLS USSIO\ \SD YSIS OF F\ NCI COINDI ION AM RI St LI 01

OPLeR IONS

CO INDLSIRILS IN YNI St BSIDIARIFS

labul it 1///o/a/is /1/ J//ou5/fld\ p1 as \oI Li//P 190 I1UtL tiP ece// ge Data

IQE 1111% AND P1 AL RESOL IS

Ihe folk is in table detail the chan cash floss foi th ears eiide iiee rnbei 31

Operating activities

set income 093 200

leptceiation and amortization L479 31 13 362

332 19h

Workmg eapta1 chances 11 854 LISt 10703

Net cash pro%ided b3 operating actusities 40 754 P90 13364

Las citing actisaties

xpenditures for property plant and equtpmcnt 313 3223 910

Othi

Net cash used fOr Inv sting activities 2278 215

ash flow before financing activities 38476 24175 14301

et hh pr is led crai mp actis ities mt ased 513 in un in 013 compared is ith 12 pi iinai lv due the chari9 in

ii oikin capit ii and the inert ise in net income parti sIls oil set hs the hange in other operating ictixities hs eliinge in

woikine apital in 13 is mainli th result ol an increase in accounts pa ablc and pa roll latLd uals
pat tiallI

off et

in mere is in ins cntc t9
and leL owit re cii able fIre in tease in iie ouiits psyahic is ts prnn ii i1 due to the it crease in

ins entoi id shill in paxinent mis ith thin suppliers he increase in insents va di iii ii pi niai ily hs hi ii sal

tore air uid hi he is er igm ins ento cost result of shift in mix highei priced prado ts is ik the ineicas in

nuts is ccii able is as dii sir hi hi saL lie dere as in other peranng retis iii is as irirnil due to lranc in

111313 liahilits

inancing activities

Net reduction Sf np term debt and iexoli ing credit rgreenicnts 21229 3519

Ca9h dividettds paid to NACCO 20000 15000 5000
tin

menit tees paid 1.212 121

Net cash used br financing actlvittes 41229 30731 11 10498

Ii ni rease ii net ci Ii used flu financing aetis ities is as prim in ly th result of an mci ease in ment made on the fill

mci oh ci md cr in dii idenns paid to is

mirmcing ctiiihes

111313 his 51193 in Ilion sernor seemed hot ting iate rexols ig cr dit facility the 111313 iciliiy that Lxpires in JuL 017

lie ohli ci ass rnidei tie 111313 Iicility are secured by substantially all of HBB osscts lie approximate hook aInc ol

lIBEls held collan al undei lie 11131 acility is as 5228.9 million as of Iecemh 31 2113

lie nra imuni as ailahil ty ur deI tIn 111313 ility is oi ci ire h5 hoi ross inc base dciii ed hi nm adsance rites agaimisi

cli able acconi ts receis able ins ent ry and ti leinirks of the hon ois en as dehiried ri the 111313 Ia ilit1 Adtustmu to

rcsors ss hooked agnn thc se et ioclu 3m ins entors re cmi es will ch inge the el gihle oi rowing bait and therm inipi



Mu

Cr ii

ii

ii ii his

Ii
ci ii
ii It Itt Itt

31 ii

11

th .ii ItCL1I LIII 14 ItIfl aria

ti iii It
ft 1tfl

ilti tit

It tt
rda 11 It

cut

%l it

..t vi 13 ii it

nil

15th

I.u tb II

34 ci
1St $1517

dtt SbS .719

.4

It It cr zst yr imi It

1101 ti

It

iii It



II \I FMF DIS SSION AND 515 OF 1\AN IAL CONDI ION AND RI SUI SS OF

01 ErR IONS

I\Dt SF IF IN NI Si IISID1 R1ES
ltd Ia do as tv Ihousands as ott and Per Short ad err enta Data

he
jiu

hare and othei hlig itlons art pi nisai iii for ace mists payable pen putt
lime dets and accrued

pr
vroll and intet

or ition

Pension luisding can uy sign teatst aeh due to plan amt ndmentr eha es in tht us uket aluc of plon aSSet

legislation and the om any decisto sr to eS ntiibute abos the minimum tegul slurs fundino equut nients 8r result

pension tut dtr ha not been included in the shie ahoxe 111313 dots not expect to ontrihute to its pension plans in 914

Pen ton hr it fit nt art tnadt from et sI the pensi in p1 in

Off Balan Sheet Ai rangemenis

111313 ha not entett into any bI ii ince he finant ml rtangenir nt othei than op sting 1etse hich ire di 1oscd in Us

ontr icti sl hliarions tsblc ab

sip 151 Expenditure

lloss inc table sr hi Is rtussrsvu es actual and pl snnt capt sI peisditures tin millions

Pltsnnrd xciual iciual

2054 2011 2012

67 23

11 inned isenditure Iti do 14 ire pitniarily tooling his nes pioducts srsd mpros ements to HBBs inloimation lechtioloe\

mIt asti ueture here
cap

nditu cs tic xpectt to he funded Ir ar intro ally ent riled It nd and hank hr ross inas

Capital Sit uctut

11313 capital struetus 1e nted loss

20t1 01 in

ash and cash oquivalents Ii 2784 713

Other net ingihlt assets 70700 80003 303

Net aset 70711 82 787 12076

otal debt 18447 3967fi 21

Iota equity 52204 43111 9153

1t 1st to tot puahi sf0 26% 48 22

Other it sngihl dLei eased nitl lit is Ii am Dc cmhei II 211 prussai ly
due to si set ease in ount payable ci5

result of shift in pay nit sit terms tritE cci taii uppliers an increase its oth 5r current ltahilmtme tom met cased payt oll related

aeri ual sd changt us dctei red uscomc tax pa tt
ly

of Es by an in ease its mit istory ai accounts met cit able ssd

hange tn 111313 misit liii tlity he mere is its ins enloty tr as di is cis higher sales force is amsd higher ss erage

ins erstors ists due to shift issix to hi1 het priced prodrict ss bile the in tease tts account recets able as drir en by higher

sales 13 co Impate tr Is 01

otal debt dt med 82 million dime tp iym sits mad durttsg 2013

lot il cquttv ntrcased 89 tnt lion prim idly sttrthutahle to 111313s iset toscome 8S nsillio tin 2113 and $1.1 decrease in

aecttmulatcd other cotispielmensise loss matitly due to changes in cash hots hedging and pension parltallv ofiiet by $59

nilliort of dis alt isds psi duritig 113

111313 tu get con ttnitr the siddle marktt isass consunser titsnttcs to strttggle is tth fitmanct il atsd econotiste concet us

ccmit ttt in he us lilt rs sikei
p1 ttni ni th amalt kin ip harm tisarl as hirh iH13 partcl atm 5e
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Itcrn JANACF \IF\ DISC SSIO\ 1tNI ANL%SIS OF FINN 1A1 O\Dl1 ION AN RESt uS OF

OVER IONS

\4CCO INDE SI RH I\C AND SUBSIDI RIFS
labuiw 4/0 i/ in lliousaiuis sr Lpt as \otad and harr and lcis nag iia

2013 ompaud ritl 2012

he ioiioK ing tahk identities iRe coniponents ot chant in icr cnues 1w Ii compared ss ith 01

2012 224695

lucre iw dcci ca in 2013 hour

Closed stores 25865
KC eompaiable stoir sIes 069

IC comparable store sales

New store saks 054

Other 236

2013 $196033

Rcr cnues creased 12 to 51900 nullior in 01 compare wills nullior in 201 primarily as result of closing

nprofitible md GE stores and de 111K in comparable store riles at both md LilE Ihe decrease in comptrahle

storc ik ss as mai sly
due to few cr custome visits and reduction in store ansactions at both stoic formats utial1 otfscr

highet as era 1e sale trans ction alue in 201 compared ss ith 12 hesc decreases eie partialls oils hr ales it

ness
ly opened store

\t De e/nhcr 31 13 operated 22 stores compaied is itl 261 stoics at Ieecmhe 31 12 GE op rated toit it

Iç oh 2113 compai with stores at Decemb 31 201 he Kitchen Collection re count does not include

st ow 44 Stor al aeenhr Ii an Decinbr icspc tis el that only pen for tIm holvta mcllng

he following tabi identifies the components ol change in operating loss br 01 comp ii with 2112

Ocr I1
fl

2012 4512
Irw rca decrease in 13 Ibm

compat able stotes 5198
isess tort

Asset impairment charges 421
Scvrrance char cs

Lower of cost or market charge 341

omparable stores 303

Selling general and administrative expenses and other 681

losecl totes 541

2013 $10903
recorded irs operatirio loss it It mdli in 2013 compared with an opcratmg loss of 54.5 million in 112 Ili

cratin loss in 13 rs primarily the mesult of icduecd saks and shift in sale mix to lower margin products at and

IC rnparahk stoics md KC new stoics In addition KC recorded or pairinent charges for leasehold improver icnts and

fuiriitur an fixtures at ccrtam store of million in 2013 compared is ith 50 million in an irleiease of 504 nullioti

in scicianec charges arid $0.3 million lowet of cost or market mventory chargo hese items were partially offset ba

his orahle selling go cral arid admirnstiative expenK pi imaiilr due to redurtl ms in niployee related and supplies expense

repo te loss of S6 million in 201 ompared with net loss of 53 niilli is in 01 piimarily du I4ctois

lcd
rig

tl sn in operati loss
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Item MANAGLMF\TS D1 USSION tNI %\AI SIS II HAN IAI COND11ON ANI RI SUIJS OF
0PER1 I0iS

NACCO INDI RIF INC NI St BSIDIARIIsS

labula for mats in lirousands p1 as Voa and lb Share card Fern n/c Jatai

lQt IDIfl AM APIIAI RISOtRFS

Cash loss

he fbI is jug tablLs det ul the hangc in cash ii wi fbi the years ended December 31

2013 Ot2 iai

Operating aetivlties

Is 6884 3.087

4162 3611 551

992

Working capital changes 6357 3542

Net cash provided used for operating activities 10071 3.754 13.8S

Ins estmg atRities

xpcaditures for property plant and equipment 150 3872 72
Other

Net cash used for investing activities 2113 3852 739

Cash how before financing activities 12k 184 981 512086

Net ci Ii

pros lcd lb operating tn itres decicascd 81 milhon during 201 eon ipared with 201 pinmarily due

the change ni working capital and the increase in the net loss in 2013 compared with 201 he change in is orking capital was

prinnarily the iesnlt of laiger decrease in mc iunts pi3ahle as result of the lower lex els of inventoiv in 2013 and milk

dccii ase in ins emory in 2013 cornpai ed with 012 primaril due to closing less stores in 013 than in 2012 he inc rc we

in depicciation is prnnirrly due to the inclusion of mpairment charges for leasehold impros ements and furniture and fixtures

it certain stoics or 51 million in 2313 coiirp red is ith SO iii 11 ior ii 012

xpcrrditu for pr pc it p1 nit and equip stein decreased primaril duc to the reduction in the number of stor is

2013 0t2 ha

Financing activities

Net additions reductions of long terra debt and resols
tug credit agr crnents 1463 21 481

Financing fees paid 17
_____

223 204

Net cash prosided used for financing ictisities 1443 242 685

Ii SI million cli inge in net cash pros riled iv used fhr financint actni iti during 201% conrparc is tIn 01 is is pr na nril

due to borrowings outstanding wider the solving credit agr ecriw nt at Dccc inber .31 2313

Finaneink Aetis ities

ha 8333 million secured res oh iii liric of credit that expires in ugust 201 the acilrty lie obligation under

the ncrlik ire secured by substantially all assets of he approxunnate hook due of asset Id collateral

under the KC Far lits is is itO nulliorn as of eecmben 31 2313

he nraxnnum is nilahrlnt under the is ilifi
is dciii ccl horn borrossin ha normul usung eligible ins cntori and

ligible credit card accounts receivable as defined in the KO Facdity l3oirois nngs bear interest at floating rate plus largirn

wed on the excess ii aitahilrty under tIre agreenient as defi ted in the KI Facnint islsich can he either base rate plus

ii ir in .00 on IBOR plus inn irgrn of 30 as of Dec ember 31 13 lie acilrta also
requires fee of 3.3

in nnrnr on the unused cornrnitiircnt he flu nting rat of interest applicable to the KC Facility at December 31 aü 13 ii is

rucludung the float in rate mar
gin
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Item MAN tGF %IP DISCt SSION ND AN 4INSIS OF lINANC IAI ONDI flON tND RI SUI IS OF
On R4IIONS

NA INDL flit tM AND UBSIDI4RIt

ml imowil Ihosnassas Mc p1 as o1ed ass Pa Shasv ant/Pc east Ia

Capital Stn flute

ipitil situ tint is pi tented low

Dttmb 31

iii tan
iar iiwno7iy

Othcinettantibk.asus 37451 134 531
Nit asia4 38232 43656 5424

lotildtbt 1460 146
total equity ThiäW ______-.---
Debt to total capitalization

Debt to tots1 ipitihiation is not meaningful

Ohu netlangible ass incrtvcdS nulhonftoniflecmbei 31 012 prunaiilydm toidecieaceinacc.ount pasableand

mnnlory lhtd twa tinau untsra3ablelsmainbtheresultofarductlonrninvc.nlor purthisesdutc lowerthan

ctr cte sal dunn tI 2013 hollda idlir scison and thc decitse in innnton is from the crease in number at

do atl c.enbi.r OlcomptrelwithI tmbti Th_01

OL II 00k

.onsu net traffic to all nail locations and
pit iculaily outict malls continued to dc.dine 013 csped tly in thc fourth

quuti Prospccts lot ill are uncertam ewerhe useholds were establi lied iii 2013 and this trend is expected to continue

Ol4bec.iiscthcmddlc multtconunericmiinsund rpressun asarsul dlininuslzndeconoiniconc.ern The

ncerns art eq cted to continue to dunpen onsumei tentiine.nt and limit consumer spending levels tot KCs tatue eustomu

in 01 lnth contctt MC t.xpct to close oerS0 torts in 014 with the msjontvc.losirg inthe fir tquartu aspaitofa

pioprun to tIcs undc peifb ming stoic md realign the businc wound corc stoics which ertonn will ae.ceptable

profitbiits MC plan Umaintun mlowernuinbei of ton inl0l4and asaitsult eqx.ct

ompucd with 2011

bc nct efkc.t of closin twos caly in Z014 and the anticipated opcning of small numbu of new stoics dunn the second

half of 2011 is cqxct to contribute to sinitmcanth mmprond oporatu results with the obje list of mp iching brcal cscn

ox.iaiinjpiofltin OL4 compatedwith the pnificant loss in 2014 ks pait of MC piogramtorealign its busum the

onpa plans not onh to close wipiolitable totes but also to reduce etpei sos through iumbet ol cost meduction prognnis

mtitsh adqumrleis distnbuticn centu and rcmunmng core stoics and by krmina ing its medicalbn fit pPm Ills proeran

utpu.ted rudy implenxnted in the fir half of0l4 and generate signilic tnt impiosemnents durin tle sccond ha of

04 Inaddi ion MCi focuscdondiismngc nsumi interestba ktowcidhmphem maipinproducts

ong Iciui MC plan to fetus on comp eabl tore silts wth iround solid coi stoic portfolio MC npccts to

ac ci iplish this mhz nc salts solumc profitability throut continued re.fmt.mcnt fits lonnab and ons 111W its .5
01 spe itt pioduct otleimnas met hanlesc mit stoit display and apparanct while unprosuig invcniory efficiency and ott

innntory contro panic ilmr locus ill be on increasing sales of highcr in irvin product he company will also continue

to cstluate and as Icase contacts pumit clot or restiucturt lcase.s len mu deipetforming an 1oss-geneiatu stores In the

ir Wm MC to add storcs cautiousis and focus its giowth on its core Kitchen olliction stores with storas

cpectt.d to bc located in sound pi sitions in strong outlet malk also expects to focus on pow th opportunities in

conmnmt.ru

39
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Item MANACL ML NT DISCL SSIO\ NL NAI YSIS OF I4L ONDI ION AND RF SLIF OF

OPLR IONS

CCINDt FRIF lN ANI BSIDIARIFS

lain mona in ri/i as as Voted an ci lram ar IV my ntage Data

5h rc Repurchast Pro rarn
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Item MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Tabular Amounts in Thousands Except as Noted and Per Share and Percentage Data

accumulated other comprehensive income is initially transferred to balance sheet account e.g inventory for pension-related

amounts instead of directly to income or expense The Company adopted this guidance during the first quarter of 2013

Because this guidance is related to presentation only the adoption did not have any effect on the Companys financial position

results of operations or cash flows

EFFECTS OF FOREIGN CURRENCY

HBB operates internationally and enters into transactions denominated in foreign currencies As result the Company is

subject to the variability that arises from exchange rate movements The effects of foreign currency on operating results at

HBB is discussed above The Companys use of foreign currency derivative contracts is discussed in Item 7A Quantitative

and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk of this Form 10-K

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Companys previous manufacturing operations like those of other companies engaged in similarbusinesses involved the

use disposal and cleanup of substances regulated under environmental protection laws The Companys NACoa1 and Bellaire

subsidiaries are affected by the regulations of numerous agencies particularly the Federal Office of Surface Mining the

United States Environmental Protection Agency the U.S Army Corps of Engineers and associated state regulatory authorities

In addition NACoal and Bellaire closely monitor proposed legislation concerning SMCRA CAA reauthorization of the

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act the Clean Water Act the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation

and Liability Act the Endangered Species Act and other regulatory actions

Compliance with these increasingly stringent standards could result in higher expenditures for both capital improvements and

operating costs The Companys policies stress environmental responsibility and compliance with these regulations Based on

current information management does not expect compliance with these regulations to have material adverse effect on the

Companys financial condition or results of operations See Item in Part of this Form 10-K for further discussion of these

matters

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements contained in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and

elsewhere throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements within

the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 These

forward-looking statements are made subject to certain risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ

materially from those presented Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements

which speak only as of the date hereof The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking

statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date hereof Such risks and uncertainties with respect to each

subsidiarys operations include without limitation

NACoa1 the successful integration of the Reed Minerals acquisition changes in the demand for and market prices of

metallurgical coal produced at the Reed Minerals operations changes in tax laws or regulatory requirements including

changes in mining or power plant emission regulations and health safety or environmental legislation changes in costs

related to geological conditions repairs and maintenance new equipment and replacement parts fuel or other similar items

regulatory actions changes in mining permit requirements or delays in obtaining mining permits that could affect

deliveries to customers weather conditions extended power plant outages or other events that would change the level of

customers coal or limerock requirements which would have an adverse effect on results of operations weather or

equipment problems that could affect deliveries to customers changes in the power industry that would affect demand for

NACoals reserves changes in the costs to reclaim current NACoa1 mining areas 10 costs to pursue
and develop new

mining opportunities 11 legal challenges related to Mississippi Powers Kemper County Energy Facility in Mississippi 12
changes or termination of long-term mining contract or customer default under contract and 13 increased competition

including consolidation within the industry

HBB changes in the sales prices product mix or levels of consumer purchases of small electric appliances changes in

consumer retail and credit markets bankruptcy of or loss of major retail customers or suppliers changes in costs

including transportation costs of sourced products delays in delivery of sourced products changes in or unavailability

of quality or cost effective suppliers exchange rate fluctuations changes in the foreign import tariffs and monetary policies
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Item MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Tabular Amounts in Thousands Except as Noted and Per Share and Percentage Data

and other changes in the regulatory climate in the foreign countries in which HBB buys operates andlor sells products

product liability regulatory actions or other litigation warranty claims or returns of products customer acceptance of

changes in costs of or delays in the development of new products 10 increased competition including consolidation within

the industry and 11 changes mandated by federal state and other regulation including health safety or environmental

legislation

KC changes in gasoline prices weather conditions the level of consumer confidence and disposable income as result of

economic conditions unemployment rates or other events or conditions that may adversely affect the number of customers

visiting Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet Chef stores changes in the sales prices product mix or levels of consumer

purchases of kitchenware small electric appliances and gourmet foods changes in costs including transportation costs of

inventory delays in delivery or the unavailability of inventory customer acceptance of new products the

anticipated impact of the opening of new stores the ability to renegotiate existing leases and effectively and efficiently close

under-performing stores increased competition and the impact of tax penalties under health care reform legislation

beginning in 2015

Item 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Companys subsidiaries NACoal HBB and KC have entered into certain financing arrangements that require interest

payments based on floating interest rates As such the Companys financial results are subject to changes in the market rate of

interest There is an inherent rollover risk for borrowings as they mature and are renewed at current market rates The extent of

this risk is not quantifiable or predictable because of the variability of future interest rates and business financing requirements

To reduce the exposure to changes in the market rate of interest NACoal and HBB have entered into interest rate swap

agreements for portion of its floating rate financing arrangements The Company does not enter into interest rate swap

agreements for trading purposes Terms of the interest rate swap agreements require the subsidiaries to receive variable

interest rate and pay fixed interest rate See Note and Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K

For purposes of risk analysis the Company uses sensitivity analysis to measure the potential loss in fair value of financial

instruments sensitive to changes in interest rates The Company assumes that loss in fair value is an increase to its liabilities

The fair value of the Companys interest rate swap agreements was receivable of $0.9 million at December 31 2013

hypothetical 10% decrease in interest rates would cause decrease of $0.2 million in the fair value of interest rate swap

agreements and the resulting fair value would be receivable of $0.7 million

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATE RISK

HBB operates internationally and enters into transactions denominated in foreign currencies principally the Canadian dollar

the Mexican peso and to lesser extent the Chinese yuan and Brazilian real As such HBBs financial results are subject to the

variability that arises from exchange rate movements HBB uses forward foreign currency exchange contracts to partially

reduce risks related to transactions denominated in foreign currencies and not for trading purposes These contracts generally

mature within twelve months and require the companies to buy or sell Canadian dollars See Note and Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K

For purposes of risk analysis the Company uses sensitivity analysis to measure the potential loss in fair value of financial

instruments sensitive to changes in foreign currency exchange rates The Company assumes that loss in fair value is either

decrease to its assets or an increase to its liabilities The fair value of the Companys foreign currency exchange contracts was

net receivable of $0.1 million at December 31 2013 Assuming hypothetical 10% weakening of the U.S dollar compared

with the Canadian dollar and Brazilian real at December 31 2013 the fair value of foreign currency-sensitive financial

instruments which represents forward foreign currency exchange contracts would be decreased by $0.4 million compared with

its fair value at December 31 2013 It is important to note that the change in fair value indicated in this sensitivity analysis

would be somewhat offset by changes in the fair value of the underlying receivables and payables
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COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The Company uses certain commodities including steel and diesel fuel in the normal course of its mining processes As such

the cost of operations is subject to variability as the market for these commodities changes The Company monitors this risk

and from time to time enters into derivative contracts to hedge this risk The Company does not currently have any such

derivative contracts outstanding nor does the Company have any significant purchase obligations to obtain fixed quantities of

commodities in the future

Item FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this Item is set forth in the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data contained in Part IV of

this Form 10-K and is hereby incorporated herein by reference to such information

Item CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE

There were no disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure for the three-year period ended

December 31 2013

Item 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures An evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the

participation of the Companys management including the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer of the

effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report Based on

that evaluation these officers have concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effective

Managements report on internal control over financial reporting Management is responsible for establishing and

maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting Under the supervision and with the participation of management

including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer the Company conducted an evaluation of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation under the

framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework 1992 framework management concluded that the Companys
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2013 The Companys effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2013 has been audited by Ernst Young LLP an independent registered

public accounting firm as stated in its report which is included in Item 15 of this Form 10-K and incorporated herein by

reference

Changes in internal control There have been no changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the fourth quarter of 2013 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the

Companys internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None

65



PART III

Item 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information with respect to Directors of the Company will be set forth in the 2014 Proxy Statement under the subheadings

Business to be Transacted Election of Directors Director Nominee Information which information is incorporated

herein by reference

Information with respect to the audit review committee and the audit review committee financial expert will be set forth in the

2014 Proxy Statement under the heading Business to be Transacted Election of Directors Director Meetings and

Committees which information is incorporated herein by reference

Information with respect to compliance with Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by the Companys Directors

executive officers and holders of more than ten percent of the Companys equity securities will be set forth in the 2014 Proxy

Statement under the subheading Business to be Transacted Election of Directors Section 16a Beneficial Ownership

Reporting Compliance which information is incorporated herein by reference

Information regarding the executive officers of the Company is included in this Form 10-K as Item 4A of Part as permitted by

Instruction to Item 40 1b of Regulation S-K

The Company has adopted code of ethics applicable to all Company personnel including the principal executive officer

principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or other persons performing similar functions The code of

ethics entitled the Code of Corporate Conduct is posted on the Companys website at www.nacco.com under Corporate

Governance Amendments and waivers of the Companys Code of Corporate Conduct for directors or executive officers of the

Company if any will be disclosed on the Companys website or on current report on Form 8-K

Item 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to executive compensation will be set forth in the 2014 Proxy Statement under the subheadings

Business to be Transacted Election of Directors Director Compensation and Executive Compensation which

information is incorporated herein by reference

Item 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management will be set forth in the 2014 Proxy

Statement under the heading Beneficial Ownership of Class Common and Class Common which information is

incorporated herein by reference

Information with respect to compensation plans including individual compensation arrangements under which equity

securities are authorized for issuance will be set forth in the 2014 Proxy Statement under the subheading Business to be

Transacted Election of Directors Equity Compensation Plan Information which information is incorporated herein

by reference

Item 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information with respect to certain relationships and related transactions will be set forth in the 2014 Proxy Statement under the

subheadings Business to be Transacted Election of Directors Director Meetings and Committees and Certain

Business Relationships which information is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information with respect to principal accountant fees and services will be set forth in the 2014 Proxy Statement under the

heading Business to be Transacted Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for

the Current Fiscal Year which information is incorporated herein by reference
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FART IV

Item 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

and The
response to Item 15a1 and is set forth beginning at page F-I of this Form 10-K

Listing of Exhibits See the exhibit index beginning at page X- of this Form 10-K

The response to Item 15b is set forth beginning at page X-1 of this Form 10-K

Financial Statement Schedules The response to Item 15c is set forth beginning at page F-49 of this Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

NACCO Industries Inc

By Is Elizabeth Loveman

Elizabeth Loveman

Director of Financial Reporting

Principal Accounting Officer

March 2014
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer March 2014

Is Alfred Rankin Jr principal executive officer Director

Alfred Rankin Jr

March 2014

Senior Vice President Finance Treasurer and Chief

Is J.C Butler Jr Administrative Officer principal financial officer

J.C Butler Jr

Director of Financial Reporting principal March 2014

Is Elizabeth Loveman accounting officer

Elizabeth Loveman

John Jumper Director March 2014

John Jumper

Dennis LaBarre Director March 2014

Dennis LaBarre

Richard de Osborne Director March 2014

Richard de Osborne

James Ratner Director March 2014

James Ratner

Britton Taplin Director March 2014

Britton Taplin

David Taplin Director March 2014

David Taplin

John Turben Director March 2014

John Turben

David Williams Director March 2014

David Williams

J.C Butler Jr by signing his name hereto does hereby sign this Form 10-K on behalf of each of the above named and

designated directors of the Company pursuant to Power of Attorney executed by such persons
and filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission

Is J.C Butler Jr March 2014

J.C Butler Jr Attorney-in-Fact
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ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

ITEM ITEM 15a1 AND AND ITEM 15c

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

LIST OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC

CLEVELAND OHIO

F-i



FORM 10-K

ITEM 15a1 AND

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

LIST OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following consolidated financial statements of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries are incorporated by reference

in Item

Report of Ernst Young LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm For each of the three
years in the

period ended December 31 2013 F-3

Report of Ernst Young LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting Year ended December 31 2013 F-4

Consolidated Statements of Operations Year ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 F-5

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income LossYear ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 F-6

Consolidated Balance Sheets December 31 2013 and December 31 2012 F-7

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Year ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 F-8

Consolidated Statements of Equity Year ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 F-9

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F- 10

The following consolidated financial statement schedules of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries are included in

Item 15c

Schedule Condensed Financial Information of the Parent

Schedule IlValuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the SEC are not required under

the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of NACCO Industries Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets ofNACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries collectively

the Company as ofDecember 312013 and 2012 and the related consolidated statements ofoperations comprehensive

income loss cash flows and equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2013 Our audits also

included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15a These financial statements and schedules

are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements and schedules based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We

believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries at December 31 2013 and 2012 and the

consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31

2013 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial

statement schedules when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole present fairly in all

material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2013

based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission 1992 Framework and our report dated March 2014 expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Cleveland Ohio

March 2014
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Repoit of lot ependent Rcgisterd Publk courrting Firm

he 1-f oar of Directors nd Stockholders of Industries Inc

We have audited \CC Industries Inc and uhsidiarrcs nitcrnal control over fin ineial ep rtino as of
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Subsidiaries in inageinent is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial repoitnig and for its
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port on internal control os ci financial reporting in Item PA ofthe orni 10 Our re ponsihi1ity is to express an opinion

ni th company internal control over fin Tncial repoitmg based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accor dance with thc standards of the Public om any Accounting Oversight Board United
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opinion

company internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assuranc regarding the

reliability of financial repornng and the prep ration of financial statements for extcmnal purposes in accordance vs ith

2enerally accepted accountm principles co irpa rys internal control over linarier il Iting includes those policies
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fran action and dispositions of the issets oftli company piovide reasonable assurance that trinsactions are recorded

neeessuy to permit prep uration of finmcial statements in accordance wit generally accepted accounting principles
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acqusition use or disposition of the company assets that could have material effect on the inranci nl statements

Because of its inherent Iinrmtafions intern ul cor trol over financial reporting may riot prey em or lctcci misstatements ls

projections of any evaluation of effeetis eness future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance vvith the polici cr pnoccdures may detenror ite

our opinion CO Industries lire and Subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective internal control

civ ci financial reportino as of Decemhc 31 211 based on the OSO criteria

alsc ha audited iii aeeordtnce vvith thc standards of tIre Public on pany Accounting Os ersrght Board nited

States tIre consolidated balance sheets of AC CO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries as of Dec ember 31 013 arid 201
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CONSO II VII IA1 EVIEN ES Of CASh FE OWS
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

In thousands Except as noted and Per Share and Percentage Data

NOTE 1Principles of Consolidation and Nature of Operations

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of NACCO Industries Inc the parent company or NACCO
and its wholly owned subsidiaries NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries or the Company Intercompany accounts and

transactions are eliminated in consolidation The Companys subsidiaries operate in the following principal industries mining

small appliances and specialty retail The Company manages its subsidiaries primarily by industry

The North American Coal Corporation and its affiliated companies collectively NACoa1 mine and market steam and

metallurgical coal for use in power generation and steel production and provide selected value-added mining services for other

natural resources companies Hamilton Beach Brands Inc HBB is leading designer marketer and distributor of small

electric household appliances as well as commercial products for restaurants bars and hotels The Kitchen Collection LLC

KC is national specialty retailer of kitchenware and gourmet foods operating under the Kitchen Collection and Le

Gourmet Chef store names in outlet and traditional malls throughout the United States On September 28 2012 the Company
spun-off Hyster-Yale Materials Handling Inc Hyster-Yale former subsidiary The financial position results of operations

and cash flows of Hyster-Yale are reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented through the date of the spin-off

See Note for further details regarding the spin-off

NACoa1 has two consolidated mining operations Mississippi Lignite Mining Company MLMC and Reed Minerals Inc

Reed Minerals NACoa1 also provides dragline mining services for independently owned limerock quarries in Florida

NACoa1 has ten wholly owned unconsolidated subsidiaries that each meet the definition of variable interest entity and are

accounted for using the equity method

The Coteau Properties Company Coteau
The Falkirk Mining Company Falkirk
The Sabine Mining Company Sabine
Demety Resources Company LLC Demery
Caddo Creek Resources Company LLC Caddo Creek

Coyote Creek Mining Company LLC Coyote Creek
Camino Real Fuels LLC Camino Real

Liberty Fuels Company LLC Liberty
NoDak Energy Services LLC NoDak
North American Coal Corporation India Private Limited NACC India

Coteau Falkirk and Sabine were developed between 1974 and 1981 and operate lignite coal mines under long-term contracts

with various utility customers Coteau Falkirk and Sabine are capitalized primarily with debt financing which the utility

customers have arranged and guaranteed Demery Caddo Creek Coyote Creek Camino Real and Liberty collectively with

Coteau Falkirk and Sabine the Unconsolidated Mines were formed to develop construct and operate surface mines under

long-term contracts Demery commenced delivering coal to its customer in 2012 and is expected to reach full production levels

in late 2015 Liberty commenced production in 2013 and is expected to increase production levels gradually from 0.5 to 1.0

million tons in 2014 to full production of approximately 4.7 million tons annually in 2019 Caddo Creek Coyote Creek and

Camino Real are still in development and are not expected to be in full production for several years NoDak was formed to

operate and maintain coal processing facility NACC India was formed to provide technical advisory services to the third-

party owners of coal mine in India

The contracts with the customers of the Unconsolidated Mines provide for reimbursement at price based on actual costs plus

an agreed pre-tax profit per ton of coal sold or actual costs plus management fee Although NACoa1 owns 100% of the equity

and manages the daily operations of these entities the Company has determined that the equity capital provided by NACoal is

not sufficient to adequately finance the ongoing activities or absorb any expected losses without additional support from the

customers The customers have controlling financial interest and have the power to direct the activities that most significantly

affect the economic performance of the entities As result NACoal is not the primary beneficiary and therefore does not

consolidate these entities financial position or results of operations The income taxes resulting from operations of the

Unconsolidated Mines are solely the responsibility of the Company The pre-tax income from the unconsolidated mines is

reported on the line Earnings of unconsolidated mines in the Consolidated Statements of Operations with related taxes

included in the provision for income taxes The Company has included the pre-tax earnings of the Unconsolidated Mines
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

in thousands Except as noted and Per Share and Percentage Data

excluding NoDak and NACC India above operating profit as they are an integral component of the Companys business and

operating results The pre-tax income from NoDak is reported on the line Income from other unconsolidated affiliates in the

Other income expense section of the Consolidated Statement of Operations with the related income taxes included in the

provision for income taxes The net income from NACC India is reported on the line Income from other unconsolidated

affiliates in the Other income expense section of the Consolidated Statements of Operations The unconsolidated mines are

accounted for under the equity method See Note 20 for further discussion

NOTE 2Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and judgments These estimates and judgments affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities if any at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and highly liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less

Accounts Receivable Net of Allowances Allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained against accounts receivable for

estimated losses resulting from the inability of customers to make required payments These allowances are based on both

recent trends of certain customers estimated to be greater credit risk as well as general trends of the entire customer pooi

Accounts are written off against the allowance when it becomes evident collection will not occur

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market The weighted average
method is used for coal inventory KC

retail inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market using the retail inventory method The first-in first-out FIFO
method is used with respect to all other inventories Reserves are maintained for estimated obsolescence or excess inventory

equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future

demand and market conditions Upon subsequent sale or disposal of the impaired inventory the corresponding reserve for

impaired value is relieved to ensure that the cost basis of the inventory reflects any write-downs

Property Plant and Equipment Net Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost Depreciation depletion and

amortization are provided in amounts sufficient to amortize the cost of the assets including assets recorded under capital leases

over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method Buildings and building improvements are depreciated using

40
year

life or at NACoal over the life of the mine which at inception was 30 years Estimated lives for machinery and

equipment range from three to 15 years Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or

the term of the lease The units-of-production method is used to amortize certain tooling for sourced products and certain coal-

related assets based on estimated recoverable tonnages Repairs and maintenance costs are generally expensed when incurred

Asset retirement costs associated with asset retirement obligations are capitalized with the carrying amount of the related long-

lived asset and depreciated over the assets estimated useful life

Long-Lived Assets The Company periodically evaluates long-lived assets for impairment when changes in circumstances or

the occurrence of certain events indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Upon identification of

indicators of impairment the Company evaluates the carrying value of the asset by comparing the estimated future

undiscounted cash flows generated from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition with the assets net carrying value If

the carrying value of an asset is considered impaired an impairment charge is recorded for the amount that the carrying value of

the long-lived asset exceeds its fair value Fair value is estimated as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date

Goodwill Goodwill represents the excess purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired The Company

evaluates the carrying value of goodwill for impairment annually and between annual evaluations if changes in circumstances

or the occurrence of certain events indicate potential impairment When evaluating whether goodwill is impaired the Company

compares the fair value of the reporting unit to which the goodwill is assigned to the reporting units carrying amount

Impairment exists when the carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds its implied fair value

Coal Supply Agreements and Other Intangibles Net The coal supply agreements represent long-term supply agreements

with NACoa1s customers and are recorded based on the fair value at the date of acquisition The coal supply agreements are

amortized based on units of production or straight line over the original term of the agreements which
range

from to 30 years

The Company reviews identified intangible assets for impairment when changes in circumstances or the occurrence of certain

events indicate potential impairment
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

In thousands Except as noted and Per Share and Percentage Data

Self-insurance Liabilities The Company is generally self-insured for product liability environmental liability medical claims

certain workers compensation claims and certain closed mine liabilities For product liability catastrophic insurance coverage

is retained for potentially significant individual claims An estimated provision for claims reported and for claims incurred but

not yet reported under the self-insurance programs is recorded and revised periodically based on industry trends historical

experience and management judgment In addition industry trends are considered within managements judgment for valuing

claims Changes in assumptions for such matters as legal judgments and settlements inflation rates medical costs and actual

experience could cause estimates to change in the near term

Revenue Recognition Revenues are generally recognized when title transfers and risk of loss passes to the customer Under its

mining contracts the Company recognizes revenue as the coal or limerock is delivered or services are performed Revenues at

HBB are recognized when customer orders are completed and shipped Revenues at KC are recognized at the point of sale

when payment is made and customers take possession of the merchandise in stores

The Companys products generally are not sold with the right of return Based on the Companys historical experience portion

of KC and HBB products sold are estimated to be returned due to reasons such as buyer remorse duplicate gifts received

product failure and excess inventory stocked by the customer which subject to certain terms and conditions the Company will

agree to accept The Company records estimated reductions to revenues at the time of the sale based upon this historical

experience and the limited right of return provided to the Companys customers

The Company also records estimated reductions to revenues for customer programs and incentive offerings including special

pricing agreements price competition promotions and other volume-based incentives At HBB net sales represent gross sales

less cooperative advertising other volume-based incentives estimated returns and allowances for defective products

Additionally the Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenues are recognized At KC
retail markdowns are incorporated into KCs retail method of accounting for cost of sales

Advertising Costs Advertising costs except for direct response advertising are expensed as incurred Total advertising

expense was $20.1 million $16.5 million and $13.5 million in 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively Included in these advertising

costs are amounts related to cooperative advertising programs at HBB that are recorded as reduction of sales in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations as related revenues are recognized Direct response advertising which consists

primarily of costs to produce television commercials for HBB products is capitalized and amortized over the expected period

of future benefits No assets related to direct response advertising were capitalized at December 31 2013 or 2012

Product Development Costs Expenses associated with the development of new products and changes to existing products are

charged to expense as incurred These costs amounted to $8.1 million $7.5 million and $7.4 million in 2013 2012 and 2011

respectively

Shipping and Handling Costs Shipping and handling costs billed to customers are recognized as revenue and shipping and

handling costs incurred by the Company are included in cost of sales

Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities The Company collects various taxes and fees

as an agent in connection with the sale of products and remits these amounts to the respective taxing authorities These taxes

and fees have been presented on net basis in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and are recorded as liability until

remitted to the respective taxing authority

Stock Compensation The Company maintains long-term incentive programs at all of its subsidiaries The parent company has

stock compensation plans that allow the grant of shares of Class common stock subject to restrictions as means of

retaining and rewarding selected employees for long-term performance and to increase ownership in the Company Shares

awarded under the plans are fully vested and entitle the stockholder to all rights of common stock ownership except that shares

may not be assigned pledged or otherwise transferred during the restriction period In general the restriction period ends at the

earliest of five years after the participants retirement date ii ten years from the award date or iii the participants death or

permanent disability Pursuant to the plans the Company issued 16123 and 72566 shares related to the years ended

December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively After the issuance of these shares there were 233759 shares of Class common

stock available for issuance under these plans Compensation expense related to these share awards was $0.9 million $0.6

million net of tax $4.4 million $2.8 million net of tax and $1.7 million $1.1 million net of tax for the years ended

December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively Compensation expense represents fair value based on the market price of the

shares of Class common stock at the grant date

The Company also has stock compensation plan for non-employee directors of the Company under which portion of the

non-employee directors annual retainer is paid in restricted shares of Class common stock For the years ended December 31
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

In thousands Except as noted and Per Share and Percentage Data

2013 and December 31 2012 $69000 of the non-employee directors annual retainer of $125000 was paid in restricted shares

of Class common stock For the year ended December 31 2011 $49500 of the non-employee directors annual retainer of

$90000 was paid in restricted shares of Class common stock Shares awarded under the plan are fully vested and entitle the

stockholder to all rights of common stock ownership except that shares may not be assigned pledged or otherwise transferred

during the restriction period In general the restriction period ends at the earliest ofi ten years from the award date ii the

date of the directors death or permanent disability iii five years or earlier with the approval of the Board of Directors after

the directors date of retirement from the Board of Directors or iv the date of the participants retirement from the Board of

Directors and the director has reached 70 years of age Pursuant to this plan the Company issued 9472 8944 and 4938 shares

related to the years ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively In addition to the mandatory retainer fee received

in restricted stock directors may elect to receive shares of Class common stock in lieu of cash for up to 100% of the balance

of their annual retainer meeting attendance fees committee retainer and any committee chairmans fees These voluntary shares

are not subject to any restrictions Total shares issued under voluntary elections were 1300 in 2013 1991 in 2012 and 1356 in

2011 After the issuance of these shares there were 73042 shares of Class common stock available for issuance under this

plan Compensation expense related to these awards was $0.6 million $0.4 million net of tax $0.8 million $0.5 million net of

tax and $0.5 million $0.3 million net of tax for the years ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively

Compensation expense represents fair value based on the market price of the shares of Class common stock at the grant date

Foreign Currency Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into U.S dollars at the fiscal year-end exchange

rate The related translation adjustments are recorded as separate component of stockholders equity Revenues and expenses

of all foreign operations are translated using average monthly exchange rates prevailing during the year

Financial Instruments and Derivative Financial Instruments Financial instruments held by the Company include cash and

cash equivalents accounts receivable accounts payable revolving credit agreements long-term debt interest rate swap

agreements and forward foreign currency exchange contracts The Company does not hold or issue financial instruments or

derivative financial instruments for trading purposes

The Company uses forward foreign currency exchange contracts to partially reduce risks related to transactions denominated in

foreign currencies The Company offsets fair value amounts related to foreign currency exchange contracts executed with the

same counterparty These contracts hedge firm commitments and forecasted transactions relating to cash flows associated with

sales and purchases denominated in currencies other than the subsidiaries functional currencies Changes in the fair value of

forward foreign currency exchange contracts that are effective as hedges are recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive

income loss AOCI Deferred gains or losses are reclassified from AOCI to the Consolidated Statement of Operations in

the same period as the gains or losses from the underlying transactions are recorded and are generally recognized in cost of

sales The ineffective portion of derivatives that are classified as hedges is immediately recognized in earnings and generally

recognized in cost of sales

The Company uses interest rate swap agreements to partially reduce risks related to floating rate financing agreements that are

subject to changes in the market rate of interest Terms of the interest rate swap agreements require the Company to receive

variable interest rate and pay fixed interest rate The Companys interest rate swap agreements
and its variable rate financings

are predominately based upon the three-month LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate Changes in the fair value of interest

rate swap agreements that are effective as hedges are recorded in AOCI Deferred gains or losses are reclassified from AOCI to

the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the same period as the gains or losses from the underlying transactions are

recorded and are generally recognized in interest expense The ineffective portion of derivatives that are classified as hedges is

immediately recognized in earnings and included on the line Other in the Other income expense section of the

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Interest rate swap agreements and forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Company have been designated as

hedges of forecasted cash flows The Company does not currently hold any nonderivative instruments designated as hedges or

any derivatives designated as fair value hedges

The Company periodically enters into foreign currency exchange contracts that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting

These derivatives are used to reduce the Companys exposure to foreign currency risk related to forecasted purchase or sales

transactions or forecasted intercompany cash payments or settlements Gains and losses on these derivatives are included on the

line Other in the Other income expense section of the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Cash flows from hedging activities are reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in the same classification as the

hedged item generally as component of cash flows from operations

See Note for further discussion of derivative financial instruments
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15489 16926 32415

due to in ieases in future estniiatcd opeiatmg

inanelno ai ran eno nis ire obtained and rnai anied it the suhsidiaiy level SC has not guaranteed an hotros
ings of it

subs idiiyies

1%
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interest pai oii tot si ht was St mill in Si million and million dnrmg 201 201 and 11 respeetis cit Intciest

capilaliied 55 as S0S mill on and 80 mi Ilion in 13 and 2012 respe uvely No interest was capitalized in Ii

BBB U3P ii tlrilltr ii rrrtn set ur fiuaiiri rare ies oh in redo ficility tire Dm313
acuity that exp rcs in July

he 0111 ations undei the 11DB acuity ic si curt by subst mntially all of IBBs as ts Ihe approximate book valu

11 1313 ets th Id as eol lain al un icr the IBB facility was 52 mu lion as of December 31 2013

nmaxmiu as iilihility tinder the 111313 ac lily is gos med by borrowing base dci is ed fron ads mice rates again ligibI

at counts icc civ iDle ins entor and tiadcmaiks of the horiowcrs as defined in the llI3B acihty djustinents to resci es

bot ked agmnnst the assts in luding ins cnn reserves will hange the eligible hon owing ise and thereby impact the

liquidity provided by the HBB acilits portion ol the as ailabulily is in ininated us anadian dollars to provide funding

111313 anadian snbsidiaiy Borrow inns beai ilerest at flo sting rate svhich ran base rate IEIOR ou bankers acceptam

rati as defined in thy 111313 Facility plo applicable margin IDe applieahk irgun cfleetive Decembei 31 2013 iy base

ito 1oan and 1130R it ans rionoiniru ted in dolBrs wer 110 and tfl
respectis iy tic applicable rnigins

fthetisc December 31 13 foi base rate loans and hankers aeceptan loans dcnominatrd in anadias dollars were 00
mod 81 mespeetis ely he 111313 facility al requires fee of 03 78/ per annum on the unused commitment margins

nid unused minitmnenn fee undr the fBi3 facility ai sul ject to qu
mrterlv adjustment based on avei excess as ailahi

lily

and average us ge iespcetis ely flic floating tIe of interest applic ihk to the IBB acuity at Dr eemhcr 31 2013 18

inelu ling the floating rant margin

\t Dcc ember 31 2013 the borrow
rug

base undi the IIBB mculii 8111 mullion and wrowungs outstanding were 818

million At Deceniht 31 13 the cxc as lability unudem the HBB ility was 893 million

1113131 ac lita ielud re trictis coy enant hid an ong other tlmmnns limit the pat ment of dividends to

subJect to achies
irig as ad if duty thuesholds Dms idcnds are limitc Ito the 2meater of 520 million and excess cash flow from the

nost met ently nded fiscal seam in each of the two 1w else month periods follow ung the closing ite of the 1113131 aemlity so long

as 111311 has excess availability under the 111313 Facility of not less thani %2 mullion and mauntmuns mnantnnunm fixed charge

cm seia ratio of at Ic ust Oto 1.0 as dcfmtd in the I1BB Facility and in such amounts as determi med by 111113 snhsequemit to

the si eond annum ensaiy ol the lositig ste ol thr 1IBB acuity Sc lonig as I3BB has excess availability utmden the llBB aemlunt

of not less than 55 mu Ilioni he 111313 Facilt aisi
rcquiri IIBB to achieve nnnnmuiri luxed charge cos crane uatio in

emran circumstances as defined in the IIBB aciluty At Dccc ml er 31 2113 11B13 was in compliance ith ill covenants in he

FIBI3 Facility

111113 ncurncd Ices arid expense of 51 million in time yc ended Dcecmh 31 2012 related to the IIBB acility Ices

werc deferred armci are hemne amortized as intent st expense in the onsoludated Statements ol Operations ovu time tcrnm of the

1113131 aciluty sinmular Ides werr uncummecl iii 0l3 an ci 2011

KC has 531 mu iomm secured vols ing Immme of cr dmt tlmat expires in \uf lust 201 the KC Facility he ohbgatiomus

under time KC at iluty ant secured by nubstantually all assets of lit ipproxinuate hook slime KC mssets lucId as

colluteral undci time KC it lily was 863 no ion as of ecember 31 13

lIme nmaxinmum avail ihulity tnndcn time KC laenl
ty us deiis ed fnoumm borrowmnmg base br miul usuny KCs eligible inseuutomy amid

cli obic ruedit namd accounts mccciv ible dclmncd in tIme aculnty Ilommownmgs hear untcrul at IN aunt ratr plus mm rgun

se on time exet ss as nlabmiuty under time agre ncmmt as dcflumed un tht acnhty hich can lie eutlmcu base mate pins

nmc run 00 1130R plt mmrgnm of mOo of DecemLn 31 13 hn aedity aDo iLttuiiLo elI

per mminm mm mm the unu used commirmmmtnmmemmn floatimmg mate of immterest applicable to the KC aeulmny at Dcc ember 31 301 us

uncludung lime floatmumf nmangumm mate

St Dcccnmhcr 31 113 thc bormov ing ba uric the Facility Wds 52 mnillucmn and boruow mu gs ontstandiumg were SI .5

mmmlliomm At Decenumber 31 13 tim excyss isa Iabilmty ummdem time aeuhty was 528 nimlhon

lime aculuty allows for the paymrnt of dus Ide mds to \A subject to eertamru mcstnictiomms bawd on availahuluty and

suctt mm hard ci nyc covcnagt ratuo as cleseril un time KC mcility Div idenmds are lunmmuted to 86 minmllion mu army tw else

nmi nth mod so lomm as has excess mnvailabiluty as defined mm tIme KC Iacmlity of it Mst 875 mmullion after gmvmrmg cffdct to

suclm nm nt and mauntamumunt nmnmuimumn fiac rI char or mosc magr
ado of .1 to deliria lie tl ilim

mmlImonm umm any twelve nuommth pnuod lommg is has cxc ess us mul ihility as uric rI mmu the aculmty ofat ast millions

20
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\A USD1 SI RH USC AM SIJBSIDI RIFS
fiith mc is sc rpt lot 101111 thai 11 cntag 1t

Dii slat of them contr et appioxiniat nr cccivahlc of less than SO mill ion and nt Ii shilitt ol lcss than SO mill on at

Dccci sO and spcctis eN

lam Na mgi rn cv cmtrcts hat qualm45 foi d1c ar ILatia ad tramim lcd

ocr am ss ithmn the next 1w else months hr mark to iii irket effect of forts ard foreign currency ng cot acts th it arc

orisidei ed etfcctisc hedacs has he incladcd in A0 Based on niarkct ala stions at Deeemhcr 31 201 less thin SO

million of the iniount in luded in 0C1 is ex ted to hc reclassified income into the onsolmdatcd Stat ent ci Operat on

oscr thr ext Its rls in itli is the tr nisartion occut

Interest Rate Dii is atises 1DB hr interest tc waps that hcdgc inlet sI pments on it ant niontli 1130k boirow ings

lIt lIon ing tahlc xi minai the notional mounts relatcd itr and rent imning tci rn of interest ite nap agrer cnts actis

at Deeeinhe 31 in millions

at ii \.i 101 ii Ssrra Ii Ic Rein ii tans st

21113 0i2 2013 202 icrcmbr 11

hc fan aIm of 131313 mIt iest rate ssap sgrcenscnts is nd ccc Na able of SO million and net liahilits of SO in Ilion at

Deer mhcm 13 aid 012 respcctis cIt Is nsai to inai km ci lcd of inter at ratc swap ecincnts that arc consmdercd

ffcctms as Ii dgc Ii is hcen inelndr in N0 Based on maiket aluati ns it Dec emh 31 01 SO mill ior of the mount

nr lad AO is
cxp mcd to hc rcc lassi lie mncornc alto thc onsolidatcd Stat mc it of Op rttiors mci the next ta cIa

months as cash flon pa ments amc made in accordance sa itlm thc aitci st rate swap agrecments he intere iate swap

agreerncnts hr Id ht 1DB on Deecnibci 31 201 irc exper tr to oontmrue to hc eftcctia hc Iges

oml has intci cm rate naps that hedge intr st payments on its oric month 1130k hon ow nips hc follow no tahlc

sunsmnarilcs the notional amounts rclated rates nd icr sainint tcimns of rIsc itmtercst iate swap agicenient ctis at Deccnihr 31

in is illu

nsa1 Saints sr 55 La or tt In tiniia LII 11 di

Oil 2011 11 ru tar

NA oaf lOOM I4% exteridmg to May 2018

hc lair alac of Sf oal intci cst iatc ts ap apicemnent was nd reccivahl of SO millic Dc einhcr 2013 SC al

rOil not hold my dens alms fuimnr Oil irs trunscr at Dcccmh 31 012 Ihe risaik to nmarkct ffect oftlic mntcrcst mat Sn ip

tom snent that is consi icied cftkctmac is hcd1 has beers include liii \0Cl Bris on ns sikct velustions at Dc cmhei 31

101 SO null on of the in ount included in Of is expectcd to be rcclassifm is miscomne into ihe onsolmdstcd Statement of

Op atm acm the ncxt taselar months as cs flow payments am nmade in act ordan itli thc mmstercst rate swap api ccitt itt

mt aest mate swap agreement held b5 NA oal on Decensh 41 01 is expreted to contimnme to be effectiac as 1idee

27
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Ii i/iou 1/u/s opt as noted an Per Viai and Pr entae Iata

NOIF 10 Fair %alue 1isclosurc

Rerurrng air Vilue Measurements he foiIoing table presents the oniparfi assets and liabilities ac ounted at fair

lu cI ring

1581

159S

an alne Measurements it porting Iat mm

Quoted Prices in Signib ant

Signifie nit Oilier

Identical Assets Observable Inputs Input

cml cml Ic ci

1351

1581

Its ription

Assets

ieeenmhei ii 012

fi419

5419

Interest rate swap agreements

orci curm en evehanuc contracts

456 45/i

ontingent consideration 4000

4460

000

4000

Itellaire Mine \Sater Ireatnient rust iris ests in asailahle for sale seeumrtres that ire reported at sir salue based upon quoted

market pr ces in active markets Hr identical as ets tlierefbre they are elassi lied as ci el nh in the lair il ue hierarch See

ac Hr urtlna discu mor of Be llarrc Mint Water ieatment Trust

Ihe onipany ii es smnmIIcint other observahl inputs to valut derivitise Instruments used to hedge foreign currency and

in crest rite risk therefore they are classified within ci ci ot the valuation hierarchy he lair value for these contiacis is

termined iset inc vchange rates and interest rates re pectively Set Note for further discussion rf the oinpanys
derisative financial instru iienfs

lit aluau in techniques and ci inputs it to estimate the fan value of contingent consid ration payable in connection

is ills the anpany acquisition of Reed Mint ils are described helms here si crc no trinsfei into or out of Les els or

di ring the year endcd le eiriher 31 OH

yetive Mark ts to

Descriptioi

Assets

Mail sic for ale set untie

Intetest rate swap agreements

oreign currency cvchangc contracts

Foreign currency exchange contracts

onitingent eonsidt ration

nohsers able

6540 6540

937

83

_____
7560 6540 1020

14

_________
14

Si ail sic Hi sale st ctn ities

air Value Mc isuremn iris at Reporting Date sing

Qnoted Prices in
Smgmimfi ass

iii Market for

ident cal Asset

Signilmeant Other

Observatrlr. Inputs

nohsersahk

Input

eve__I
Lvel II. evel

5419

24
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In t5oiii iiali ji 0/ 10 Pc S/ram ikI /40 n/apr /ataj

In peil ninin Step 01 thc fooths ill impauinent test the onipari estimi ed the irnphed lair value of the Reed Minerals

porting units oclss ill and oneluded goody ill cv as fulls imp ed re ulting in non ea eh uge of S4 mlii in re ogniicd

duni the cai ended Dc ember 31 hi haige ii id no impact in the ompanvs cash 1k cv 01 omplianee cv ith debt

15 crrnrits Ihe ltliOi Iactoi oiitrihutin to inc toodcv iii inipai nnent haigc cv crc charges the nnne plan iii lt 14 and

beyond as resu It of crea ed demand Ioi hi
quc ita inetaliui iea1 coal

assumptions gardine 11Pm met 11w ical oal

price tien hi5 her minin eo is an the ci ited impact on Intuit cash flows from these ci ange

he flu salt mc ur in nt of the ieport ny on under the step one anal ci and the step tcvo analvsi in their entnet are

In sifie is cccl inputs he stimat and sumption tin lerlying the tan alu calculation used in the oinpanyS annual

inipament tests aie unceitam thei ii iture ar can ai significantly from ac ual esults acto that management must

estimat nelude hut are not limitt to industry and market conditions sales volume md pricing nmnun costs capital

expenditur oil ing capital changes cost 01 ipital dt ltnty mix and tax iates he timates and asSuiriptiOiis thai rub

Pgruficaritlv mfidct the fin caine calculation am met illurgical coal pi ices and sales volume and the associated cash floss

assumptions emghtcd as cri ost if capital ii revenu mull ipl Ii orn the selected compatible Companies he estimates

and as ump ions used in the estimate 01 lair satue are consistent cv ith those tht omnpany rise in its internal pianniig

valuates long lived assets for impairment cv henevei changes in cut umstan cs or the occurrence of ceitain cc ents idieate

the cci my in amount may not recoverable lit eariying nount is considered not meet erable if it exceeds the sum of the

un list untcd cash fi cv expecte Ito stilt tron thc use and eve mtu ii disposition cit the set considei ed the poor results

fiorn tlmt iall hohtlay selling sea on arid latet 011
pci 0mg loss to hc ai indicator of impau ment or asset

impairment analysis the
prirriaix uiput is proje

ted friture cash flocv utili inc assumptions consistent with tht the ompany

rises in it niternal plar runt
wInch ai lassif ic tl is Lec ci

riputs 4s rc suit of thc fiscal ar end rev icy of long lived stoic

related isscts the oinpany recorded impa mmci charges of $1.1 million intl 50 million in 201 and 12 respcc ively

uicluded leprm iation xpensL cc itl nit ost of goods sold the Consolidated Statenicnls of OpLratioris he LIII charges

cvere relate Ito undeiptrformuig stores 50 million DI and stoics heduletl to close in 2014 50.4 nullion and test

concept stoi 50 nullicui ono In ed a. ets at the stoics consist mainly of least hold iniproveme ts and tuiniture anti

ii turt lic fair al ic for ieaseh rid iniproveni rits was determined to be Lcro as such assets cv err deemed to Ii ice no future us

cc mnonue bent fit bisecl on the oinpamiy ialysis usinf market paitic ipant assumptions antI the efort rio xpect uturc

cash flows lie fui alue for store fixtures is sed on the market exit price ised in hismoi ical experience The impairment

ci an es cc crc lam tli rcsul de rc ned cxpectetl future opt itin tilts umd the Iccisi in to lose certain stoics ii

Mi

See ac and Note lii fumsher discussion of Property Plant and tuipmcnt and Intangible \ssets me pectic clv

Other Fair %alue Measurement Disclosures he ear yrng imnotuts of cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable rind

iceount sable approximate liii alue dci to the shoi term maturities of tlmesc immsmrum nts Die Fur sIne of mt t4c nip

crc api cements antI lou tern dt ht excluding ipmtal leases cv crc tletemnmnied usn etmrm cut ales Ocred ftir mmiii lar

hhg slit ns taking ito act ount ub
mtliaiy Ic lit risk cv fu Ii us cccl as delmnccl the fin value hicramclmy At Dceenibem Ii

013 bttli the thu value amid lie book iii icc cmlv
limp

credit agreements amid Itnig PCI mu debt excluding capital Ic mscs cc is

51 iuillicrmi St cern icr 201 the fair clue of icc olving credit
agreements and long term debt xcludin capital

ascs cv is 5166 million compared cc uth the lit clue of 5166 mill on

liii iml strunme its di it potci tially stihjeet di ompany to eoneamtratic of credit risk consist pm mncipally of accounts

icc civable uml nc atic es lOB nmamnmamns 51 nilmearmt accc unts reeeiv mhlc slant es cv ith seve ii laige ietail tustonicm St

December II 01 and 0I mccciv ables fit ii IIBB fix Iar2est custoniLrs repiesented 3.5 and 48 910 lespectmc ely of the

ipiyL ctnsolidmtcd let aco otnO mcm aM La additairi wdci ninuog omitmaU 1cLo ni icc cnuc

mel itt rc emvabie coal or Imineroek is del ered or pr ci veiopmcnt services imr provided hese nuning contuac pioc mdc foi

ncmthlx ttlenieumts 11130 amid NA cals sienil cant cmcclmt eoncentnation is uncoIl iterali ed hi exer imlstorl ally minniiml

cit dit losses hoc bc en mIueul lo fui them educe ci edit risk assocmmtcd th at counts eceivable the Company peribrnis

pe
modme cmedit cc nluaticms of its customers but tIc es riot gem rally rqumime idvance iynments or collateral LIme ompany entcis

mtc dcruc atmv commtmaeis cv ith liii lm qn slmtv tinan al Inst mtutmon amid linuts the amount of credit exposure to any nine in tittition

Sec Nt Ic fL further di ens iou of the ompa derivative financial instruments
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hut not limited to physic ii draracteristics of th it the nature irid xtcut if th contamination in applicable gulatons

piomni ud remcdi rtio it indirds No asses meat can fully cliarictetiz all suhsui fac conditions at site here is rio

is ur nice th ii idditiou if rise Uncut sad re mc ation elfoits ssill not iesult in idji stiri uts wtunat icnicdiation costs oi the

suisL fiaisic Len iiiedsnsiun ese sites

111 cstini ttc of mi en io ition and remedi etior costn miy change if it discos cis co itamination at additioiial sites or

idditional contanimition it known sitc ifthc ffectivcucs of its current icinediation efforts change ii applicable fcdcial

tite regulations change ii H3B estim ite of the time required to ienicdiate the sites changes RBs icsised estimates may
differ mat fly

fi in one ma stimates At Be cemhci 31 13 and Decernbr 2012 IBB had ace.i ucd undiscounted

hli rations el 56 million md t4 nullion re pectis clv for ens onnicntil vestig ihom id memedmation actis sties at these

its In addition IBB estinrat th it it is tease bIg pos ibk th it ii may micum addi ional exp uses us tIme range of zero to S46

niil lion elated to the ens onnmc ntal ins est
ig ion and cumedntion at these .mt lie increas in the liability hour lecenibcr 31

is imaril due to 52 millie ehuge cstihli Ii Ii ibility for ciii us ninental ins estie ation and remediation actis itics

sl IRk f1 Cu on arm ta hIs i1t 4i 55 iramrent td PCi mind ii 212 kho dr 13 IBB eodad
16 millie cc is rhlc ic ided in Oth noi cu ieut users air tIm Consolm lated Balance Slice related to th rd partss

commitment to share environmental liabilities at IIBBs Southern Pines and Mt Mry lo ations he recognition tlmc

mcccii able ic luced selling neral ar cl adnimni tiatise expenses in 13 Both the oblipatio is nd the icc ivable aic

undi count

NO 13 Product Warrautmes

111313 provides 51 sudird iii anty to conseimci f4r ill of its oduct lie specific tei and condm ions of those si an antics

uy depending nc on lie product biand fri yen id if product is returned under rranty refund is pros ideel to the

rune 1w 111313s eust aner tIme ictaile renc rally the retailei retu ns those products to 111313 f4i credit lie omamy
estirriates the costs which nu mncuri ed rind its standard svamianiiy pi rani mc records liabihts for seich costs at the time

prc di res nine lee fl ied

lie onm
fir pc idic illv assesses th Ic

cina os its recoi cled is ar amity rhilitmes and rdju ts tIm amounts es neeessary

actors tl tficct
uipaimv warrants lmabiliti use In Ic the number of cm iits sold histoi ical mud anticipated rates at is in sty

launs and tI cc per claim

hange in the en paris rcn snd lone tci srranfs shIm itions ire is Ia iii

201 10

Bafune.e at inriuary 4269 4230

Vs nna mtmes msemc 8855

Settlements made 7781 6359
Huh mmcc at Decemnbem 11

5343 69

\O 11 14 Stockhold is Equity md Earni rgs Pci Sham

Ind istni lime lass communion trick in traded cur the Ness York Sb xelm usge mmmder the ticker symbol NC
13 memsc of tmansfer r5 stu tions aim las eonmon Roe no ti mdmm nmarl eL Fuss des el sped or is lie

ted is clop fom the

snipane as connmm rtscf lbs lnss cm nissn smsscF on tibl moo ta eon macn stc arm anw far ai

unmy
Ii sic at the eqemest the holder Ils omsipana Ia eomnrnron stoel amid lass omnsori stock Inns the samiuc

ci Ii cI ideuc night pci share lie lass conmi noms stock has crne ote pci sir inc and tIre Class comimnion stock has ten sores

hame Ire total rsenrsbe of authorized shame of lass comnnuon stock arid lass onimron tc ek it Dcccmsmher 31

was 55 000 000 share run 26 share re pectis ely Ire istir sham of Lu comrno stcuck totaim
my

amid

433 243 at Decemhet 31 and 01 rcsp tm clv Imas hecim deducted flons sIr smes out landing

Slsare Reptum chase Prograur Di Nos emmsher 31 the npsmuy rnnonneed tI at the map immy
3d ard cuf Di celom

spy mosed tIre repemrcha up to Sf0 umlumon cit lie onspany outstrmmidin lass comnmnoms stock the 201 Stock

Rrp urchase Pmograni hIs original an lmonmzstmon tom the 21 Stock Repnmreha Ir ramn expired omi Dc emnhen 31 12

lion ci in emmshc the ommupar h3oaid of Director omit roy el in extcmm iou of the 011 Stoe Repnmretma io am
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In thoaop ds epi as not isicl Icr cliote id IP entap Data

t.mouats Reclassified out of ccurnulatrd Other omprehiusis Income fb lollowrng table sunirn tiiz the amounts

recla ifiLd it of \O md rn ogoued in thr onsolidaL Ststetnent ol Operations

Amount me lassifled

Ibm AO

Oct ii about AO
eooiponeots 201

In thousands

Pension oid

posto tirernent plan

__________
95 Income tax expense benefit

152 Net of tax

Pt

fi 3b rnpnc ts In di tIn onnitti fpei 10 xp eNot 11 isiotol It

np pens

ocation of loss gain reclassified

horn hOC into income

247 otal below income tax expense

Prior set sice redit 154

1841 lola befote tneome tn expense

740 Income tax expense benefit

1101 Net of tax

It
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rcco wili itk the leder ii statut ny md 11cr tive income tax rate loi the years ended ecmbet 31 is as follows

2011 Ol 111

Income from continuing operations before income tax provision $55720 58028 $1 12221

Statutory taxes at 30o 19502 20310 3927

State and local income ayes 136 1568 1925

Non deductible expen es 1081 1112 1336

Percentage depletion 8057 4963 6895
RD and 00km frdeial credits 1173 132 206
Othet net 219 2030 2686

lneu me tax pins ision 11270 15865 37251

Ff1ctiva inemne tay mR 202% 73% 29

\s of December 31 201 the umnulatia unremitted earnings of the ornpan lorcign subsidiaries are approximately 58.8

million The ornp any has pros ided cumulative dclerr tax liabilitT in the amount 150.2 million with respect to the

etiniulatise uriremitted earninos of the onapany as ol Dccembei 31 201 ashich ate expected lobe repatriated lhc Company

has continued conelud predomn atcha all iei maining torcign amnings in excess of this amount will be indefinitely mcmxc ted

in ml fbrei opt rations and thcr lore tIme recoidmmig of dcRnm ed tax lixbmlmties for such unremtted earnings is not rcquii ed It

impr ietn able detemmine the amount of unrecognized deDrred tixes as oh respect to these permantntly nnx ested cmi ing5

oar es em foi eign lix credits would he as ai labl to reduce in pail income taxes in the sent of dish ihutmon

ietamkd suumiary of the total defenmx tax ets and Ii mhmliti in the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets it suIting Imoni

difleien es in the wk an tax basis of asset and liahilmties follows

tectmher 31

2013 Nil

Defenrcd tax assets

Fax cariyfonsxards 5029

Inventories 4709 3139

\eciucd expenses red rcscrxc 26019 2404l

Accrued pension benefits 7357

Othem cmloyec benefits 11412 971

Other 7375 7201

lotal deferred tax issets 54564 a6 70

Less Valuation allowance 2280 3082

52284 5162

Deferted tax liabilities

Depreciation and depletion 39906 45 023

Psetnenship investment development costs 20215 19 852

Seem ned pension benelits 1037

nrenutted foreign earnings 168 101

otal delerme Ia liabilities 61326 64 976

Net deferred liability 9042 11354

32
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ompany exp cts the amount of tinreogni ed tax bc netits will change significantly within the next twc lx months Ihe

change in unrecogniied lax benefit which is rLasonahly possible nithin the next telse months is million lh expected

clung ii eludes 3.5 2uhlioir of items ilready provided to and agiecd by the Internal Revenue Sers ice dui
ing

the cow se of the

cainiuCti ui of th wd fedeia at eturiis hese duos ss ill he icijioS ed uioiii thc elieduk of oiuccogiiiied tis

benefits upon close of the exam expected in the first half of 2014

In enema the Conip In opei ates in taxing jurisdictions that provide statute of limitations period ranging horn three to fix

years br the taxing authorities to review the applicahk taX filings the examination of the 2009 and 2010 LS federal tax

returns oncluded in the third quarki of 2013 the 2011 and 2012 .5 federal tax retw ns ar currently under exam and sic

expected to be settled during 2014 The Company does not haxe any additional material taxing juiisdieiions in which the

statntc of Ii nitations lots been extended hei ond the appl cahlc ti nc frame allowed Ian

0i 16 Retirement Benefit Plans

Dfiuicd lkrieht Phns he oi cUiv inaiiita vai iOOs dcfiucd heefit pension pIous dicut
pu

ovud benehts based on ecu of

service and as crag con pensation dunn cerinn periods During 201 the ounp my amended the Combined Defined Benelit

P1 in fri NACCO Industrie Inc and its suhsidai ies the Combinc Plan to fIr eie pemision
henclits for all employees

irieludine those for certain unconsolidated nnnes employees and cost of lix ing adjustnsents Of lbr other employee

eflbcttx ofthe close business on Decenihei 201 As result of this amendment the ornpany renieasured the

ombin Plan ci id reer mdc 51 million pr tax eui tailment gain during the thud quarter of 2013

he onipanx al amended iii Suppl ment ml Retirement Benefit Plar the SI RP to free all remaining pension benefits

In seams prior to 2013 benefits other than Of As were froen foi all S1RP participants fiectise of the close of busuies

or cLnmhci II all Dl hen fits rind the SI-hP sxcrc eluninaled br all p1cm participant

Cei tin executix officei also inanilamn accounts under variou Pen ed compenscmtio p1 ins that ix eme fmoien effective

ec emhei 31 2007 UI other eligible cinployc ix the ornpany including employees xx ho pension benefits are ii oien

eccivc rctireinent benefits undei dcliii coriti ibution retirement plans

The assumptions used in accounting Ibm the defined henetit plan xs crc as fhlloxs ho the years ended Dccemhei 31

United States Plans

Weighted aser ig di count rates for pen ion benefit obligation

Werghtcd average discount ratus for net pet modic benefit coSt

Non Plan

Rate of increase in compensation levels

2013 201 2011

4OO% 47/o 50o 90o 330c 55o

350% 470% 30% 4.55% 510% 5.30%

xpeck lontemm ste of return on asset for pension nefit

obligation

Weighted average discount rates or pension benefit obligation

Weighted aserage discount rates tot net pci iodmc bene bit cost

xpectcd long-temm mate of return on assets for pension
benefit

oolif7ation

450% 4.00%

42

425%

350% 50% 50%
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In thou ds p1 as noa c/and or char nd Pr rntcpe Iata

he lollou ing table sets lortb the changes in the benefit obligation and the plan assets during the ai and the funded status ol

the efined benefit plan at December 31

4961

719

51620

513

7036

160 17

334 102

67170 5186 60012 4961

2071 583 12963 251

lie tuai ial loss and pi mr sei vice cost include in accumulated othei comprehensive income loss expected to be reeofnixed

in net periodic benefit to tin 14 are 50 million 50ff million net of tax and less than SO million respeetis fly

he urnpaliys policy to muukc contributions to fund its
pc irsion plans widiin die

range
alloss cd by appueable regulations

he Company dots not expect to contribute to its or non .5 pension plans in 2014

he ompany maintain one supplemental defined benefit plan that pays monthly benefits to participants directly out of

eoiporate Icinds All other pension bent fit pay rnents are made from assets of the pension plans

INon

Pt ins POrn Pt ors POrn

Change In benefit obligation

Piojeetcd benefit obligation at beginning 01 year 72977 212 69 796 871

Interest cost 2766 197 3056 208

Actuarial gain loss 4488 317 5302 167

Benefits patd 4715 160 5177 148
Plan am ndmei

orcgn currency ext hange rate changes 329 108

rojet ted benefit obligation at cml ofyeai 65099 4603 72977 s2 12

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year 65099 $4603 72971 5212

hange in plan assets

Fati value of plan assets at beginning of year 60012 4391

\etus1 etui on plar assets 1383 It

1441

Pmployer contributions

Betutits piid

Foregn cmrcny exchange rate changes

an aloe of plait assets at end of
yea

Funded statuS at end of year

trnounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of

Noncurrent assets

uirent liabilities

Non current liabilities

490

4715 118

Actuanal loss

Prior service cost

Deferri taxes

8005 583 20

1118

4796 12508

2071 583 12965

251

18861 1380 32187 fl85

626 210

7854 576 13216 915

11633 804 19181 1440

36
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In thousands sr 171 as neted and Pt haiv rid Purer ntagr

ii fair ilue of each
joi category of Ian assets fri the Companyh pension plans are alucd using quoted mar ket

pm in acirs markets identical asset oi Lcs cI in the lv aluc hierarchy he fair alue of each major category of

Non plan assets fbr the Company pensi it plans arc ilued using ohs able inputs either directly or indirectly other

than quoted market pi ices in active market for identical assets oi es ci in the Ian value hierarchy oil mg ire the alue

as ol December 31

Ierl1 irseI2

2013 tl 2013 12

US equity secuitties 35980 31357

Non lAS spiny ecuriti 8701 7440 3288 3496

ived income set unties 1898 1465

Mom es marl et 364 610

lotal 67170 60012 5186 4964

Postretircrnent health Care the ompany dso nrarntams aIth care plans which provide benefits to eligible retired

eniployn Dl health care plans of the Compa have cap on the ompanvs share of the osts these plans have no issets

Ndet the Companys urmerit policy plan benefits are funded at the trifle thes are due to partieipanls

he mmptions used in aceotmntmng for the po tretirement health care plans are set forth Ix is for the years ended

1cccmhcr 31

2013 01 2011

Weighted average discount rates for benefit obligation 3.85% P05% 90%

Vs eightcd aserage
discount rates ft net periodic benefit cost 3.05% 90 70

Health cate cost trend rate assumed for next year 7.0% 7.5

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline ultimate trend rate 5.0%

Ycat that the rate reaches the ultimate trend tate 2022 202 2018

As umcd health ire cost trend rates can has significant libel on the anrourits reported for tire health cart plans orse

percentage pornl hange ri tire asstirired health care cost trend rate ss ould have the following cftccts at December 31 201

Porno ii igo Po moot Point

locreas Iocxea

iaffect on toPil of service and interest cost 816 14
ffixt on postretirernent benefit obligation

Set tomth below is detail oftIx periodic riefrt expen tom tire postretiremerit hxalth arc plans Ix the ais ended

Dccnmbcr

2011 012 .01

Service cost 77 79 9$

98 120

Amoruration of actuarial loss 52 40 27

Amomtniatiorr of prior is ice credit 107 56 160
Net periodic benefit expense 120 83 116

18
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NAC INDt Si R11 INC ND SL BSIDI Rl
thai mr ds Is p1 as ted and Per rnd in ntape Iata

DeIrnrd ontribution Plaits NAC and its ubsidiaries has delmrd contribution 4011 plan fbi substantiaEl all

employees and unilai plans for cmplov es outsids of the nitcd States or and those subsidiaries othei than 1-1DB

the applic iblc cot ipany mats hs employee contributions based on plan pros isions In addition and cci lain other

idd ies has dcfiliL cunti IbuLloli ietueiue it plans that eneinlli provide fbi staten inmrnsuin emploei contribution

hee plans also permit additional contributions is heieby the applicable et mpanys contribution to paiticipants is determined

ar nually sed on formula th ii includes the died of actual comprued with tareeted operating results and the
age and

compensation of the participants otal costs rncludrng ompany contributions for these plans ss ere million million

and 85 million in 01 12 and 2011 reip ctively

NOtE 17 Busi tess Segments

holding company si ith the follois ing pi incipil subsidiaries oaf FIBB and See Note foi discussi in

of the Companys industries md pioduet lines NAC Os non operating segment NACCO and Other includes the counts 11

the parent comp ins md lcllaire

fin incial in formation for cacti of NAC IS rt ortable segments presented in the following tahk he as counting policies of

the iepoit mh segments ii describcd in Note lie line Eliminations the rest noes section eliminates res enues ibm HBB
sales to lbs amounts ofthsse res enues art based on curient market prices of similar third party trarisaclions No oth

sib tr nsa lions occui among rs port iblc scgni rits

lie majority of \Coil ievenue is generate front its consolidated inirung operations and dragline mining sivices

Mt MCi custom ho tais Generation unit Partnership until FebruaIy 28 2014 and KMRC RI Ii subequenit to

chruars 201 accounted for approximately 42 56 md NA oaPs revenues for tIn yeai sr ded December 41

14 01 and 2011 respcc us ely Reed Miner rh largest custornei \labarna oal oopenative recounted for approximately
27 in4 ot ots re ne for tb iv1ed Deecamber Oh and espectis ely he ealt Rued

vlincials operations hays been included ni the ompanv tori ohd sled hnancral statenm nh since ugust 31 2012 Voal Mart

accounted fbi approximately 3110 4l arid 30 of IIBB revs nucs in 2114 2012 and 2011 respect is ely 11DB five fangs St

istonier accourtfed for mpproximatcly S5 and 50 of 111313 revenues for the year coded December 312013 211

rod 2111 iespectivelt he loss of or signific sit cduction in sales to any key customer could result in significant decreases in

\C ii and 111413s rcs nut and prolitabilits md am inability to sustain or gross its hu ins ss

bc
nimrma2c iris of fee ch rrcc to opt rating sul idiaries represent an allocation of cot por rte osei he id of the pan nt company

Man gcmermt are allocated among all of liaries based upon tIme relatis ii and oinplexrty of each ubsidi try lime

mpany hef nvc lie illocationm method is conic tently applied and reasonable Managenment fees included nm the selling

eenei al mud adnui istratis cxpcnscs of the sot idiarie nere 868 million 869 million and million for 014 2112 arid

Ill ne ctis ly In ad litiori the ircnt company ceived management fees from Fis ster Yale prior to thm spin off of

millioi and 59 irulliori fir time scars eimded Dc ember 31 201 and 2111 nespectiscly

I40
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In ih ianth epi noted aid ei S//ale aid Pe niage 10/a

Operating profit loss

oa1 37461 43239 35 50

11133 40960 15 815 33823

10903 512 508

NAC CO and Other 6213 7000 7463
Lliniinations 51 100 44

aol 61336 6/642 $64074
Interest expense

NACoal 3105 2909 3048

HBB 1279 263

390 479 489

8CCO and Other 65

lotat 4775 6088 8789

lnt resl income

NACoaI 19 152 2/0
1133

NA and Othci 205 10 18

lool 225 162 290
Other income expense including closed mme obligations and pphca
sctlkment and litigations costs

NACoaI 1013 325 420
111313 462 314 84%

KC 70 86 85

NA CO and Other 1547 583 .6 159

Total 1066 688 556646
Income tax provision benefit

3462 9037 4443

1133 14127 11636 9383

4479 1990 829

AC and Othet 18S 2989 103

1lnumations 18 1/1

total 11270 15865 C7
Income loss from continuing operations net of tax

SC oal 31926 32 1/0 449

111313 25093 21200 18363

6884 308/ 1105

NA000 and Othu 5718 649 30589

Innination 33 71 16
Total 44450 42163 79470

42
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NOl 18 Quarterlx Results of Operilion naudited

ummars of lbs unaudited results of operata is for the year en leeembci 31 is as folloss

RUminations

Gross profit

Farnings of unconsobdaled mitus

Operating profit loss

NACoal

0013

NA CO and Other

linnnatioris

11785 11196

2668 4005

4980 5407

2436 1099

15 108

7022 8803

52 870 46067

134099 192889

42618 75324

_____
973 2297

228614 111983

49219 78181

11808 12242

9740 740

11788 22499

3658 3142

1155 1543

_______
13

________

16682 28829

9591 8952 7794 5589

501 985 7427 14180

Q267 2403 2822 1608

2003 1048 11 37 830

1400 2339 1063 2709

4422 8147 12325 22556

53 63 54 L86

h61 L54

The
sit

nilic tnt inerea in operating results in II fourth quarter of 013 cornpaied with the punt quarters of 13 is primari1

du to the seasonal natui of 11 Bths and businesses

lurinsz thud quarter of 2313 the Company recorded 51 million million pre tax curtailment gain of hieh Si million

and 50 nillion ss ci ice ded by oal and and Other reps clis ely Sm Note 16 for Is dlici inloi ition

iu the fmih quartei of sal eded 43 raillion non aooits ill mp nrmen haige rs lated to its Reed

Mineral itin unit Sec Note and Not 10 foi further mIni mation

Revenues

NA otl

2013

lest Seund hi Fourth

Quarter iate Quarter Quarter

51147

106151

39711

957

196082

46261

12098

43567

114651

18380

581

196017

47630

10281

NACoaI

II RB

KC

CO and Other

Flixninations

Net inconie

Basic mrnirgs per shauc

Diluted earnings per share 0.53 85

44
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sAC 1sIISERIFS IN As SF BSIDI RlFS
IPousands p1 iii ted in Pu Sham add ui/age i/a

sAC oal ii ults lr dc tf folloss ing laicd ihi Reed Minerals acquisition in to

hard Quartrr In urth Qua In

Revenae 7715 21a57

Oper atmg profit 3a 499

sOIL 19 irent on pans Condenscd Balance Sheets

he conden ed balance sheit of \CC the pai ent eompanf at lLcernhr II arc as folloss

2013 U1

ASSETS

ash and en Ii

equis aler is 94035

Other current assCts 946

lnsu tment in suhsidiai

1113H 52265 43111

36772 43 6s6

NACoal 138355

Othei 14792 14.393

242184 203415

li oei ty liiaut and equipnien in 1477

Other non current assets 5707 4343

344349 1319l

LTABIL1 LIES AND SrOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

uncut liabilities 12750 68

Current intercompany accounts payable net 304 12 940

NoR payable to l3ellaire 20450 450

Other non current liabilities 13065 12942

SthoiTrs eqnis 2977S0 131

total Liabilities and Storitholders Equity 344349 134291

the ciedit agieenlents at SC oal 111313 and alloss the transfer of assets to NA CO undei certain circumstances lhc

unount th \CC inscstmcnt in NACoaI 1113B KU md NAC and Off cr that was icstnieted at Decembcr 31 0l

tot iled approximit ly 51 million The irni unt of unrestrk ted ash availabk to \CCO included ii Inxestnment in

ihsidiai ss as 50 million at Decembei 31 013 Dis idends ads ances anc management fc tiom its suhsmdianmcs ue the

primaiy urces of cash for AC

sOt 20 Related Parts Fransactions

en of SC oafs ss holly owned subsidiaries each mcci the definition oh variable uiterc st ntity See Note for discussion of

these eiititie he ineom taxes resulting horn the open itions of th neonsolmdated Mines aie ole1y the iesponsihilit ol the

mpany he income from the Unconsolidated Mines excluding NoIak and NAC India is reportid on the line

ning of uncon liclatcd mines in the 01 olidated Statements of Operations ms ith related income taxi nieludcd in the

oon to income ewes lie ompany has included the pie tax earnings of the neonsolidated Mines excluding NoIak

and Indi abos periting pIofit as thes are an internal com onent of the rnpanys business and open sling iesuls

he pie tax income lion NoDak repe ned on the linc Income horn other unconsolidated affiliates in the Other income

expense sw tion of the onsohidated Statement of per muons ms ith the related income tax included in the provision for

income tmxes lie net nieome from \C India is reported on the line Income horn othei unconsolidnled alfilintes rn the

Other rnec me xpc nsc sect ion of the onsolidated Slnteinents of Operations he inxcslni nt in the rieonsolidatcd Mines

and iclated ta positions totaled $33 million mud 5202 million mt ccnmf ci 31 013 md 012 iespeetis clv and is included

46
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\AC 1\DLS RIL I\ AD SUBSIIIARIF

In 1/mi an Is ii p1 as late and S/ma mad Pci ntage Iara

he to low iria ble si nunai uis the tan alue of the assets acquired md uahulutues assumed off eed Minerals as of the

aeqr usiton date ii niilli ns

Proparty plant and equipment including minvi1 rights

Other ts

Other intangible assets

tal ssets acquired

Other cUrrent liabilities

Other long term liabilities l4

Iota liabilities assumed 228

Net msscts acquired 609

70

Goodwill tO

he lair saliues ol the ass Us acquired arid liabilities sunied in the table above includes 56 million liability ietlected wuhiri

other ug am liabihtie fbr tax liabilities asso iaied with pie acquisition business activities ol Reed Mm ral and 56

inillon Ion tei us asset inc luded in other asset recognizing the sellers contractual obligation to undemnif the ompany for

this pre quisit liabi lit he indenini ficati in set was measured on the same basis is the corresponding liability

he results of Reed Minerals included in the sinpanvs onsolidated Statements of Opeiations froiri the acquisition date

through Deeenibei 31 2012 ar as Idllow ui ii rllions

293

Operating profit

Net income

luring 13 the estimatid amount of goodwill decreased by 52 million the Company finalized purchase aceour ring ta

the Reed Mineral acquisition lso dui ing the ourth quarter of2O 13 the ompany oncluded during the annual assessment

that thi goo Iwill within the Reed Minerals
iep iftinig unit was fully impaired and recorded 54 million noneash goodwill

spairment charge See ote md Sec ote 11 Or furthi discussion oi goodwill and this nonrecurring fair value

iaa ui in.n
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PtRI COMP O\1LNSF SFAI IMENTS OF COMPREHI NSI\ INC OMI

Income expeilse

Intercompany interest expense

Other net

Adinmistrative and general expenses

oss before in oine taxes

bonnie tax benefit

Ni floss before equiti in earnings of subsidiar es

quity in earnings of subsidiaries

Ii come fiom continuing operations net otto

Discontinued operations net of tax

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment

ndcd ccnhe ii

In lini and

1431 1501

471 3021

960 4522
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Articles of Incorporation and By-laws

3.1i Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3i to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1992 Commission File Number
1-9172

3.1 ii Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on August 2008 Commission File Number
1-9172

Instruments defining the rights of security holders including indentures

4.1 The Company by this filing agrees upon request to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission the

instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Company and its subsidiaries where the total

amount of securities authorized thereunder does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company and its

subsidiaries on consolidated basis

4.2 The Mortgage and Security Agreement dated April 1976 between The Falkirk Mining Company as Mortgagor
and Cooperative Power Association and United Power Association collectively as Mortgagee is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4u to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31 1992 Commission File Number 1-9172

4.3 Amendment No to the Mortgage and Security Agreement dated as of December 15 1993 between Falkirk

Mining Company as Mortgagor and Cooperative Power Association and United Power Association collectively
as Mortgagee is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4iii to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31 1997 Commission File Number 1-9 172

4.4 Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 among the signatories thereto
NACCO Industries Inc as depository and NACCO Industries Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.4 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on October 2012 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10 Material Contracts

10.1 The NACCO Industries Inc 1975 Stock Option Plan as amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10i to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31 1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.2 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for incentive stock options granted after 1986 under The NACCO
Industries Inc 1975 Stock Option Plan as amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 0iii to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31
1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.3 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under The NACCO Industries Inc 1975 Stock Option Plan as
amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 0iv to the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1991 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.4 The NACCO Industries Inc 1981 Stock Option Plan as amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10v to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended
December 31 1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.5 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under The NACCO Industries Inc 1981 Stock Option Plan as
amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 0vi to the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.6 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for incentive stock options granted after 1986 under The NACCO
Industries Inc 1981 Stock Option Plan as amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 0viii to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year
ended

December 31 1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.7 NACCO Industries Inc Supplemental Executive Long-Term Incentive Bonus Plan Amended and Restated

Effective as of January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2007 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.08 The Retirement Plan For Alfred Rankin Jr As Amended and Restated as of December 2007 is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on
December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.09 The NACCO Industries Inc Unfunded Benefit Plan As Amended and Restated Effective as of December 2007
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the

Company on December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9 172
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10.10 Amendment No to the Retirement Benefit Plan for Alfred Rankin Jr As Amended and Restated as of

December 12007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form

8-K filed by the Company on November 13 2008 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.11 Amendment No ito the NACCO Industries Inc Unfunded Benefit Plan As Amended and Restated Effective as

of December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed by the Company on November 13 2008 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.12 Amendment No to the Retirement Benefit Plan for Alfred Rankin Jr As Amended and Restated as of

December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the Companys Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.13 Amendment No to the NACCO Industries Inc Unfunded Benefit Plan As Amended and Restated Effective as

of December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.14 NACCO Industries Inc Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan As Amended and Restated Effective

as of January 2010 is incorporated herein by reference to Appendix to NACCOs Definitive Proxy Statement

filed by the Company on March 26 2010 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.15 NACCO Industries Inc Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan Amended and Restated Effective

May 11 2011 is incorporated herein by reference to Appendix to NACCOs Definitive Proxy Statement filed by

the Company on March 18 2011 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.16 NACCO Industries Inc Executive Excess Retirement Plan Effective as of September 28 2012 is incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 17

2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.17 Amendment No to the NACCO Industries Inc Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Amended
and Restated Effective March 2012 is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 17 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.18 Form Award Agreement for the NACCO Industries Inc Supplemental Executive Long-Term Incentive Bonus Plan

Amended and Restated Effective March 2012 is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 17 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.19
Separation Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 by and between NACCO Industries Inc and Hyster-Yale

Materials Handling Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form l0-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.20 Transition Services Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 by and between NACCO Industries Inc and

Hyster-Yale Materials Handling Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.21 Tax Allocation Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 by and between NACCO Industries Inc and Hyster

Yale Materials Handling Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form lO-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.22 NACCO Industries Inc Annual Incentive Compensation Plan Effective as of September 28 2012 sponsored by

NACCO Industries Inc is incorporated herin by reference to Appendix to NACCOs Definitive Proxy

Statement filed by the Company on March 22 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.23 Amendment No ito the Transition Services Agreement dated as of April 2013 by and between NACCO
Industries Inc and Hyster-Yale Materials Handling Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed by the Company on May 2013 Commission File Number

1-9172

10.24 Amendment No to the Transition Services Agreement dated as of July 2013 by and between NACCO
Industries Inc and Hyster-Yale Materials Handling Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed by the Company on August 2013 Commission File Number

1-9172

10.25 The Retirement Benefit Plan for Alfred Rankin Jr Amended and Restated Effective as of January 2014 is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 8-K filed by the

Company on February 14 2014 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.26 NACCO Industries Inc Unfunded Benefit Plan Amended and Restated Effective as of January 12014 is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 8-K filed by the

Company on February 14 2014 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.27 The North American Coal Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan For Management Employees As Amended

and Restated as of December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys

Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.28 The North American Coal Corporation Excess Retirement Plan Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on

December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9172
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10.29 The North American Coal Corporation Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan As Amended and Restated as of

January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-

filed by the Company on December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.30 The North American Coal Corporation Value Appreciation Plan For Years 2006 to 2015 Amended and Restated

Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Companys Current Report
on Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.31 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan For Management
Employees As Amended and Restated as of December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on November 13 2008 Commission File

Number 1-9 172

10.32 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Value Appreciation Plan for Years 2006 to 2015

Amended and Restated Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31 2008 Commission File Number

1-9172

10.33 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Value Appreciation Plan for Years 2006 to 2015

Amended and Restated Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 2009 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10.34 Amendment No to The North America Coal Corporation Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan As Amended
and Restated as of January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.35 Amendment No to the North American Coal Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan for Management
Employees As Amended and Restated as of December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.42 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009 Commission
File Number 1-9 172

10.36 The North American Coal Corporation Annual Incentive Compensation Plan Effective January 2010 is

incorporated herein by reference to Appendix to NACCOs Definitive Proxy Statement filed by the Company on
March 26 2010 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.37 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Value Appreciation Plan for Years 2006 to 2015

Amended and Restated Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on May 2010 Commission File Number
1-9172

10.38 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Value Appreciation Plan for Years 2006 to 2015 is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the

Company on November 12 2010 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.39 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan As Amended
and Restated as of January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended December 31 2010 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.40 Share and Membership Interest Purchase Agreement by and among TRU Energy Services LLC as Buyer the

sellers party thereto and the trustees and beneficiaries party thereto dated as of August 31 2012 is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September
2012 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.41 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Excess Retirement Plan Effective January 2008 is

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on

September 17 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.42 Coteau Lignite Sales Agreement by and between The Coteau Properties Company and Dakota Coal Company
dated as of January 1990 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Companys Quarterly Report
on Form 10-QIA filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.43 First Amendment to Coteau Lignite Sales Agreement by and between The Coteau Properties Company and Dakota
Coal Company dated as of June 1994 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Companys
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9l72

10.44 Second Amendment to Coteau Lignite Sales Agreement by and between The Coteau Properties Company and
Dakota Coal Company dated as of January 1997 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10.45 Option and Put Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Dakota Coal Company and the
State of North Dakota dated as of January 1990 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File

Number 1-9172
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10.46 First Amendment to the Option and Put Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Dakota

Coal Company and the State of North Dakota dated as of June 1994 is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.15 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-QIA filed by the Company on March 20 2013

Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.47 Lignite Sales Agreement by and between Mississippi Lignite Mining Company and Choctaw Generation Limited

Partnership dated as of April 1998 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.48 Pay Scale Agreement by and between Mississippi Lignite Mining Company and Choctaw Generation Limited

Partnership dated as of September 29 2005 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.49 Consent and Agreement by and among Mississippi Lignite Mining Company Choctaw Generation Limited

Partnership SE Choctaw L.L.C and Citibank N.A dated as of December 20 2002 is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q/A filed by the Company on March

20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.50 Second Restatement of Coal Sales Agreement by and between The Falkirk Mining Company and Great River

Energy dated January 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File Number l-9l72

10.51 Amendment No ito Second Restatement of Coal Sales Agreement by and between The Falkirk Mining Company

and Great River Energy dated as of January 21 2011 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10.52 Amendment No to Second Restatement of Coal Sales Agreement by and between The Falkirk Mining Company

and Great River Energy dated as of March 2014

10.53 Restatement of Option Agreement by and among The Falkirk Mining Company Cooperative Power Association

United Power Association and the State of North Dakota dated as of January 1997 is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q/A filed by the Company on March

20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.54 Third Restatement of Lignite Mining Agreement by and between The Sabine Mining Company and Southwestern

Electric Power Company dated January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-QA filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File

Number l-9172

10.55 Option Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Southwestern Electric Power Company

and Longview National Bank dated as of January 15 1981 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to

the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10.56 Addendum to Option Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Southwestern Electric

Power Company and Longview National Bank dated as of January 15 1981 is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.23 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013

Commission File Number 1-9172

10.57 Amendment to Option Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Southwestern Electric

Power Company and Longview National Bank dated as of December 1996 is incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.24 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013

Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.58 Second Amendment to Option Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Southwestern

Electric Power Company and Regions Bank dated as of January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.25 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013

Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.59 Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Southwestern Electric Power Company Texas

Commerce Bank-Longview Nortex Mining Company and the Sabine Mining Company dated as of June 30 1988

is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q/A filed by

the Company on March 20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.60 Lignite Sales Agreement between Coyote Creek Mining Company L.L.C and Otter Tail Power Company

Northern Municipal Power Agency Montana-Dakota Utilities Co and Northwestern Corporation dated as of

October 10 2012 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.58 to the Companys Annual Report on Form

10-K filed by the Company on March 2013 Commission File Number l-9172.

10.61 Lignite Sales Agreement between Mississippi Lignite Mining Company and KMRC RH LLC dated as of

February 28 2013 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

lO-Q filed by the Company on May 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.62 Modification and Omnibus Agreement between Mississippi Lignite Mining Company and Choctaw Generation

Limited Partnership dated as of February 28 2013 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on May 2013 Commission File Number

1-9172
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10.63 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan As Amended
and Restated as of January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on October 2013 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.64 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation and the Lenders

party thereto and PNC Capital Markets LLC as Lead Arranger and Bookrunner PNC Bank National Association

as Administrative Agent and KeyBank National Association and Regions Bank as Co-Syndication Agents dated

as of November 22 2013 is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-

filed by the Company on November 27 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.65 The North American Coal Corporation Excess Retirement Plan Amended and Restated Effective January 2014

10.66 First Amendment to Lignite Sales Agreement dated as of January 30 2014 between Coyote Creek Mining

Company L.L.C and Otter Tail Power Company Northern Municipal Power Agency Montana-Dakota Utilities

Co division of MDU Resources Group Inc and North Western Corporation is incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on January 30 2014
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.67 The North American Coal Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan for Management Employees Amended and

Restated Effective as of January 2014 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys
Quarterly Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on February 14 2014 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.68 Credit Agreement dated as of April 29 2010 among The Kitchen Collection Inc the borrowers and guarantors

thereto Wells Fargo Retail Finance LLC and the other lenders thereto is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.27 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed by the Company on March 20 2013
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.69 First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of August 2012 among The Kitchen Collection LLC as

successor to The Kitchen Collection Inc the borrowers and guarantors thereto Wells Fargo Bank National

Association as successor to Wells Fargo Retail Finance LLC and the other lenders thereto is incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed by the Company on

March 20 2013 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.70 The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Effective January 2010 is

incorporated herein by reference to Appendix to NACCOs Definitive Proxy Statement filed by the Company on

March 26 2010 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.71 The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc 2011 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on March 2011 Commission

File Number 1-9 172

10.72 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among Wells Fargo Bank National Association as

Administrative Agent Wells Fargo Capital Finance LLC as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Lead Bookrunner the

Lenders that are Parties thereto as the Lenders Hamilton Beach Brands Inc as US Borrower and Hamilton

Beach Brands Canada Inc as Canadian Borrower as Borrowers dated as of May 31 2012 is incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on June 62012
Commission File Number 1-9172

10.73 Amended and Restated Guaranty and Security Agreement dated as of May 31 2012 among Hamilton Beach

Brands Inc and Hamilton Beach Inc as Grantors and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as Administrative

Agent is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the

Company on June 2012 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.74 Amended and Restated Canadian Guarantee and Security Agreement dated as of May 31 2012 among Hamilton

Beach Brands Canada Inc as Grantor and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as Administrative Agent is

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on

June 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.75 The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc 2012 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on March 15 2012
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.76 Amendment No to the Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Effective

January 2010 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.84 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-

for the fiscal year ended December 31 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.77 The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc 2013 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on March 27 2013
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.78 Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Amended and Restated Effective as of

January 2014 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

8-K filed by the Company on February 14 2014 Commission File Number 1-9172
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21 Subsidiaries list of the subsidiaries of the Company is attached hereto as Exhibit 21

23 Consents of experts and counsel

23.1 Consents of experts and counsel

24 Powers of Attorney

24.1 copy of power of attorney for John Jumper is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.1

24.2 copy of power of attorney for Dennis LaBane is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.2

24.3 copy of power of attorney for Richard de Osborne is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.3

24.4 copy of power of attorney for James Ratner is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.4

24.5 copy of power of attorney for Britton Taplin is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.5

24.6 copy of power of attorney for David Taplin is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.6

24.7 copy of power of attorney for John Turben is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.7

24.8 copy of power of attorney for David B.Fl Williams is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.8

31 Rule 3a- 14a 5d- 14a Certifications

lil Certification of Alfred Rankin Jr pursuant to Rule l3a-14a15d-14a of the Exchange Act is attached hereto

as Exhibit 31i1
31i2 Certification of J.C Butler Jr pursuant to Rule 13a-l4a15d-14a of the Exchange Act is attached hereto as

Exhibit 31 i2
32 Certifications pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002 signed and dated by Alfred Rankin Jr and J.C Butler Jr

95 Mine Safety Disclosure Exhibit is attached hereto as Exhibit 95

99 Other exhibits not otherwise required to be filed Audited Combined Financial Statements for the Unconsolidated

Mines of the North American Coal Corporation dated December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 with Report of

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm is attached hereto as Exhibit 99

l01.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

lOl.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101 .LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item 15b
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Filed herewith

Portions of Exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission in

reliance on Rule 24b-2 and an Order from the Commission granting the Companys request for confidential

treatment dated March 27 2013 Portions for which confidential treatment has been granted have been marked

with three asterisks and footnote indicating Confidential treatment requested

Portions of Exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission in

reliance on Rule 24b-2 and an Order from the Commission granting the Companys request for confidential

treatment dated April 2013 Portions for which confidential treatment has been granted have been marked with

three asterisks and footnote indicating Confidential treatment requested

Portions of Exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission in

reliance on Rule 24b-2 and an Order from the Commission granting the Companys request for confidential

treatment dated June 17 2013 Portions for which confidential treatment has been granted have been marked with

three asterisks and footnote indicating Confidential treatment requested
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Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF NACCO INDUSTRIES INC

The following is list of active subsidiaries as of the date of the filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission of the

Annual Report on Form 10- to which this is an Exhibit Except as noted all of these subsidiaries are wholly owned directly

or indirectly

Name IncorDoration

Altoona Services Inc Pennsylvania

America Lignite Energy LLC Delaware 50%
Bellaire Corporation Ohio

CH Mining Company Inc Alabama

Caddo Creek Resources Company LLC Nevada

Camino Real Fuels LLC Nevada

Centennial Natural Resources LLC Nevada

Coyote Creek Mining Company LLC Nevada

Demery Resources Company LLC Nevada

The Coteau Properties Company Ohio

The Falkirk Mining Company Ohio

GRENAC LLC Delaware 50%
Grupo HB/PS S.A de C.V Mexico

Hamilton Beach Brands Canada Inc Ontario Canada
Hamilton Beach Brands Do Brasil Comercializacao de Produtos Electricos Ltda Brazil 99.5%
Hamilton Beach Brands de Mexico S.A de C.V Mexico

Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Delaware

Hamilton Beach Brands HK Limited Hong Kong PRC
Hamilton Beach Electrical Appliances Shenzhen Company Limited China

Hamilton Beach Inc Delaware

Housewares Holding Co Delaware

The Kitchen Collection LLC Ohio

Liberty Fuels Company LLC Nevada

Mississippi Lignite Mining Company Texas

NoDak Energy Investments Corporation Nevada

NoDak Energy Services LLC Delaware

The North American Coal Corporation Delaware

North American Coal Corporation India Private Limited India

North American Coal Royalty Company Delaware

Otter Creek Mining Company LLC Nevada

Red Hills Property Company LLC Mississippi

The Sabine Mining Company Nevada

TRU Global Energy Services LLC Delaware

TRU Energy Services LLC Nevada

Reed Hauling Inc Alabama

Reed Minerals Inc Alabama



Exhibit 31i1

Certifications

Alfred Rankin Jr certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NACCO Industries Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants

board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2014 Is Alfred Rankin Jr

Alfred Rankin Jr

Chairman President and Chief Executive

Officer Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31i2

Certifications

J.C Butler Jr certif that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NACCO Industries Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants

board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2014 /5/ J.C Butler Jr

J.C Butler Jr

Senior Vice President Finance Treasurer

and ChiefAdministrative Officer Principal

Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of NACCO Industries Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report each of the

undersigned officers of the Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002 that to such officers knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the Report

Date March 2014 Is Alfred Rankin Jr

Alfred Rankin Jr

Chairman President and Chief Executive

Officer Principal Executive Officer

Date March 2014 Is J.C Butler Jr

J.C Butler Jr

Senior Vice President Finance Treasurer

and Chief Administrative Officer Principal

Financial Officer



Exhibit 95

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

NACCO Industries Inc and its wholly owned subsidiaries the Company believes that The North American Coal

Corporation and its affiliated coal companies collectively NACoa1 is an industry leader in safety NACoal has health and

safety programs in place that include extensive employee training accident prevention workplace inspection emergency

response accident investigation regulatory compliance and mm-by-mine health and safety analyses The objectives for

NACoals programs are to eliminate workplace incidents comply with all mining-related regulations and provide support for

both regulators and the industry to improve mine safety

Under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refonn and Consumer Protection Act each operator of coal or other mine is required to

include certain mine safety results in its periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission The operation of

NACoals mines is subject to regulation by the Federal Mine Safety and Health Administration MSHA under the Federal

Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977 the Mine Act MSHA inspects NACoa1s mines on regular basis and issues various

citations and orders when it believes violation has occurred under the Mine Act The Company has presented information

below regarding certain mining safety and health matters for NACoa1s mining operations for the
year ended December 31

2013 In evaluating this information consideration should be given to factors such as the number of citations and orders

will vary depending on the size of the mine ii the number of citations issued will
vary from inspector to inspector and from

mine to mine and iiicitations and orders can be contested and appealed and in that process are often reduced in severity and

amount and are sometimes vacated

During the
year

ended December 31 2013 neither NACoa1s current mining operations nor Bellaires closed mines were
assessed any Mine Act Section 104d citations or orders for an alleged unwarrantable failure i.e aggravated conduct

constituting more than ordinary negligence to comply with mining safety standard or regulation iiwere assessed any Mine

Act Section 11 0b2 penalties for failure to correct the subject matter of Mine Act Section 104a citation within the

specified time period which failure was deemed flagrant i.e reckless or repeated failure to make reasonable efforts to

eliminate known violation that substantially and proximately caused or reasonably could have been expected to cause death

or serious bodily injury iiireceived any Mine Act Section 107a imminent danger orders to immediately remove miners or

iv received any MSHA written notices under Mine Act Section 104e of pattern of violation of mandatory health or safety

standards or of the potential to have such pattern In addition there were no mining-related fatalities at NACoa1s mining

operations or Bellaires closed mines during the year ended December 31 2013
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The following information related to the Companys stock performance was not included in or incorporated by reference into and

shall not be deemed to constitute part of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC

Stock Price Performance Presentation

The following graphs compare the Companys total annual stock price performance on Class Common Stock against the total stock

price performance of the Russell 2000 Index and in the case of Graph the Russell 2000 Producer Durables Index for the periods

indicated The graphs present the year-end value of $100 investment at the base point for each index assuming the reinvestment of

dividends

In accordance with the regulations promulgated by the SEC Graph compares the stock price performance based upon the difference

between the stock price at the beginning of each fiscal year and the stock price at the end of the fiscal year for the five-year period

commencing January 2009 base point December 31 2008 and ending December 31 2013

2009-2013 Stock Price Performance

Graph
In Dollars
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The Company believes that the measurement set forth in Graph which is based upon the stock price at single point in time in each

year does not adequately reflect the Companys stock price performance over the period because of the numerous periodic

fluctuations throughout the year
in both the price of the Companys stock and the level of the Russell 2000 Index The Company

therefore has provided Graph which compares the returns for the Company and the Russell 2000 Index based upon the average of

the daily closing stock price compared with the corresponding information from Graph which is based upon the change in the stock

price for each fiscal year
for the same period as in Graph

2009-2013 Stock Price Performance

Graph
In Dollars

$600

$500
-----

$400

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

December 31

0511 Rvvivil Diii NAiil2-tliihMsnigAvvivgcl _tRvc
Avsarties 81011 invested at December II 2008 oh dividends reinvented

2-irvonhli moving average data is basest upon
live daily closing price

The Company believes that although sustained operating and financial performance will ultimately be reflected in stock price the

five-year period portrayed in the foregoing graphs is too brief period over which to measure the results of significant strategic

activities and that corporate financial and strategic performance will be reflected in stock price only when measured over the long

term The Company therefore has included Graph which compares the 10-year returns for the Company and the Russell 2000

Index based on the average stock price for the year computed using the same method as in Graph for the 10-year period

commencing January 2004 base point December 31 2003 and ending December 31 2013

2004-2013 Stock Price Performance

Graph
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Directors and Officers of

NACCO Industries Inc

Directors

John Jumper
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

of Leidos Holdings Inc

Retired Chief of Staff United States Air Force

Dennis LaBarre

Of Counse Jones Day

Richard de Osborne

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officet

ASARCO Incorporated

Alfred Rankin Jr

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officei

NACCO Industries Inc

Chairman President and Chief Executive Office

Hyster- Yale Materials Handling Inc

James Ratner

Executive Vice President of Forest City Enterprises Inc

and Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Forest City

Commercial Group

Britton Taplin

Self employed personal investments

David Taplin

Self employed tree farming

John Turben

Founding Partne Kirtland Capital Partners

David Williams

Partner of Williams Bax Saltzman PC

Officers

Alfred Rankin Jr

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

J.C Butler Jr

Senior Vice PresidentFinance Treasurer and Chief

Administrative Officer

Elizabeth Loveman
Vice President and Controller

John Neumann

Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Miles Haberer

Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

Mary Maloney
Associate General Counse Assistant Secretary and

Senior Director-Benefits Human Resources

Robert Benson

President and Chief Executive Officer

The North American Coal Corporation

Gregory Trepp
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hamilton Beach Brands Inc

Jesse Adkins

Associate Counsel and Assistant Secretary

Officers of Subsidiaries

Officers of

The North American Coal Corporation
Alfred Rankin Jr

Chairman

Robert Benson

President and Chief Executive Officer

J.C Butler Jr

Senior Vice President-Project Development and

Administration

Michael Gregory
Vice President-Marketing and Special Projects

Miles Haberer

Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

and Director-Land

Mary Maloney
Associate General Counse Assistant Secretary and

Senior Director-Benefits Compensation

John Neumann

Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

John Sullivan Jr

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Harry Tipton Ill

Vice President-Engineering and Louisiana Alabama and

Mississippi Operations

Jesse Adkins

Associate Counsel and Assistant Secretary

Donald Grischow

Treasurer

John Pokorny

Controller

Officers of Hamilton Beach Brands Inc

Alfred Rankin Jr

Chairman

Gregory Trepp
President and Chief Executive Officer

Gregory Salyers

Senior Vice President Global Operations

Scott Tidey
Senior Vice President North America Sales and Marketing

Keith Burns

Vice President Engineering and Information Technology

Kathleen Diller

Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

James Taylor

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Richard Moss
Senior Directo Finance Treasurer

J.C Butler Jr

Assistant Secretary

Officers of The Kitchen Collection LLC

Alfred Rankin Jr

Chairman

Gregory Trepp
Chief Executive Officer

Randy Sklenar

Vice President-Field Operations and Human Resources

Robert Strenski

Vice President General Merchandise Manager

Karen Cavender

Controller

L.J Kennedy
Secretary and Treasurer

J.C Butler Jr

Assistant Secretary



CoRPoTE INFORMATION

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of NACCO
Industries Inc will be held on May 2014 at 900 am
at the corporate office located at 5875 Landerbrook

Drive Cleveland Ohio 44124

Form 10-K

Additional copies of the Companys Form 10-K filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission are

available free of charge through NACCO Industries

website www.nacco.com or by request to

Investor Relations

NACCO Industries Inc

5875 Landerbrook Drive Suite 220

Cleveland Ohio 44124

440 229-5130

Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

Stockholder Correspondence

Computershare

P0 Box 30170

College Station TX 77842-3170

Overniht Correspondence

Computershare

211 Quality Circle Suite 210

College Station TX 77845

800 622-6757

Legal Counsel

McDermott Will Emery LLP

227 West Monroe Street

Chicago Illinois 60606

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Ernst Young LLP

950 Main Ave Suite 1800

Cleveland Ohio 44113

Stock Exchange Listing

The New York Stock Exchange

Symbol NC

Investor Relations Contact

Investor questions may be addressed to

Investor Relations

NACCO Industries Inc

5875 Landerbrook Drive Suite 220

Cleveland Ohio 44124

440 229-5130

E-mail ir@naccoind.com

NACCO Industries Website

Additional information on NACCO Industries may be

found at the corporate website www.nacco.com

The Company considers this website to be one of the

primary sources of information for investors and other

interested parties

Subsidiary Company Websites

The websites for NACCOs subsidiaries are as follows

Hamilton Beach BrandsU.S

www.hamiltonbeach.com

www.proctorsilex.com

www.commercial.hamiltonbeach.com

Hamilton Beach BrandsMexico

www.hamiltonbeach.com.mx

Kitchen Collection

www.kitchencollection.com

www.legourmetchef.com

North American Coal

www.nacoal.com

MIX

Paper from

responsible sources

FSC C003197
FSC
SvWsfc.org

Environmental Benefits

This Annual Report on Form 10-K is printed using post-consumer waste recycled paper and vegetable-based inks

By using this environmental paper NACCO Industries Inc saved the following resources

29 trees
pre-

83 lbs water- 12260 gal

served for the borne waste wastewater

future not created flow saved

1356 lbs 2671 lbs net 20442500
solid waste greenhouse STUs energy

not generated gases prevented not consumed

The FSC Trademark identifies wood fibers coming from forests which have been certified in accordance with the rules of the Forest stewardship council
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